PALMDALE WATER DISTRICT
A CENTURY QF SERVICE

EST. 1918

BOARD OF DIRECTORS
ROBERT E. ALVARADO
Division 1

DON WILSON

Division 2

GLORIA DIZMANG
Division 3

KATHY MAC LAREN
Division 4

VINCENT DINO
Division 5

DENNIS D. LaMOREAUX

General Manager

ALESHIRE & WYNDER LLP
Attorneys

&

ACWA

PROUD MEMBER

October 23, 2019

AGENDA FOR REGULAR MEETING
OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS
OF THE PALMDALE WATER DISTRICT
to be held at the District’s office at 2029 East Avenue Q, Palmdale

MONDAY, OCTOBER 28, 2019
6:00 p.m.

NOTES: To comply with the Americans with Disabilities Act, to participate in any Board
meeting please contact Dawn Deans at 661-947-4111 x1003 at least 48 hours prior to a Board
meeting to inform us of your needs and to determine if accommodation is feasible.

Additionally, an interpreter will be made available to assist the public in making comments
under Agenda Item No. 4 and any action items where public input is offered during the
meeting if requested at least 48 hours before the meeting. Please call Dawn Deans at 661-
947-4111 x1003 with your request. (PWD Rules and Regulations Section 4.03.1 (¢) )

Adicionalmente, un intérprete estara disponible para ayudar al publico a hacer
comentarios bajo la seccion No. 4 en la agenda y cualquier elemento de accion donde se
ofrece comentarios al publico durante la reunién, siempre y cuando se solicite con 48 horas
de anticipacion de la junta directiva. Por favor de llamar Dawn Deans al 661-947-4111 x1003
con su solicitud. (PWD reglas y reglamentos seccion 4.03.1 (c) )

Agenda item materials, as well as materials related to agenda items submitted after
distribution of the agenda packets, are available for public review at the District’s office
located at 2029 East Avenue Q, Palmdale (Government Code Section 54957.5). Please call
Dawn Deans at 661-947-4111 x1003 for public review of materials.

PUBLIC COMMENT GUIDELINES: The prescribed time limit per speaker is three-
minutes. Please refrain from public displays or outbursts such as unsolicited applause,
comments, or cheering. Any disruptive activities that substantially interfere with the
ability of the District to carry out its meeting will not be permitted, and offenders will
be requested to leave the meeting. (PWD Rules and Regulations, Appendix DD, Sec.
IV.A)

Each item on the agenda shall be deemed to include any appropriate motion, resolution, or
ordinance to take action on any item.

1)  Pledge of Allegiance/Moment of Silence.

2) Roll Call.
3)  Adoption of Agenda.

661-947-4111

2029 East Avenue Q Palmdale, California 93550 |  palmdalewater.org



BOARD OF DIRECTORS
PALMDALE WATER DISTRICT -2- October 23, 2019

4)

5)
6)

7)

8)

Action Items — Action Calendar (The public shall have an opportunity to comment on any
action item as each item is considered by the Board of Directors prior to action being

taken.)

4.1)

4.2)
4.3)

4.4)

Public hearing to consider water rate adjustment based on RDN 2019 Water Rate
Study pursuant to Proposition 218. (Finance Manager Williams/RDN/Financial
Health and Stability Committee)

Break. (President Dino)

Consideration and possible action on Resolution No. 19-15 adopting a Water Rate
Adjustment of 8.1% for each Calendar Year 2020, 2021, 2022, 2023, and 2024,
Amending Appendix C to the Rules and Regulations of Palmdale Water District,
and Establishing Prudent Parameters to Consider Future Water Rate Adjustment
Reductions. (Finance Manager Williams/RDN/Financial Health and Stability
Committee)

Break. (President Dino)

Public comments for non-agenda items.

Action Items - Consent Calendar (The public shall have an opportunity to comment on
any action item on the Consent Calendar as the Consent Calendar is considered
collectively by the Board of Directors prior to action being taken.)

6.1)
6.2)
6.3)

Approval of minutes of regular meeting held October 14, 2019.
Payment of bills for October 28, 2019.

Reject claim received from Hugo Alonzo and refer to Joint Powers Insurance
Authority. (No Budget Impact — Finance Manager Williams)

Action Items — Action Calendar (The public shall have an opportunity to comment on any
action item as each item is considered by the Board of Directors prior to action being

taken.)

7.1)

7.2)

7.3)

Consideration and possible action on Joint Funding Agreement with the USGS to
continue monitoring groundwater levels and water quality during the period of
November 1, 2019 to October 31, 2020. ($4,224.75 through the Antelope Valley
State Water Contractors Association — Budgeted — Budget Item No. 1-02-5070-
007-Consultants — Resource and Analytics Director Thompson I1)

Consideration and possible action on revisions to the names of the Board of
Directors Standing Committees. (Director Dizmang)

Consideration and possible action on authorization of the following conferences,
seminars, and training sessions for Board and staff attendance within budget
amounts previously approved in the 2019 Budget:

a) None at this time.

Information ltems:

8.1)

Reports of Directors:
a) Meetings; Standing Committee/Assignment Reports; General Report.



BOARD OF DIRECTORS
PALMDALE WATER DISTRICT -3- October 23, 2019

8.2)  Report of General Manager.
a) October 2019 written report of activities through September 2019.
8.3)  Report of General Counsel.
9) Board members' requests for future agenda items.
10)  Adjournment.

s 0. Moy

DENNIS D. LaMOREAUX,
General Manager

DDL/dd



AGENDA ITEM NO.'S 4.1 AND 4.3

PALMDALE WATER DISTRICT
BOARD MEMORANDUM

DATE: October 23, 2019 October 28, 2019
TO: BOARD OF DIRECTORS Board Meeting
FROM: Michael Williams, Finance Manager/CFO

VIA: Mr. Dennis D. LaMoreaux, General Manager

RE: AGENDA ITEM NO.’S 4.1 & 4.3 — PUBLIC HEARING TO CONSIDER

PROPOSED WATER RATE ADJUSTMENT BASED ON RDN 2019
WATER RATE STUDY PURSUANT TO PROPOSITION 218; AND
CONSIDERATION AND POSSIBLE ACTION ON RESOLUTION NO.
19-15 ADOPTING A WATER RATE ADJUSTMENT OF 8.1% FOR
EACH CALENDAR YEAR 2020, 2021, 2022, 2023, AND 2024,
AMENDING APPENDIX C TO THE RULES AND REGULATIONS OF
PALMDALE WATER DISTRICT, AND ESTABLISHING PRUDENT
PARAMETERS TO CONSIDER FUTURE WATER RATE ADJUSTMENT
REDUCTIONS. (FINANCE MANAGER WILLIAMS/RDN/FINANCIAL
HEALTH AND STABILITY COMMITTEE)

Recommendation:

Staff recommends the Board adopt Resolution No. 19-15 approving adjustments
in rates for water service based on the accepted 2019 Rate Study report prepared by RDN
pursuant to Proposition 218.

The Financial Health and Stability Committee considered this item at their
October 22, 2019 meeting and recommend approval of Resolution No. 19-15, as
presented.

Background:

The Board approved the agreement with RDN on April 8, 2019, an independent
consulting firm, to prepare the 2019 Rate Study. Staff had a number of meetings with
RDN to discuss the needs of the District according to the Strategic Plan.

On August 15, 2019, a presentation was made to the Board by RDN of the results,
findings and recommendations of the 2019 Water Rate Study. The Board then approved
the water rate revenue adjustment option 1 of the 2019 Water Rate Study and instructed
staff to begin the Proposition 218 process and set the public hearing date as October 28,
2019.




BOARD OF DIRECTORS
PALMDALE WATER DISTRICT
VIA: Mr. Dennis D. LaMoreaux, General Manager October 23, 2019

Notices were mailed, and three public outreach meetings were held to answer
ratepayer’s questions and provide more information on August 22, 2019, August 28,
2019, and September 24, 2019. Staff also hosted an open house at the treatment plant on
September 7, 2019, in which tours of the plant were given to attendees.

Under provision provided by Proposition 218, protests to any proposed rate
change may be filed up until the time of the public hearing closes, and if a majority of
record owners of property protest the change, it may not be implemented. The District
has 31,789 recorded property owners, and as of the date of this report, the District has
received 52 written protests.

The key concepts and adjustments contained in the final rate study report attached
are:

1) The reduction of the number of tiers from six to five.

2) A reduction in the water allocation per capita per day (GPCD) from 66 to 55.

3) Establishing “Irrigable Area” for each parcel using Eagle Aerial data.

4) Use the water budget allocation method of Single-Family Residential customers
for Multi-Family Residential customers.

5) Establish Exempt Irrigation Accounts to receive 100% landscape factor for their
water budget.

The rate study covers a five-year period and contains recommended rate
adjustments over that period. Although the rate study provides the District the authority
to implement rate adjustments up to the approved levels, the District reviews the need to
implement annual adjustments as part of the annual budget process as stated in
Resolution No. 19-15.

Strategic Plan Element:

This work is part of Strategic Initiative No. 4 — Financial Health and Stability.
Budget:
This is under Budget Item No. 1-02-5070-007, Consulting.

Supporting Documents:

e Public Hearing Presentation by RDN
e Final 2019 Rate Study Report
¢ Resolution 19-15




e

PALMDALE WATER DISTRICT

PUBLIC HEARING - OCTOBER 28, 2019

> N &
Copyright 2019 RDN
~ All Rights Reserved



AGENDA

e Purpose of Study El
« Water Today

* Process of Rate Study Q
- Revenue Requirements /7

« Recommended Rate Adjustments

« Customer Bill Impacts



PURPOSE OF STUDY

O)

Establish water rates that achieve objectives of

Revenue Stability
Equitable Cost Recovery
Rate Payer Affordability for PwD and its customers




o WATER TODAY

(’)

o CPI trends for utilities (US)

Trends in Consumer Price Index (CPI) for utilities (general)

=—Telephone services

Source: [IPUM3U based on BELS data.



WATER TO DAY =




n WATER TODAY

Customer Water Use Reduction

-
a0

W Bath
Dishwasher
4y sink

10

(9)]

/1 Shower

Gallons per Capita per Day

'g Toilet

[€] Laundry

Other: evaporative cooling,
humidification, water softening

Source: Residential End Uses of Water — Water Research Foundation

- & N\

B 1999 I 2016 Future ;



WATER TODAY

Revenue

Use
Reduction

Increasing
Costs

Loss

Typical misconception of “| am paying for water”
water rates =

O QO o (



o COSTS VS. RATES

{ DD
e Chemicals |

Variable / o \
+ Electrcit " pansmssion and
Purchased Water 80% . CI t' IuEI '
- Fixed Costs Recovered .apl a_ Xpense
70% from Volumetric (lnCIUdlng Deth)
60% Charges - Storage
« Hydrants
50% . -
Fixed Costs, . Il\gl:ﬁﬁ;SerVIces
100% o
o0 83% \ Customer Service /
cons Volumetric

70%

60%

50%

40%

30%

20%

10%

0%

Charge,
45%




Revenue Stability

Why don’t we recover all the fixed costs from fixed charges?

Proposed Rates Fixed Cost =
Fixed Charge




AFFORDABILITY Q
Bill Impacts

100%

90% m1-10%
(1]

0,
80% w11-15%

70%
W 16-30%

7 31-45%

W >= 46%

Fixed Costs = Fixed Charges

Proposed




\ - 4
\/ B EQUITABILITY

Different Levels of Service Requirements

Should a customer who uses 100 hcf

: of water pay for the same amount of
Sized for

Max Use fixed costs as a customer who uses
X 5 hcf a month?

Sized for ,
Average Some users’ water usage
Use | pattern requires bigger system o
capacity

b \) b ‘\‘J\

(



BALANCING ACT OF RATE DESIGN

Revenue
Stability

Afforda
bility

Equitability

N



HOW RATES ARE SET

{ Costs } [Revenues}

e a e a
PWD’s operation is Source of Non-Operating
Supply Revenues
revenue neutral \ i J
Capital Miscellaneous
Expense Charges
\ J \. J
e ™ e \
O&M Cost Revelgues from
ates
\ J \ J




\/ =~
RATE STUDY PROCESS

o 5-Yr Study Period: CY 2020 - CY 2024, Test Year: CY 2020
Build Perform Establish
Financial Billing Impact Proposed
Plans Study Rates
|dentify .
Deficit Design Rates
Determine Conduct Cost
Revenue of Service
Requirements Analysis

\ J \ J




o/

~

DEMAND PROJECTIONS @

l 8,000
7.326
7,128 7,118 7,108 7,097 7,089 7,086
k 7,000
/ Annual
Class
Change 6,000
Commericial & Industrial -2
5,000

Construction -2
Multi-Family Residential 2
2018 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023 2024

CCF (Thousands)

Irrigation -1

~

Single-Family Residential |

k / ’ B Total Use \/
R N bt \ /




- N/

= REVENUE ANALYSIS
"

Revenues from rates $23.1 $23.1 $23.1 $23.1 $23.0 $23.0

Other operating revenues $1.2 $1.2 $1.2 $1.2 $1.2 $1.2
Non-operating revenues $2.9 $2.9 $2.9 $3.0 $3.0 $3.1
Total $27.2 $27.2 $27.2 $27.2 $27.3 $27.3




-

'

-/

O&M EXPENSE

v a0t | c 2020 ov 2021 | v 2022 | C 2023 | oY 2024

Total O&M Expense $21.8

% Annual Increase

$23.1
5.8%

$23.8
3.1%

$24.6
3.1%

$25.3
3.1%

$26.1

3.2%

Expense Escalation Factors CY 2019 | CY 2020 | CY 2021 | CY 2022 | CY 2023 | CY 2024

Utility/Chemical Inflation Rate:

Purchased Water Inflation Rate
Employee Expenses Inflation Rate:

Fuels and Automobile Inflation Rate:
Construction Inflation Rate:

Overall Inflation Rate: 2.4% 2.4% 2.4% 2.4% 2.4% 2.4%
4.1% 4.1% 4.1% 4.1% 4.1% 4.1%

Treatment Inflation Rate: 3.3% 3.3% 3.3% 3.3% 3.3% 3.3%
7.3% 7.3% 7.3% 7.3% 7.3% 7.3%

2.6% 2.6% 2.6% 2.6% 2.6% 2.6%

Equipment Inflation Rate: 0.8% 0.8% 0.8% 0.8% 0.8% 0.8%
3.6% 3.6% 3.6% 3.6% 3.6% 3.6%

3.0% 3.0% 3.0% 3.0% 3.0% 3.0%

No Escalation: 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0%

\

-/
J



4 CAPITAL EXPENSE

Total = $30 million
| cv2o20 | cvy2021 | CY2022 | CY2023 | CY2024

Replacement/New Equipment $440217  $608,922  $375,113  $373,115  $483,704
Studies and Planning $604,985 $125,000 $200,000 $125,000 $125,000

Water Supply ~ $512,177  $786,976  $806,143 $1,101,034 $0
Replacement Capital Projects $3,056,808 $3,985,035 $4,469,925 $5,758,578 $2,554,233
New Capital Projects $578,810 $0 $529,664 $0 $3,120,913

Total CIP Expense $5,192,998 $5,505,934 $6,380,845 $7,357,728 $6,283,850

e \./ - *\




= DEBT SERVICE

'

S

oy 20t | o 2020 | ov 2021 | o 2022 | v 2023 oY 2026

Principal $1.9 $1.9 $2.0 $2.7 $2.6 $2.8
Interest $2.6 $215 $2.5 $3.1 $3.1 $3.0
Debt Service Total $4.5 $4.5 $4.5 $5.8 $5.7 $5.8

« 2012 Private Placement

2013A Series Water Revenue Bonds
2018A Series Water Revenue Bond
Capital Leases Payable - 2017
2021 Bond Issuance - $20 million

s



OTHER OBLIGATIONS

Reserves: District’s Goal based on Reserve
Policy Resolution No, 18-10 is $16.2 million
= $950,000 Annual Contribution

Water Conservation Rebate Program/Change in
Investment in PRWA = $535,500



=7
REVENUE REQUIREMENTS

. O&M Expense - $23.1 million

CIP Expense - $5.2 million
Debt Service - $4.5 million
Other Obligations - $1.5 million

Total Cost - $34.3 million
Offset by Non-Rate Revenues - $4.1 million

Revenue Requirements - $30.2 million

Y NS N/



/ REVENUE REQUIREMENTS

—

Revenues from Rates - $23 million
Revenue Requirements - $30 million

Deficit- $7 million

0)
AN ann_ual 8.1% $5 million from reserves
rate adjustment == $2 million from rates

Adjusted Revenue Requirements for CY 2020: $25 million
et @



| -~/
-’/ NO ACTION IS TAKEN - CASH BALANCE __

'

'

£20.0

10.0

No rate l
adjustments, - -
plus no new .

bond issuances .

£30.0

5400
CY 2019 CY 2020 CY 2021 CY 2022 CY 2023 CY 2024

m Cash Balance

¥ N N’ bt \ /

Reserve Target /



~

et

An annual 8.1%
rate adjustment

rillions

518
516
514
512
510
sg
$6
$4
$2

S0

\/ -
| =
RECOMMENDED RATE ADJUSTMENTS - CASH BALANCE

)\ — 4

$11.6

Cy 2019
Current Year

59.7
- I
CY 2020 CY 2021
Test Year

516.2 5164
$12.1
CY 2022 CyY 2023 CY 2024

. 2 ctual Cash Balance
=T arget Cash Balance 516.2 Million , )

——Cmzh Balance Alert 510.0 Million

T

(&



-

'

S Fhcachagemommy
wetorsizo | Gv 2020 | ov aua1 | ooz | cvzom | Ovaoze.

5/8-in

3/4-in
1-in

11/2-in

2-in
3-in
4-in
6-in
8-in
10-in

-/

Fixed Charge Monthly

$38.22
$38.22
$38.22
$92.99
$140.84
$252.48
$412.05
$810.62

$1,289.09 $1,409.41

$41.60

$41.60

$41.60

$101.49
$153.81
$275.89
$450.38
$886.21

$45.52
$45.52
$45.52
$111.51
$169.16
$303.69
$495.96
$976.21

$49.79
$49.79
$49.79
$122.47
$185.96
$334.10
$545.84

$54.43

$54.43

$54.43

$134.37
$204.21
$367.16
$600.07

$1,074.72 $1,181.81

$1,652.74 $1,709.62 $1,880.17

$1,847.47 $2,019.99 $2,225.56 $2,450.56 $2,695.17

 CommodtyCharpeeperber

Commodity Charges per HCF

PROPOSED RATES

Tier 1 $0.88 $0.93 $0.98 $1.03 $1.08

Tier 2 $1.52 $1.63 $1.74 $1.86 $1.98

Tier 3 $2.03 $2.15 $2.27 $2.40 $2.54

Tier 4 $3.29 $3.51 $3.74 $3.98 $4.23

Tier 5 $4.64 $5.01 $5.39 $5.79 $6.23
e v

N



-/
RATE COMPARISON STUDY

Rate Comparison @ 17 hcf

$125
$111.68
$100
a $85.61 $85.84
it
©
(14
® 9§75
(72}
o $68.61
8_ Average cnan e $65.37 $67.12
=t
o $57.98 $60.17
‘C $54.61 $55.30
o
$50.21
‘l: $50
o $42.15
Y
PP $38.56
[72}
(=}
(&]
$25
$0
o 3 e @ o Q o \a o Qo Q @ R Q S &
(& Q N < 23 > ¢ B ) & D ) S @
¥ & & S & &S %G?“ & & e E ¢ ¢
O KNy * & oR (@) ® <
¥ . & <t ¥
& WV
>
&)
* Published 2020 Rate Increase, All Others Reflect Current (2019) Rates




RATE COMPARISON STUDY

The recent rate adjustments implemented by the neighboring agencies

Rate Comparison @ 17 hcf

- LACWWD 4 Rosamond CSD | Victorville | Palmdale WD | LACWWD 34 | Indian Wells WD

$37.88 $50.12 $77.09 $47.10 $55.29 $55.58 $54.66

| New [P RT-RENETIN $85.61  $50.21 $60.17 $63.56 $57.98
| Increase Y 1NN TYY $8.52  $3.11 $4.88 $7.98 $3.32

The PWD rate includes water treatment charge of $0.11/HCF

e \/ - _\‘J\



-/

- RATE COMPARISON STUDY

'
Rate Comparison @ 17 hcf

$100

$75
B
(8]
(]
N~
L

5 $50
e
et
(7]
(e}
(&)

$25

14.4% 11.1%
11.3% 6.6% 6.1% 8.8%
$0
\8) 2k (_',30
\ND q\\\ e(\a \\ \e‘N \NO d
\,P‘G\N \l\c"o ve® sP “\d\ “\‘Ne 93\ da \,P\C’\N Rosa‘“o“
. Base Rate . Rate Increase

</



RECOMMENDED STRUCTURAL CHANGE

Reduce number of tiers from six to five

Reduce water allocation per capita per d

Establish “Irrigable Area” for each parce

Use the water budget allocation methoc

ay (GPCD) from 66 to 55

using Eagle Aerial data
of Single Family

Residential customers for Multi-Family residential customers

Establish “Exempt Irrigation Accounts” to receive 100 %
landscape factor (LF) for their water budget

-

et

—



\/RECE)MMENDED STRUCTURAL CHANGE _

'
Tier 6, 1.2%

100% e % ——y
ier5, 6.6%

Tier 4, 2.6% .
90% Tier 4, 5.3%

80%

70% Tier 2, 34.6%

Tier 2,31.2%
60%

50%
40%

30%
’ Tier 1, 54.6% _
Tier 1,47.6%

20% o/

10%

Current Proposed
- e

0% J



QUESTIONS




PALMDALE WATER DISTRICT

Financial Planning, Revenue Requirements,
Cost of Service, and Rate Setting Analysis

Final Report
October 8, 2019

» 3 PALMDALE WATER DISTRICT
A CENTURY OF SERVICE



PALMDALE WATER DISTRICT

FINANCIAL PLANNING, REVENUE REQUIREMENTS,
COST OF SERVICE, AND RATE SETTING ANALYSIS

FINAL REPORT

Prepared for:

Palmdale Water District
2029 E Avenue Q
Palmdale, CA 93550

Prepared by:

ROBERT D. NIEHAUS, INC.
140 East Carrillo Street
Santa Barbara, CA 93101
(805) 962-0611

RDN Project Number 280



>~ADN

September 17, 2019
Dennis D. LaMoreaux
General Manager
Palmdale Water District
2029 East Avenue Q
Palmdale, CA 93550

Subject: Water Rate Analysis, Water Rate Structure Modifications, Multi-Year Water Rate Plan and
Proposition 218 Process Public Outreach Support Report

Dear Mr. LaMoreaux,

Robert D. Niehaus, Inc. (RDN) is pleased to provide this Financial Planning, Revenue Requirements, Cost of
Service, and Rate Setting Analysis Report (Report) to the Palmdale Water District (PWD or District). This rate
study includes a financial plan to determine the revenue requirements for the next five years and
comprehensive review of the District’s current rates based on cost of service principles. This Report outlines the
approach, methodology, findings and recommendations of the study. The Report also includes an extensive
customer billing impact study, rate comparison analysis, and drought surcharge setting analysis. Each of the
components of this study have enhanced the accuracy and equitability of the rates we propose.

The proposed rates were developed utilizing the District’s customer usage data, billing records, accounting,
operating and management records, capital plan, and policies. Based on the District provided data, key
assumptions were made for the study using appropriate resources and our econometric and finance expertise.
We are confident that the rates proposed in this Report are cost-based and equitable and are fully compliant
with Proposition (Prop) 218 and other legal requirements.

It has been an absolute pleasure and honor to work with your District. We thank you, Mr. Michael Williams, Mr.
Adam LY, Ms. Judy Shay, and other District Staff and the Board of Directors for the support provided during this
study.

Respectfully submitted,

DL D k.

Robert D. Niehaus, Ph.D. Ichiko Kido, MBA

Managing Director/Principal Economist Program Manager/Sr. Financial Analyst



TABLE OF CONTENTS

TABLE OF CONTENTS ....cuuuuuutuuununutenunnnuueneneseisiessisisssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssnes i
LIST OF TABLES ... s s s s s s s s s s s s s s s s s s s iii
LIST OF FIGURES.......ieuiiieiiiiuiiiiiireeisieeiieesieassirasstrasssrssssresssssssssesssssasssrsssssesssssssssenssssasssssssssesssssnssssnssssnsssnas "
EXECUTIVE SUIMMARY ....cuiiiiiuiiiniiiieiiiieiieeiieesiiiaitreessissssresssrsasssesssssasssrsssssesssssssssssssssasssssssssssssssnssssnssssassssas 1
DISTIICE OVEIVIEW .ttt a e s bt e e s b e e e s e b e e e s ebbe e e s smba e e s snbaeessanas 1
KBY ASSUMIPEIONS i e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e eaeaaeeaeaasaaesaeasaasaeeseeaaaeneanans ES-2
FINANCIAT PLAN ..ttt ettt e ettt e st e e bt e e s ab e e s be e e sabee s bbeeanteesabeeesabeesabeeesnseesaneeesareess ES-6
LYY= o TN =TT PPN ES-6
Operating and Maintenance (O&M) EXPENSE ....ccccueiecieeiiieeeiieecieeesteeeteesteeesreesteeessaeesnsesessseessseesnseeessseens ES-6
Capital IMProVEMENT EXPENSE .....uviiiiiiiiieeciiiee e ettt e eeittteeeeiteeeeeetteeeeeaataeeeaasteseesassaessaassaseesasseneesanssesesasseeenan ES-7
DB SEIVICE. ..ttt ettt ettt e bt e s bt e s bt e s a e e s ab e et e e bt e bt e eh et ehe e ea e e et e e bt e ebeesheesanesabe e be e beenes ES-7
RESEBIVES. ... et e e s e e e s e et s e te et e e s e ar e e e e e e e s ES-8
Financial Outlook without Rate AdjUSTMENTS.......ccciicuiiiiiiiiie et e e s srre e e s ES-8
Recommended Rate AdJUSTMENTS........iii ettt e e e st e e e sbe e e e s sbee e e e sbteeeesbaeeessnseeassnnes ES-9
YL T T Y=o (U1 =] o 1= o | RPN ES-9
RATE DS N i ES-10
RECOMMENAEA RAEES....ueiiiiiiiieii ettt sttt s et e bt e s reesaeesanesaneeneeneennees ES-11

I 1V 1120 10 11 o I [0 1-1
PUIPOSE OF STUAY ...ttt et e h et e bt et e sbesbe et e sbeeat e besaeeneesneeneeneas 1-1
Y= I o =T a 0 (=N Yo T o PPN 1-1
California Constitution-Article Xl C (PropoSition 26) .......cccueeeeeiiieeieiieee e eciieeeeecttee e e ecteee e e ecvree e s eeateeeeeensaeaeeans 1-1
California Constitution-Article Xl D, Section 6 (Proposition 218)........cccceeceeeiieeiiiieeireeeiee e esreeereeesevee s 1-2
California ConstitUtioN-ArtiCle X, SECTION 2 ......uuuiririiiiiiiiitiiiiiieeeeeeeeeeeeeeereaeeeeeresraerereerre——e—r———————rr——e—rer—e.————... 1-3
ASSEMDIY Bill-AB 2882 ...ttt ettt e e ettt e e et e e e et a e e e e ata e e e e atae e e e abaaeeeantbeeeeanbraeeeanraaeeeanrrneann 1-3
Assembly Bill-AB 1668 and Senate Bill-SB 606 ............cceieiieiiiiiiiiieee e eeectieee e e e e e eeerrree e e e e e e s rerre e e e e e e e esnsrneees 1-4
V=1 VoY Fo] Lo} .Y AN PP RPN 1-5
7 1Yo 1 Y I S 2-1
LT aF= Yo Vo l o o) =Tot o] o[- PSPPI 2-1

D | PRSPPI 2-1
HiISTOTICAl IMEEEI COUNTS. ...eiitiieitieiiie ettt ettt e sa e sttt e s a e e s bt e e sab e e sabeeemeeesabeeessseesnreesseeesareeenneeenns 2-5

[ LI oY o= VR -SSP 2-5
o] =T ot= 13 PP PP 2-8
Palmdale Water District - 2019 Financial Planning, Revenue i

Requirements, Cost of Service, and Rate Setting Analysis



Revenue Analysis (UNAEr CUITENT FATES)......occiciiii e ceceee ettt ettt e e e te e e e eeara e e e eeaaseeeeeasaeeeeassseeesannreeans 2-13

(LT =] YT PP PPP 2-14
Operating and Maintenance (O&M) EXPENSE .......ueiiierieeiiiirieeeeciteeeeeteeeeettee e eetaeeeesntaeeeesreeseesabaeesesnsaeesennsens 2-16
Capital IMProvVEMENT EXPENSE ......uiiiieiieee ittt e ettt e eette e e e ette e e ettt ee e sebeeeeesabaeeesentaeeeeansaeeeeansaeseeaseeessansenesennsens 2-16
DT SEIVICE. .. ettt b e s bt s he e st et e bt e h e e e h e e s a et et e e bt e bt b e e ehe e eae e et e e bt e nheenaeesareeane 2-17
REVENUE REGUITEIMENTS ittt ettt ettt e e e e s ettt e e e s s s aae bttt e e e e e e s bt beeeeeeeeesannsnbeaaeesesssnnneneees 2-18

3. COST OF SERVICE ANALYSIS ....cuiiueiiiiniiiniiiniiiiiieeiisasiiesssirasssrssssresssrsssssrsssssasssrsssssssssssnssssnssssnssssansss 3-1
Y I =12 1 I 4-1
LR N I =30 0. 1] [ S 5-1
Recommended Changes on the Current Rate StrUCTUIE.......ovciiiiiiciiee e 5-1
Water BUAZEt RAtE StIUCTUIE ..ciiiiiii ettt et e e s et e e e st e e e s st beeesssbeeeeesseeeeennseeeeennnees 5-1
T LI Y T o T | PP 5-6
OVEBIVIBW ... ittt ettt sttt e s b et e e s eab et e e s eab et e e s e b et e e s aaba e e e s abaeeessbeeeessanteeessanaaeesnans 5-6

A CCUTNACY i e e e e 5-8
21D I oo | A 61 =Y o PPN 5-10
EffECT ON AllOCALIONS ...ciiiiieeiie ettt ettt sat e s bt e s ab e e s bt e sbte e s bt e esateesabeesabeeesabeesnneeas 5-11
RECOMMENAEA RALES. .. ettt ettt sttt ettt e s bt e s at e st e et e et e e bt e bt e saeesabeenteebeenbeesaeesanenane 5-13
Fixed Charges fOr StUAY PEIIOM ........c.eiiii ittt e et e e e tte e e e e tte e e e ebte e e e eabtaeeeebtaeeesantaeaeanns 5-16
Volumetric Charges for STUAY PEriod .........ooooiiiii ittt e e e ebee e e eabe e e s e earaee e e ennes 5-17

Fire Protection Service/CONSTIUCTION IMEEEIS. ... .vuiiiierieeieeireeeeeetieee e sttt e e sste e e e sstbeeesssabeeessasbeeessssbeeesssrbeeessnns 5-17
Financial Planning with Proposed Rate AdjUStMENTS.......ccviiiiiciiiie ittt e e e sara e e 5-17

o -1 8 11T G I 6-1
Bill Impact on a Hypothetical Customer with a Median Parcel Size Lot.........ccoveeeeciiieieciiee et 6-1
Bill IMPActs 0N ACLUAI CUSTOMEIS ... .vveiiiiirieeieiieeeceitee e eeite e e e ettt e e e stre e e ssbaeeeesbteeessbtaeeesstaeesssteeessassneessnssneesnnes 6-2

7. DROUGHT SURCHARGE........ccoitiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiieiiiieieinireeeeeeeseseeesesesesesesese s e s e e e eeseeeseseeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeenenen 7-1
T - 1 1 IR o0 Y] 2 1 ] S 8-1
2 o o =111 D ) RN A-1
Detailed O&M EXPENSE ProjECHION ..ciii ittt e et e e e e e e e s re e e e e e e e e ennbeseeeeeaeeeeannsrennes A-1
Detailed CIP EXPENSE PrOJECLION ..ccviiiiiiiieie it ettt e e ettt e e ettt e e e tre e e e st e e e e s btaeeesabtaeeesasteeessnsaaeessssaeessnssneeeanes A-7
T Y VTN oo 1 oY SRR A-10
LO@N DOCUMEBNTS ...ciiiiiiiiiiiii ittt b b e e s bbb e e s s bbb s e s s bbb s e s s bbb s e e saabaee s A-14
SAMPIE EAGIE ACIIAI DAtA....uuiiiiieee it e et e e e e e e e sttt e e e e e e s e e s abateeeeeaeessanbebaneeeaeeesanrrtannaeaenaan A-18
Drought SUrCharge RESOIULION ......cciiii i iiieeee et e e e e e e et e e e e e e e bt te e e e e e e e e e nnstseeeeeaeeeennnsrnennes A-20
Palmdale Water District - 2019 Financial Planning, Revenue ii

Requirements, Cost of Service, and Rate Setting Analysis



LIST OF TABLES

Table ES 1. Revenue Escalation Factors Estimated for PWD, CY 2019 -CY 2024........cccooevviviiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiieeeeeeee, ES-5
Table ES 2. Expense Escalation Factors Estimated for PWD, CY 2019 — CY 2024.......coooviveeeeecieeeeriieeeesieee e ES-5
Table ES 4. AWWA EqUIValent IMEtEr RAtiOS .....uuiiiiiiiii e cciiee ettt sttt e st e e e tee e e s sbee e e esabee e s ssabeaesenaneeas ES-5
Table ES 5. Revenue Forecast for CY 2019 — CY 2024 .....oooiieieeiieeieeeite ettt sttt ettt e s ne s ES-6

Table ES 6. Projected Operating and Maintenance Expense and percentage Increase for CY 2019 — CY 2024 ...ES-7

Table ES 7. Scheduled Capital Improvement Projects for CY 2020 — CY 2024 ..........uriveeeeeeeeicrieeee e eeeivreeeees ES-7
Table ES 8. Debt Service Payments for CY 2019 — CY 2024 .......oeiieciieeeeeiee ettt eettee e eetre e s evae e s eevae e e e snaee e e naneeas ES-7
Table ES 9. Recommended Rate Adjustments, CY 2020 — CY 2024.......cccuieieieiieeeeeieee e ceieee e seieee e esreee s ssveee s saneeas ES-9
Table ES 10. Revenue Requirements for CY 2020 — CY 2024 .....cooovuvieeieiieeeeeieeeeeciteeeeseiteeessevteeesssvneeesssnsaeaseans ES-10
Table ES 11. Rate Study Summary of Recommended Changes...........ccoeciieeieciiee et eeree e eeve e e e ecree e ES-11
Table ES 12. Current and Proposed FiXed Charges.......coccuiiiiiiiiiiiciiieeeciiiee sttt estee e stee e s s vte e e s eaae e e s sneeeaseans ES-11
Table ES 13. Current and Proposed Volumetric Charges .......ccuviiieciiee ittt e et e e ntae e ES-11
Table ES 14. Proposed Drought SUICNAIEES .....ueieiccuiiee ettt ettt e et e e e e tte e e e e ate e e s ebteeesebaeeeeenreeaeaans ES-12
Table 2-1. Annual Change in Number of Location IDs by Customer Class ........ccceeecieeeeciieeccccieee e 2-10
Table 2-2. Revenue Forecast for CY 2019 — CY 2024 .......coiiiiieriieieeieeeiee sttt ettt s sr e s s e 2-14
Table 2-3. O&M Expenses by Type, CY 2019 — CY 2024 .....ccoocuieeeieiiie e ccieee e eetee e esttee e see e e e svae e s esbaeeessbaeeesnasees 2-16
Table 2-4. Debt Service Payments for CY 2019 — CY 2024 .......uvii ettt ettt ee e e e evae e e ebee e e e e raea e e anes 2-18
Table 2-5. Financial Plan with an 8.1% Annual Rate Adjustment, CY 2020 — CY 2024.........ccccveeeevcveeeecciieneenne 2-18
Table 2-6. Revenue Requirements for CY 2020 — CY 2024 ........oeiieeiieeeeeiiee e cctee e eettee e eete e e e svae e e esvae e s s sraee e eeanes 2-19
Table 3-1. O&M COSt AlIOCALION ....eeiiiiieeiee ettt ettt e b e bt e s ae e st st st e e beesbeesbeesateeaeeenseenaeens 3-3
Table 3-2. Five-Year Capital Expenditures Cost AlIOCAtiON.........uiiiiiiiieiiiiiie e e s e 3-4
Table 3-3. Rate Revenue Requirements for Test Year, CY 2020.........uueiiiuieeeiiiiieeiiiieeeesieeeesireeeesveee e ssveee s snanes 3-5
Table 4-1. Projected Water Use by Tier, CY 2020 — CY 2024......uuueeeeeeieecciieieeee e e eeecerteee e s e e e eseanraeeseaaesssnnssnneeaaaeeas 4-1
Table 4-2. Projected Water Supply by Source, CY 2020 — CY 2024 .....coeeoureeeecieeeeeieeeeeteeeesiree e e evee e e e nveee s e 4-1
Table 4-3. Water Source by Tier Allocation, CY 2020, in MilliONS ......ueiiiiiiiieiiiiee e 4-2
Table 5-1. Definition of Water Budget Tier Widths.........c.uii oot ettt e e e 5-5
Table 5-2. Eagle Aerial Land Cat@EOrIES ......uiiiciiiiiiiiiiee et e eitee e este e e e sre e e e stte e e e s tbeeessabaeeessbeeessnssaeeesnnseeessnssens 5-6
Table 5-3. Confusion Matrix for Surface ClassifiCations .........ccciiiiiiiiiriiiie et 5-9
Table 5-4. Confusion Matrix for EA Recommended Irrigable Classifications.........cccoeeeeciiiiicciiec e, 5-9

Palmdale Water District - 2019 Financial Planning, Revenue iii

Requirements, Cost of Service, and Rate Setting Analysis



Table 5-5. Confusion Matrix for RDN Recommended Irrigable Classifications..........cccccceeeieicciiiiiiece e, 5-9

Table 5-6. Fixed and Variable Cost Components, CY 2020........cccoiiiieiiiiiieeeiiiieeeeriieeessieeseesreessssreeeessseessssnnens 5-14
Table 5-7. Cost Allocation by Customer Class and Cost COMPONENT .........eeeviciieiiiiieeecciee et et 5-14
Table 5-8. Distribution of Costs to Tiers (Test Year, CY 2020)......cccceeivueeeieeeireeeiieeeseeesieeesveeesneesseessnsessseeessneas 5-15
Table 5-9. Recommended Rates for CY 2020 (TSt YEAI) ...cicivuureeiieieieeiirtreiee e e eeeeirreeeeeeeeeessreeereeeeesesssaseereeseeens 5-16
Table 5-10. Current (CY 2019) and Recommended Fixed Charges, CY 2020 - CY 2024 .......ccccoeeeeecrieeeeccreeeeenne 5-16
Table 5-11. Current (CY 2019) and Recommend Volumetric Charges, CY 2020 - CY 2024 ........cccoecuveeeeecrveeeennnen. 5-17
Table 5-12. Construction and Private Fire Protection Service Recommended Rates for the Study Period......... 5-17
Table 5-13. Financial Plan, CY 2019 (Current Year) plus CY 2020 — CY 2024.......cccccueeeeecrieeeecieeeeeiee e veee e 5-18
Table 7-1. Drought Reductions Based on Individual Customer Use Reduction, 2020 .........ccccevvvvereeeeeeicinrreeeeeeenn. 7-1
Table 7-2. Water Purchase Offset, CY 2020 t0 CY 2024 .......coooveiiiiiiiiiiiieeeeeeeeee 7-1
Table 7-3. Drought Surcharges in per HCF, CY 2020 t0 CY 2024 .......uveieeiiiieeeeieeeeetee e e ctee e e eitee e e e evee e s e nraee e e nnes 7-2

Palmdale Water District - 2019 Financial Planning, Revenue iv

Requirements, Cost of Service, and Rate Setting Analysis



LIST OF FIGURES

Figure ES 1. Palmdale Water DiStriCt SEIVICE Ar€a .......ccccveeiiiciieeeceiiee ettt e estre e e etre e e e eaae e e e eaba e e e eenbaeeeeensaeas ES-1
Figure ES 2. Residential Customers Account Growth, CY 2018 - 2024.......ccoovcieeiiiiieeeeeieee e esieee e erree e ssveee s saveeas ES-3
Figure ES 3. Non-Residential Customers Account Growth, CY 2018 - 2024.......cccovcieeieiiieeeeiieeeeeriee e esieee e ES-4
Figure ES 4. Annual Demand Projections for CY 2018 — CY 2024 .........ccccueieeecieeeeeieeeeeteee e eeeee e evee e e evae e e e eneeas ES-6
Figure ES 5. Cash Balance without Rate Adjustments for CY 2020 — CY 2024 ........ccceeeveiieeeeicriee e erveee e ES-9
Figure ES 6. Changes in Reserve Balance under Proposed RAtes.......ccccocueiiiriiieiiiiiiee et ssree e eseeee e ES-12
Figure 1-1. RoOad Map Of RAte STUAY ....ccccciiiiieiiie ettt e e et e e e ate e e s e ate e e s eaabe e e s eabaeesenreeeeennsees 1-5
Figure 2-1. Single Family Residential Historical Customer Growth, CY 2013 — CY 2018 ......ccoocvveeevcieeeerireee e 2-2
Figure 2-2. Non-Single Family Residential Historical Customer Growth, CY 20136 — CY 2018 .......cccccvveevvveeennnen. 2-3
Figure 2-3. Single Family Residential Historical ANNUAal USAGE.......cccuuviieiiiiiiiiieee ettt et 2-4
Figure 2-4. Non- Single Family Residential Historical ANNuUal USage .......ccuvviviiiiiiiiiiiiee ettt 2-4
Figure 2-5. Historical Per-Location Single Family Residential Usage (HCF) ......ccueereiiiee et 2-6
Figure 2-6. Historical Per-Location Multi-Family Residential Usage (HCF).......ccceeeeeiiieeiccieee e 2-6
Figure 2-7. Historical Per-Location Commercial and Industrial Usage (HCF) ......ccceoevueeiiiiiecieeciee e 2-7
Figure 2-8. Historical Per-Location Irrigation USage (HCF) ......c..ueiieiiiiieeiee ettt ettt 2-7
Figure 2-9. Historical Per Location Construction USAge (HCF) .......cccuuiiieiiiiie ettt 2-8
Figure 2-10. Forecast of Per Location Annual Consumption, Single Family Residential, 2020-2028..................... 2-9
Figure 2-11. Forecast of Per Location Annual Consumption, Non-Single Family Residential, 2020-2028............. 2-9
Figure 2-12. Projected Single Family Residential Location ID Growth, 2020-2028............ccceeecveeeeeeiiieeeeecriee e 2-10
Figure 2-13. Projected Non-Single Family Residential Location Growth, 2020-2028 ...........cccoceveeviieeevciieeeennee 2-11
Figure 2-14. Aggregate Yearly Single Family Residential Usage, 2014 (Actual) to 2028 (Projected)................... 2-11
Figure 2-15. Aggregate Yearly Non-Single Family Residential Usage, 2014 (Actual) to 2028 (Projected)........... 2-12
Figure 2-16. Percentage of Tiered Usage by Customer Class, 2018........cccceeeviieieiiiieeeciiieeeecieee e eeiree e eveee e 2-13
Figure 3-1. A typical Flow for Cost of Service ANalysis PrOCESS......cccuiiieeiiiieeeiiee e et e cectee e eeeree e e eearee e e eeaae e e eeaneas 3-1
Figure 5-1. Density FUNCEION OF LANG USE....ccccuiiiiieiiie ettt e ettt e e ettt e e e e are e e e eabeeeeeabaeaeenbeeaaennses 5-7
Figure 5-2. Percentage of Land Use DY Cat@ZOrY ...ccuuuiiiiiiiiiiciiie ettt e st e e s e e e e abe e e e s aaae e e e nbae e e enses 5-8
Figure 5-3. Parcel Size VerifiCation ........cccuii ittt e e et e e e e e tte e e e e abae e e e e bte e e eeabaeeeennnes 5-10
Figure 5-4. Irrigable Area VerifiCation ..........co ittt e et ee e e e ete e e e e be e e e e e abaee e eennes 5-11
Figure 5-5. Proposed Irrigable Area as Percentage of Parcel Ar€a ........ccccceeeeiveeeiicieeecciiee e eevee e eevee e e 5-12

Palmdale Water District - 2019 Financial Planning, Revenue v

Requirements, Cost of Service, and Rate Setting Analysis



Figure 5-6. Usage Distribution by Tier Current vs. PropoSEd........cceiiiecciiiiiieeieccciiiiee e e e eceireeee e e e e e esennneeee e e 5-13

Figure 6-1. Bill Impact on SFR Customers with Median Parcel Size .......cccueiiiriiiiiiiiiiee e 6-1
Figure 6-2. Bill Impact on SFR Customers With @ Large Parcel .......cccueeecciieieiciiiee et 6-2
Figure 6-3. Annual Customer Bills by Percent Change .......uuiiiiiiiiiiiiieeeeee ettt et e s e e sbee e s e 6-3
Figure 6-4. Customer Rate Change Distribution under Proposed Rates.........cccceeieiiieeiciiieecciiie et 6-3
Figure 8-1. Rate Comparison for Customers Using 17 ccf, July 2020 ..........ooeeiiiiieiciiiee et 8-2
Figure 8-2. Rate Comparison for Customers Using 45 ccf, July 2020 ..........oiiiiiiiiiiiiiiie et 8-3

Palmdale Water District - 2019 Financial Planning, Revenue Vi

Requirements, Cost of Service, and Rate Setting Analysis



EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

District Overview

Palmdale Water District (District; PWD) is in the southern Antelope Valley in Los Angeles County and includes the
central and southern portions of the City of Palmdale, as well as adjacent unincorporated areas of the County. The
District was established in 1918 as the Palmdale Irrigation District to supply irrigation water to approximately
4,500 acres of agricultural customers. As the population grew in the Antelope Valley, the District experienced
increased demand for domestic water, most notably in the 1950’s with the activation of Air Force Plant 42 and
increased use of Edwards Air Force Base. Today, the District serves approximately 115,000 people through 27,600
connections in a service area of approximately 187 square miles, supplying water to residential, irrigation, and
commercial customers. Figure ES 1 shows PWD’s current service area.

Figure ES 1. Palmdale Water District Service Area
I |
1
|

’|

AVENLEBL\\“ H AVENLUE P Lite Rock Wssh
EI l

i
Desert View Highlands H
AVENLE Q@ |

B
i

DVISION 8T
20T H ST EAST
30TH BT EAST
40T H 8T EAST
S0TH BT EABT
60T H 8T EAST
7OTH 8T EAST
BOTH BT EAST

e 10T H 8T E4ST

i)

AVENLE Q

PALMDALE BLVD PALMDALE BLVD

AVENLUE J— H AVENUE R
|
\
M

‘ | e Paimdale

U )]
©

AVENLE $

AVENLE $

| | Palmdale Water District

M - —

AVENUE T

gl AVENUE U

. Littlerock

TIERRA 8 UBIDA AVE

)U it AVENUE V
i

PWD maintains over 400 miles of pipeline, multiple well sites, booster pumping stations, and water storage tanks,
which combined have over 50 million gallons of capacity. The District’s water supply consists of 60 percent surface
water and 40 percent groundwater. Local surface water is stored in the Littlerock Reservoir (3,500-acre feet
capacity). PWD’s surface water supply includes an annual entitlement of 21,300-acre feet of water from the State
Water Project (SWP), which is funded by property taxes and separate transportation costs. Surface water is stored
at Lake Palmdale (4,100-acre feet capacity) and treated at the 35-mgd Leslie O. Carter Water Treatment Plant.
The District’s service area slopes upward from 2,600 feet to 3,800 feet above sea level toward the San Gabriel
Mountains and is divided into seven elevation zones.

Palmdale Water District - 2019 Financial Planning, Revenue ES-1
Requirements, Cost of Service, and Rate Setting Analysis



The District first implemented a water budget rate structure in 2009 to promote efficient water use. Under this
rate structure, each customer receives a monthly water budget based on various parameters such as the number
of people in the home, the property’s irrigable acreage, and the weather. The District offers a variance program
for customers to adjust their allocation, if necessary.

In April 2019, Palmdale Water District (PWD) retained Robert D. Niehaus, Inc. (RDN) to develop a comprehensive
water rate study, which includes financial planning, revenue requirements, cost of service, and rate-setting
analyses (Study). The overall goal of this Study is to develop a financial plan to identify necessary revenues to
meet the District’s financial needs and design rates which recover the costs from ratepayers commensurate with
their service requirements. RDN amended the District’s current rates to further improve equity, promote
efficiency and conservation, and ensure compliance with Proposition 218 (Prop 218) requirements and other legal
mandates.

Key Assumptions

For this rate study, a test year was selected for which costs are to be analyzed and rates to be established. The
study period is set to include the test year plus four subsequent years, creating a five-year study period. CY 2020
was chosen to be the test year for the PWD rate study, thus the study period was defined as CY 2020 through CY
2024. The District’s fiscal year starts on January 1 and ends on December 31.

All the analyses performed for this Study were based on an assumption of customer account growth (described in
detail in the Demand Projections section). RDN projects a slight increase (0.1%) in Single Family Residential (SFR)
customers, and a 0.2% increase in Multi-Family Residential (MFR) customers annually. Approximately 93% of the
District’s customers are SFR customers. Figure ES 2 displays the account growth for residential customers. The
count for CY 2018 is derived from customers’ billing records, and the numbers of accounts for the following six
years including CY 2019 (Current Year) plus CY 2020 — CY 2024 (study period) were projected based on the
historical data and input from the District.

Palmdale Water District - 2019 Financial Planning, Revenue ES-2
Requirements, Cost of Service, and Rate Setting Analysis



Figure ES 2. Residential Customers Account Growth, CY 2018 - 2024

25455 25476 25497 25518 25,539 25,560 25,581

25,000
20,000
15,000
10,000

2018 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023 2024

Location IDs

. Multi-Family Residential . Single Family Residential

RDN subcategorized commercial customers into three different groups, which include Industrial, Institutional, and
Commercial, in order to project their account growth and future consumption more accurately.

Commercial and Irrigation accounts are expected to decrease slightly by one or two accounts a year, and Industrial
and Institutional customers are projected to remain the same throughout the study period. Forecasted account
growth for non-residential customers is displayed in Figure ES 3.

Palmdale Water District - 2019 Financial Planning, Revenue ES-3

Requirements, Cost of Service, and Rate Setting Analysis



Figure ES 3. Non-Residential Customers Account Growth, CY 2018 - 2024

1,500
1,306 1,301 1,296 1,291 1,286 1,281 1,276

- I I I I
h I I I l I l I

2018 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023 2024

. Commercial . Industrial . Irrigation

. Construction Institutional Private Fire Protection

Location IDs

The current number of SFR customers based on the count of Location IDs is 24,914. This number is projected to
increase by 21 annually resulting in a total of 25,014 by the end of CY 2024. The total number of all customers
from all customer classes is projected to be 26,857 by the end of the study period, increasing by 80 accounts when
compared to the current total of 26,777 customers.

This study also makes an assumption in the projected escalation of revenues and expenses associated with both
operations and maintenance (O&M) and capital improvement project (CIP) expenditures. Escalation factors were
calculated for eight independent variables using historical Consumer Price Index (CPI) data from Los Angeles-
Riverside-Orange counties, CA, between 2000 and the most current calendar year, and projections by the
California Department of Transportation (CADOT) and the California Department of Finance (CADOF). Projected
construction costs were determined using data from the California Department of General Services Construction
Cost Index (CDGS CCl). Additionally, property tax increases were charted using audited financial statements
published by the County of Los Angeles. All escalation factors were developed by calculating an average growth
rate and projecting that rate into future years. Due to local contingencies, the cost of water inflation rate is
expected to rise at the highest rate, 7.3% per year. The employee expenses inflation rate, which includes salaries,
insurance, and payroll taxes, is only expected to rise 2.6% per year during the study period. Non-recurring expense
(one-time expense) and some contracted service expenses are not escalated based on District input. Table ES 1
and Table ES 2 display escalation factors estimated for PWD for the study period.

Palmdale Water District - 2019 Financial Planning, Revenue ES-4
Requirements, Cost of Service, and Rate Setting Analysis



Table ES 1. Revenue Escalation Factors Estimated for PWD, CY 2019 - CY 2024

Revenue Escalation Factors | CY 2019 | CY 2020 | CY 2021 | CY 2022 | CY 2023 | CY 2024

Utility/Treatment:
Water Sales:
General - Revenue:
Property Tax:
Investment Returns:
Connection Fees:
Water Quality Fees
No Escalation:

0.0%
0.0%
0.0%
0.0%
0.0%
0.0%
0.0%
0.0%

4.1%
0.0%
0.3%
2.0%
0.1%
0.3%
0.0%
0.0%

4.1%
0.0%
0.3%
2.0%
0.1%
0.3%
0.0%
0.0%

4.1%
0.0%
0.3%
2.0%
0.1%
0.3%
9.1%
0.0%

4.1%
0.0%
0.3%
1.9%
0.1%
0.3%
9.1%
0.0%

4.1%
0.0%
0.3%
1.9%
0.1%
0.3%
9.1%
0.0%

Table ES 2. Expense Escalation Factors Estimated for PWD, CY 2019 — CY 2024

Expense Escalation Factors CY 2019 | CY 2020 | CY 2021 | CY 2022 | CY 2023 | CY 2024

Overall Inflation Rate:
Utility/Chemical Inflation Rate:
Treatment Inflation Rate:

Purchased Water Inflation Rate
Employee Expenses Inflation Rate:
Equipment Inflation Rate:

Fuels and Automobile Inflation Rate:
Construction Inflation Rate:

No Escalation:

2.4%
4.1%
3.3%
7.3%
2.6%
0.8%
3.6%
3.0%
0.0%

2.4% 2.4%
4.1% 4.1%
3.3% 3.3%
7.3% 7.3%
2.6% 2.6%
0.8% 0.8%
3.6% 3.6%
3.0% 3.0%
0.0% 0.0%

2.4%
4.1%
3.3%
7.3%
2.6%
0.8%
3.6%
3.0%
0.0%

2.4%
4.1%
3.3%
7.3%
2.6%
0.8%
3.6%
3.0%
0.0%

2.4%
4.1%
3.3%
7.3%
2.6%
0.8%
3.6%
3.0%
0.0%

This study calculates equivalent meter counts using the American Water Works Association (AWWA) standards
shown in Table ES 3. The majority of District customers have %-inch meters, thus ratios established based on the
%-inch meter as 1.00 unit were used for this study. These ratios were used when the service requirements of

system capacity for each meter size was measured.

Table ES 3. AWWA Equivalent Meter Ratios

Equivalent

Meter
Ratios

5/8-in
3/4-in
1-in

1 1/2-in
2-in
3-in
4-in
6-in
8-in
10-in

0.67
1.00
1.67
3.33
5.33
10.00
16.67
33.33
53.33
76.67

Palmdale Water District - 2019 Financial Planning, Revenue
Requirements, Cost of Service, and Rate Setting Analysis

ES-5



Financial Plan

Aggregate water consumption was calculated by multiplying the constant per-account water usage with the
number of accounts each year. The District’s water demand final forecasts for the study period are displayed in
Figure ES 4.

Figure ES 4. Annual Demand Projections for CY 2018 — CY 2024

8,000

7,326

7,128 7,118 7,108 7,097 7,089 7,086
7,000
6,000
5,000

2018 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023 2024

CCF (Thousands)

Revenues

Based on the account growth and water demand projections, RDN forecasted rate revenues for the current year
and the study period using current rates, which totaled approximately $23.0 to $23.1 million annually. Other
operating revenues and non-operating revenue are estimated to provide supplemental revenue of $4.1 to $4.3
million a year. Thus, the District’s total revenues for the study period are estimated to be approximately $27.2 to
$27.3 million annually. Table ES 4 shows projected revenue flow for the current year (CY 2019) plus the study
period (CY 2020 — CY 2024).

Table ES 4. Revenue Forecast for CY 2019 — CY 2024

Revenue Type CY 2019 CY 2020 CY 2021 CY 2022 CY 2023 CY 2024

Revenues from Rates  $23,132,036 $23,113,310 $23,088,296 $23,063,174 $23,046,436 $23,032,091
Other Operating Revenues ~ $1,170,000 $1,172,625 $1,175,258 $1,177,899 $1,180,547 $1,183,204
Non-Operating Revenues ~ $2,850,000 $2,896,525 $2,943,971 $2,992,357 $3,039,261  $3,087,047
Total $27,152,036 $27,182,460 $27,207,525 $27,233,430 $27,266,244 $27,302,342

Operating and Maintenance (0&M) Expense

Table ES 5 displays the total O&M expense and annual percentage increase of overall cost for the current year (CY
2019) plus the study period (CY 2020 — CY 2024).

Palmdale Water District - 2019 Financial Planning, Revenue ES-6
Requirements, Cost of Service, and Rate Setting Analysis



Table ES 5. Projected Operating and Maintenance Expense and Percentage Increase for CY 2019 — CY 2024

|| cv2o19 | cv2020 | cv2021 | cv2022 | cy2023 | cy2024

Total O&M Expense $21,834,755 $23,104,573 $23,816,843 $24,555,534 $25,323,517 $26,124,472
% Annual Increase 5.8% 3E1% 3.1% 3.1% 3.2%

Capital Improvement Expense

The District plans to execute a total of $30.0 million Capital Improvement Projects (CIPs) throughout the study
period, CY 2020 - CY 2024. Some of the major projects include the recharge project design, well and booster
rehabilitation, sedimentation basin cleaning, and Stanridge water main replacement, among others. The District
plans to pay for the CIPs using cash revenue generated from customers’ rates (PAYGO) as well as proceeds from
a 2021 Revenue Bond for the amount of $20.0 million. Table ES 6 displays PWD’s scheduled CIPs by type for the
study period.

Table ES 6. Scheduled Capital Improvement Projects for CY 2020 — CY 2024

_ CY2020 | CYZ2021 | CY2022 | CY2023 | CY 2024

Replacement/New Equipment $440,217 $608,922 $375.113 $373.115 $483,704
Studies and Planning $604,985 $125,000 $200,000 $125,000 $125,000

Water Supply $512,177 $786,976 $806,143 $1,101,034 -
Replacement Capital Projects $3,056,808 $3,985,035 $4,469,925 $5,758,578 $2,554,233
New Capital Projects $578,810 - $529,664 - $3,120,913
Total CIP Expense $5,192,998 $5,505,934 $6,380,845 $7,357,728 $6,283,850

Debt Service

The District’s current debt service obligations are listed below in bullet points. The payments shown below (Table
ES 7) include interest and principal payments for the study period.

e 2012 Private Placement (annual payment of $1.4 million)

e 2013A Series Water Revenue Bonds (annual payment of $2.3 million until CY 2024, which increase to
$3.9 million thereafter)

e 2018A Series Water Revenue Bond (annual payment of $0.6 million until CY 2021, which increase to $0.8
million thereafter)

e Capital Leases Payable — 2017 ($0.2 million until CY 2021, which decrease to $90,000 in CY 2022 and is
the final payment for this loan)

PWD plans to issue another bond in CY 2021 to mitigate rate impacts on its customers. The 2021 Revenue Bonds
will increase the District’s total debt service obligation by $1.2 million annually beginning in CY 2022.

Palmdale Water District - 2019 Financial Planning, Revenue ES-7
Requirements, Cost of Service, and Rate Setting Analysis



Table ES 7. Debt Service Payments for CY 2019 — CY 2024

_ CY2019 | CY2020 | CY2021 | CY2022 | CY2023 | CY 2024

Principal $1,870,195 $1,927,762 $1,998,889 $2,728,646 $2,602,628 $2,810,000
Interest $2,596,719 $2,539,462 $2,469,762 $3,072,379 $3,107,865 $3,031,569
Debt Service Total $4,466,913 $4,467,225 $4,468,651 $5,801,025 $5,710,493 $5,841,569

Reserves

Prudent fiscal management requires that the District maintain reserve balances to meet working capital
requirements, meet unexpected increases in costs, and provide for emergencies. Currently, the District maintains
two types of reserve funds: legally restricted funds and Board-designated funds. The detailed description and
purpose of each reserve fund can be found in the District’s reserve policy Resolution No, 18-10 (APPENDIX). The
legally restricted funds include the Capital Improvement Fund, Bond Proceed Fund, Debt Service Reserve Fund,
and Rate Stabilization Fund. The Board-designated funds include Dam Self Insurance, O&M Operating Reserve,
O&M Emergency Reserve, and Unrestricted Reserves. The target total reserve for the Board-designated funds is
set at $16.2 million. The District estimates a reserve balance at the end of CY 2019 to be $11.6 million (S11.1
million in the Board-designated funds, and $0.5 million in the restricted funds). RDN recommends annual cash
contributions of $100,000 to the Rate Stabilization Fund, and $850,000 to the District’s O&M Emergency Reserve
to reach the target reserve level of $16.2 million by the end of the study period.

Financial Outlook without Rate Adjustments

Based on the projected total revenue and necessary costs to be covered for the study period, the District’s cash
reserves will be completely spent during CY 2021 if no rate adjustments are made. By the end of the study period,
the revenue shortfall will accumulate to $34.8 million, which represents a 44.4% cumulative deficit. Figure ES 5
shows the change in the District cash balance if no actions are taken for the study period.

Palmdale Water District - 2019 Financial Planning, Revenue ES-8
Requirements, Cost of Service, and Rate Setting Analysis



Figure ES 5. Cash Balance without Rate Adjustments for CY 2020 — CY 2024

Millions

$20

. B
B

($20)

($30)

($40)
Cy 2019 CY 2020 Cy 2021 CY 2022 CY 2023 Cy 2024

B Cash Balance ~ =—=Reserve Target e===Reserve Min Alert

Recommended Rate Adjustments

RDN recommends the District adjust rates by 8.1% upward annually in order to eliminate the cumulative deficit
and meet the reserve target by the end of the study period, CY 2024.

Table ES 8. Recommended Rate Adjustments, CY 2020 — CY 2024

T oy 200 | ov 2021 | ov 2uz2 | o 203 | o 2026

Overall Rate Adjustment 8.1% 8.1% 8.1% 8.1% 8.1%

Revenue Requirements

Table ES 9 displays PWD’s revenue requirements for CY 2020 — CY 2024. The total expense of each year is offset
by other operating revenues and non-operating revenues to compute a pure portion of revenue requirements
which need to be collected from customers’ water rates. Other obligations include CIP expense, contributions to
reserves ($950,000), and other miscellaneous expenses amounting to $0.5 million. Under the recommended
financial plan, revenue requirements are computed based on an annual rate adjustment of 8.1%. The negative
net balance indicates that cash reserves are used to supplement the shortfall for the year (CY 2020 and CY 2024),
and a positive net balance (CY 2021 — CY 2023) indicates that the amount is contributed to the cash reserves in
addition to the annual cash contribution scheduled to be put aside for the reserves.

Palmdale Water District - 2019 Financial Planning, Revenue ES-9
Requirements, Cost of Service, and Rate Setting Analysis



Table ES 9. Revenue Requirements for CY 2020 — CY 2024

CY2020 | Cvy2021 | cvy2022 | cYy2023 | cCY2024

Test Year
Other Operating Revenues  ($1,172,625) ($1,175,258) ($1,177,899) ($1,180,547) ($1,183,204)
O&M Expenses $23,104,573 $23,816,843 $24,555,534 $25,323,517 $26,124,472
Non-operating Revenues  ($2,896,525) ($2,943,971) ($2,992,357) ($3,039,261) ($3,087,047)
Other Obligations  $11,146,722 $5,955,151 $7,287,525 $7,196,993 $12,856,425
Net Balance ($5,196,656) $1,327,317 $1,460,933 $3,170,009 ($711,984)
Revenue Requirements $24,985,489 $26,980,083 $29,133,735 $31,470,711 $33,998,662

Rate Design

This study evaluated the current rates and financial condition of PWD and determined necessary rate adjustments
for the study period, CY 2020 - 2024. RND, in consultation with District staff, performed multi-level analysis to find
the most effective and equitable way to recover necessary revenues from customers’ rates. RDN proposes seven
adjustments to PWD’s water rate structure and water budget allocation methodologies.

RDN recommends that PWD:

e Adjust rates by 8.1% upward per year for each year throughout the study period to recover necessary
revenues to sustain the system,

e reduce the amount of water allocated as essential water from 66 Gallons per Capita per Day (GCPD) to
55 GCPD to align with the new State legislation,

e allocate a water budget to MFR customers using the same methodology as SFR customers to create
consistency among residential customers,

e remove the sixth usage tier from the rate structure and retain only five tiers to establish clear
connections between the costs and the pricing of tiered rates,

e base residential customer Tier 2 allocations on actual irrigable area as defined by parcel data provided
by Eagle Aerial (EA), rather than basing an arbitrary percentage (50%) of the total parcel size,

e create an Exempt Irrigation customer class for which the Landscape Factor (LF) is set at 1.0 to reflect
their specific water needs, and

e establish drought surcharges based on actual customer usage reductions (drought factors applied to
individual customers) rather than applying reductions to the aggregate tiered water demand.

All of the proposed changes are summarized in Table ES 10.

Palmdale Water District - 2019 Financial Planning, Revenue ES-10

Requirements, Cost of Service, and Rate Setting Analysis



Table ES 10. Rate Study Summary of Recommended Changes

Rate Study Executive Summary

Category Current Proposed
Indoor Allocation 66 GCPD 55 GCPD
Based on SFR

3-year Moving Average
\ by Month |

Water Budget
Allocation Formula

....................................................................................................................................................

‘. All Irrigation Exempt Irrigation :
| at Landscape Factor 0.7 | at Landscape Factor 1.0 |

‘ Based on Based on per
Drought Surcharges | Aggregate Demand | Customer Demand
' Reductions Reductions

Recommended Rates

Under the proposed plan, rates will be adjusted upward by 8.1% annually. The current and proposed fixed charges
and commodity rates are shown in Table ES 11 and Table ES 12 respectively.

Table ES 11. Current and Proposed Fixed Charges
Fixed Charge Monthly

T ehedChageMomny
sz

5/8-in $37.77 $38.22 $41.60 $45.52 $49.79 $54.43
3/4-in $37.77 $38.22 $41.60 $45.52 $49.79 $54.43
1-in $37.77 $38.22 $41.60 $45.52 $49.79 $54.43
1 1/2-in $113.30 $9299 $101.49  $111.51 $122.47  $134.37
2-in $173.74  $140.84  $153.81  $169.16  $185.96  $204.21
3-in $314.78  $252.48  $275.89  $303.69 $334.10 $367.16
4-in $516.26  $412.05 $450.38 $49596  $545.84  $600.07
6-in $1,019.96  $810.62 $886.21 $976.21 $1,074.72 $1,181.81
8-in $1,624.40 $1,289.09 $1,409.41 $1,552.74 $1,709.62 $1,880.17
10-in $2,329.60 $1,847.47 $2,019.99 $2,225.56 $2,450.56 $2,695.17

Table ES 12. Current and Proposed Volumetric Charges

Volumetric Charges per HCF

 Voumewcomrgesperwor

Tier 1 $0.88 $0.88 $0.93 $0.98 $1.03 $1.08
Tier 2 $1.01 $1.52 $1.63 $1.74 $1.86 $1.98
Tier 3 $2.86 $2.03 $2.15 $2.27 $2.40 $2.54
Tier 4 $4.31 $3.29 $3.51 $3.74 $3.98 $4.23
Tier 5 $5.57 $4.64 $5.01 $5.39 $5.79 $6.23
Tier 6 $7.16
Palmdale Water District - 2019 Financial Planning, Revenue ES-11

Requirements, Cost of Service, and Rate Setting Analysis



Table ES 13 shows the proposed drought surcharges for the different stages of drought conditions during the
study period.

Table ES 13. Proposed Drought Surcharges

20% Surcharge $0.35 $0.38 $0.40 $0.42 $0.45
30% Surcharge $0.54 $0.58 $0.61 $0.65 $0.69
40% Surcharge $0.79 $0.84 $0.89 $0.94 $1.00

Itis integral to the District to maintain the current high quality of service to its customers as well as cementing the
future stability of the system. To that end, the District is interested in maintaining a reserve balance, which ensures
that there is funding in the case of any disaster and any day-to-day operation of the system and repairs and
replacements of aging infrastructure emergency needs. The proposals outlined in this report will allow the District
to accomplish both goals without undue impact on ratepayers. Figure ES 6 shows the reserve balance through the
study period under the proposed rate plan. By adopting RDN’s plan, the District will reach its target cash balance
by the end of CY 2023 and maintain the target level for the remaining study period.

Figure ES 6. Changes in Reserve Balance under Proposed Rates

Millions
$18 $16.2 $16.4
S16
S14
512 $11.6 $12.1
$10 $9.7
$8 -
S6
S4
S2
SO
CY 2019 CY 2020 CY 2021 CY 2022 CY 2023 CY 2024

Current Year Test Year
mmm Actual Cash Balance

= Target Cash Balance $16.2 Million

Palmdale Water District - 2019 Financial Planning, Revenue ES-12
Requirements, Cost of Service, and Rate Setting Analysis



1.INTRODUCTION

Purpose of Study

The District last adopted rate changes in 2014, updating a 2009 water budget rate structure that established a
level of “efficient use” for individual customers defined by each customer’s class. Since the 2014 rates were
established, costs have escalated, long-term water supply source stability issues have continued, and new State
efficiency regulations have multiplied. RDN collaborated with PWD to evaluate the utility’s sustainability given the
District’s current and future financial conditions.

The objectives of the Study include:

1. Project water demands by customer class for the study period based on the historical data and the
District’s input.

2. Develop financial plans to ensure financial sufficiency to fund day-to-day operations and maintenance,
capital improvement and capital replacement projects, and debt service obligations, while building
healthy reserves up to the District’s target level,

3. Conduct a Cost of Service (COS) analysis to find the most optimal way to equitably allocate the costs of
providing service to customers in accordance with Prop 218,

4. Design rates based on the results of COS analysis by establishing a strong nexus between costs and pricing
of rates,

5. Perform a bill impact study to minimize impacts on customers while ensuring sufficient revenue recovery,

6. Conduct a water rate comparison study to find where the District positions itself in terms of the rates
when compared to neighboring agencies, and

7. Develop an administrative record, which effectively summarizes the findings of the Study.

Legal Framework

The primary goal of this study is to help PWD establish a rate structure that achieves the District’s objectives of
revenue stability, equitable cost recovery, and ratepayer affordability. This section of the report describes the
legal framework that was considered in the development of the rates to ensure that the calculated cost of service
rates provide a fair and equitable allocation of costs to the different customer classes.

Article XIlII C (Proposition 26), Article XIll D, Section 6 (Proposition 218) and Article X, Section 2 of the California
Constitution govern the principles applicable to this rate study. This rate study also relies on AB 2882, which
governs Allocation-Based Conservation Water Pricing (commonly referred to as “Water Budget Rate Structure”).
Additionally, this rate study addresses statutes laid out in bills AB-1668 and SB-606 concerning water-use
efficiency at the District level.

California Constitution - Article XIII C (Proposition 26)

The application of Proposition 26 in the structuring of water rates is presently undetermined. The San Juan
decision briefly touched upon one aspect of the Article Xlll C provisions enacted by Proposition 26, finding that

Palmdale Water District - 2019 Financial Planning, Revenue 1-1
Requirements, Cost of Service, and Rate Setting Analysis



tiered water charges would not appropriately be characterized as penalties. Other aspects of the application of
Proposition 26 to tiered rate structures may be addressed in future judicial decisions and legislative enactments.

The voters in the State approved Proposition 26 on November 2, 2010. Proposition 26 amended Article XlII C of
the State Constitution to expand the definition of “tax” to include “any levy, charge, or exaction of any kind
imposed by a local government” with listed exceptions. By means of these exceptions, Article Xlll C classifies
several types of charges, in addition to property-related charges, that are not taxes, such as charges for specific
services or benefits, regulatory charges and penalties.

Article XIII C’'s definition of “tax” lists the following exceptions: (1) a charge imposed for a specific benefit conferred
or privilege granted directly to the payer that is not provided to those not charged, and which does not exceed
the reasonable costs to the local government of conferring the benefit or granting the privilege; (2) a charge
imposed for a specific government service or product provided directly to the payer that is not provided to those
not charged, and which does not exceed the reasonable costs to the local government of providing the service or
product; (3) a charge imposed for the reasonable regulatory costs to a local government for issuing licenses and
permits, performing investigations, inspections, and audits, enforcing agricultural marketing orders, and the
administrative enforcement and adjudication thereof; (4) a charge imposed for entrance to or use of local
government property, or the purchase, rental, or lease of local government property; (5) a fine, penalty, or other
monetary charge imposed by the judicial branch of government or a local government, as a result of a violation of
law; (6) a charge imposed as a condition of property development; and (7) assessments and property-related fees
imposed in accordance with the provisions of Article XIII D.

Proposition 26 also provides that the local government bears the burden of proving by a preponderance of the
evidence that a levy, charge, or other exaction is not a tax, that the amount is no more than necessary to cover
the reasonable costs of the governmental activity, and that the manner in which those costs are allocated to a
payer bear a fair or reasonable relationship to the payer’s burdens on, or benefits received from, the
governmental activity. Like the proportionality requirements of Article XIIl D, assessment of rates under these
requirements, if applicable, would be supported by the cost of service approach.

California Constitution - Article XIII D, Section 6 (Proposition 218)

In November 1996, California voters passed Proposition 218, the “Right to Vote on Taxes Act.” This constitutional
amendment protects taxpayers by limiting the methods by which local governments can create or increase taxes,
fees and charges without taxpayer consent. Between 2002 and 2017, California courts have ruled that fees
associated with providing water services are “property-related” and thus under the jurisdiction of Prop 218. The
principal requirements for fairness of the fees, as they relate to public water service, are as follows:

1. Revenues derived from the fee or charge shall not exceed the funds required to provide the property
related service.

2. Revenues derived by the fee or charge shall not be used for any other purpose other than that for which
the charge was imposed.

3. The amount of the fee or charge imposed upon any parcel shall not exceed the proportional cost of
service attributable to the parcel.

4. Reliance by an agency on any parcel map, including, but not limited to, an assessor’s parcel map, may be
considered a significant factor in determining whether a fee or charge is imposed as an incident of
property ownership for purposes of this article.

Palmdale Water District - 2019 Financial Planning, Revenue 1-2
Requirements, Cost of Service, and Rate Setting Analysis



The rates developed in this Report use a methodology to establish an equitable system of charges that recover
the cost of providing service and fairly apportion costs to each customer as required by Proposition 218.

California Constitution - Article X, Section 2

Article X, Section 2 of the California Constitution (established in 1976) provides as follows:

“It is hereby declared that because of the conditions prevailing in this State the general welfare requires that the
water resources of the State be put to beneficial use to the fullest extent of which they are capable, and that the
waste or unreasonable use or unreasonable method of use of water be prevented, and that the conservation of
such waters is to be exercised with a view to the reasonable and beneficial use thereof in the interest of the
people and for the public welfare.”

As such, public agencies are constitutionally mandated to maximize the beneficial use of water, prevent waste,
and encourage efficiency which this Study achieves.

Assembly Bill-AB 2882

In 2008, the California Legislature adopted AB 2882, establishing a body of law entitled “Allocation-Based
Conservation Water Pricing.” AB 2882 is consistent with the above referenced constitutional provisions.

Water Code Section 370 provides in part as follows:
“The Legislature hereby finds and declares all of the following:

a. The use of allocation-based conservation water pricing by public entities that sell and distribute water is
one effective means by which waste or unreasonable use of water can be prevented and water can be
saved in the interest of the people and for the public welfare, within the contemplation of Section 2 of
Article X of the California Constitution.

b. It is in the best interest of the people of California to encourage public entities to voluntarily use
allocation-based conservation water pricing, tailored to local needs and conditions, as a means of
increasing efficient uses of water, and further discouraging wasteful or unreasonable use of water under
both normal and dry-year hydrologic conditions.”

Water Code Section 372 provides as follows:

a. “Apublic entity may employ allocation-based conservation water pricing that meets all of the following
criteria.

(1) Billing is based on metered water use.

(2) A basic use allocation is established for each customer account that provides a reasonable amount
of water for the customer’s needs and property characteristics. Factors used to determine the basic
use allocation may include, but are not limited to the number of occupants, the type or classification
of use, the size of lot or irrigated area, and the local climate data for the billing period. Nothing in
this chapter prohibits a customer of the public entity from challenging whether the basic use
allocation established for that customer’s account is reasonable under the circumstances. Nothing in
this chapter is intended to permit public entities to limit the use of property through the
establishment of a basic use allocation.

(3) A basic charge is imposed for all water used within the customer’s basic use allocation, except that
at the option of the public entity, a lower rate may be applied to any portion of the basic use

Palmdale Water District - 2019 Financial Planning, Revenue 1-3
Requirements, Cost of Service, and Rate Setting Analysis



allocation that the public entity has determined to represent superior or more than reasonable
conservation efforts.

(4) A conservation charge shall be imposed on all increments of water use in excess of the basic use
allocation. The increments may be fixed or may be determined on a percentage or any other basis,
without limitation on the number of increments, or any requirement that the increments or
conservation charges be sized, or ascend uniformly, or in a specified relationship. The volumetric
prices for the lowest through the highest priced increments shall be established in an ascending
relationship that is economically structured to encourage conservation and reduce the inefficient
use of water, consistent with Section 2 of Article X of the California Constitution.

(1) Except as specified in subdivision

(a) The design of an allocation-based conservation pricing rate structure shall be determined in the
discretion of the public entity.

(2) The public entity may impose meter charges or other fixed charges to recover fixed costs of water
service in addition to the allocation-based conservation pricing rate structure.

c. A public entity may use one or more allocation-based conservation water pricing structures for any class
of municipal or other service that the public entity provides.”

Assembly Bill-AB 1668 and Senate Bill-SB 606

In 2018, the California Legislature adopted AB 1668 and SB 606, establishing a standard for indoor water use, long-
term standards for efficient water use of commercial, industrial, and institutional customers, and penalties for
customers who don’t comply with use restrictions. The bill establishes “55 gallons per capita daily as the standard
for indoor residential water use” until January 1, 2025, “52.5 gallons per capita daily or a standard recommended
by the department and the board as the standard for indoor residential water use” until January 1, 2030, and
establishes “the greater of 50 gallons per capita daily or a standard recommended by the department and the
board as the standard for indoor residential water use” thereafter. The bill also establishes principals for
determining efficient outdoor water use. “Principles of the model water efficient landscape ordinance’ means
those provisions of the model water efficient landscape ordinance applicable to the establishment or
determination of the amount of water necessary to efficiently irrigate both new and existing landscapes.

These provisions include, but are not limited to, all of the following:
(a) Evapotranspiration adjustment factors, as applicable.
(b) Landscape area.
(c) Maximum applied water allowance.
(d) Reference evapotranspiration.

(e) Special landscape areas, including provisions governing evapotranspiration adjustment factors for
different types of water used for irrigating the landscape.”

“For landscape irrigated through dedicated or residential meters or connections, water efficiency equivalent to the
standards of the Model Water Efficient Landscape Ordinance set forth in Chapter 2.7 (commencing with Section
490) of Division 2 of Title 23 of the California Code of Regulations, as in effect the later of the year of the landscape’s
installation or 1992. An urban retail water supplier using the approach specified in this subparagraph shall use

Palmdale Water District - 2019 Financial Planning, Revenue 1-4
Requirements, Cost of Service, and Rate Setting Analysis



satellite imagery, site visits, or other best available technology to develop an accurate estimate of landscaped
areas.”

As noted in the referenced statutes, an “Allocation-Based Conservation Water Pricing Rate Structure” is a form of
an increasing block rate structure where the amount of water within the first block or blocks is based on the
estimated, efficient water needs of the individual customer, currently 55 gallons per day per person. This Study,
in conjunction with the District’s findings and determinations for individual customers, establishes a water budget
for each customer. Each water budget defines how much water is considered efficient. Customers who use water
in excess of their water budget pay a higher rate for their “inefficient or wasteful” usage due to the fact that water
use in excess of budgeted amounts requires the District to purchase more expensive imported water.

Methodology

Water rates were developed using cost of service principles set forth by the American Water Works Association
(AWWA) Principles of Water Rates, Fees, and Charges - Manual of Water Supply Practices (M1). Cost of service
principles endeavor to distribute costs to customers commensurate with the service requirements placed on the
water system. This Study uses the base-extra capacity method, described in the AWWA M1. This method conforms
to Prop 218 requirements and industry standards while meeting other emerging goals and objectives of the utility.
Figure 1-1 presents a typical process of multi-level analyses in order to complete a rate study.

Figure 1-1. Road Map of Rate Study

Perform Revenue Identify Costs
Project Demands Analysis under (O&M, CIP, Other
Current Rates Obligations)
Determine Determine Identify
Revenue Necessary Rate Deficit/Surplus for
Requirements Adjustments 5-Yr Period
v
Perf?rm gost 9f z Perform Bill
Service Analysis Design Rates Impact Stud
for the Test Year P y
v D >
Finalize Proposed Perform Bill
Rates Comparison Study
>
Palmdale Water District - 2019 Financial Planning, Revenue 1-5

Requirements, Cost of Service, and Rate Setting Analysis



This Page Intentionally Left Blank

Palmdale Water District - 2019 Financial Planning, Revenue
Requirements, Cost of Service, and Rate Setting Analysis

1-6



2. FINANCIAL PLAN

RDN forecasted the District’s revenues and expenses for the study period, CY 2020 — CY 2024. The base model
uses a cash-needs approach for operating and maintenance (O&M) expenses, debt service payments,
contributions to reserves, and capital expenditures funded from rate revenues (PAYGO). This approach mirrors
the accounting and reporting practices of most public water utilities. Costs were based on recent financial data
and operating budgets. Projections were developed using escalation factors specific to each type of cost incurred.
Particular attention was paid to those costs which vary with the volume of water sold — such as purchased water,
power, chemicals, and related consumables (variable costs) — and those costs which, over the five-year forecast
period, do not vary with the volume of sales — such as capital costs, debt service, general administrative overhead,
or fixed contractual purchase obligations (fixed costs). District policies regarding reserves and debt service
coverage ratio targets also have an impact on its revenue requirements and, therefore, cost of service (COS)
analysis and rates.

Demand Projections

Demand projection is the first and one of the most critical steps in the rate study process. The purpose of this
analysis is to project customers’ water demand for the study period and forecast revenues generated from
customers’ volumetric charges. RDN linked three different data sources provided by PWD using Location IDs since
they are the only common identifier in the all data sources. The data we used to forecast demand for the study
period include:

e (CY 2010 - CY 2016 annual consumption reports
e January 2017 - July 2017 monthly consumption reports, and

e Customer billing record data for CY 2018

Data

Due to differences in data sources provided by PWD it was necessary to produce a multi-level statistical program
in R (a software environment for statistical computing) to make a coherent data set. Before beginning the analysis,
RDN removed data years that were wholly inconsistent with the format which would be used for the use
projections. PWD changed billing software in 2012, which led to a spurious jump in the number of Location IDs
from 2012 to 2013; therefore, we omitted data from 2010 to 2012 and proceeded with the annual data set from
2013 to 2018. Other data problems in the remaining data set were dealt with in a granular manner to reduce
potential errors. The following is a detailed explanation of the elutriation process used by RDN.

In order to get an annual observation for 2017, we reconciled the monthly consumption reports for January-July
of 2017 with the monthly meter read data available for the rest of the year. Monthly consumption reports did not
have customer class information, so we matched customer class data from a Meter Location Inventory file
provided by PWD with the monthly consumption reports by Location ID. Approximately 1% of Locations in the
Meter Location Inventory data set are missing customer class. Because roughly 95% of PWD customers are Single
Family Residential, we assumed that the locations missing customer class were Single Family Residential accounts.

To calculate usage for 2017, we simply added up usage by customer class for the two data series. However, when
calculating the number of locations for the reconciled data set, the number of locations by customer class were

Palmdale Water District - 2019 Financial Planning, Revenue 2-1
Requirements, Cost of Service, and Rate Setting Analysis



much higher than all other years. Because of the remarkable consistency of location numbers across the rest of
the series, it is likely that this inconsistency is an artifact of the monthly consumption report data utilized to
calculate number of locations. Therefore, we estimated the number of locations for 2017 based on the number
of locations from the reliable meter read data available for the latter part of the year.

To estimate the number of locations for 2017, we first calculated the number of locations in the meter reading
data, which was the number of locations from August-December of 2017. Then, we estimated how far below the
annual number of locations this value was based on 2018 meter reading data by calculating the ratio of location
numbers from August-December 2018 to location numbers in 2018 annually. The ratio of location numbers
annually to location numbers in August-December of 2018 was approximately 1.05. Therefore, we multiplied the
number of locations in August-December 2017 by the escalation factor (1.05) to estimate the annual number of
locations by customer class for 2017. Figure 2-1 and Figure 2-2 present SFR and non-SFR customers’ historical
account growth CY 2013 through CY 2018, respectively.

Figure 2-1. Single Family Residential Historical Customer Growth, CY 2013 — CY 2018

25,200
[72]
o
=
il
§ 25,100
S)
|
o 2
9 ;
g
( e
=)
6 25,000
5]
el
=
=)
z

24 900

2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018
- Single Family Residential
Palmdale Water District - 2019 Financial Planning, Revenue 2-2

Requirements, Cost of Service, and Rate Setting Analysis



Figure 2-2. Non-Single Family Residential Historical Customer Growth, CY 20136 — CY 2018

——h‘-\_ ol

é 600
= a
§e)
©
O
o
-
o 400
3
g
[ o=
|
kS
2 200
IS
=)
z

0

2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018
—=— Commercial & Industrial == Irrigation
=== Construction —== Multi-Family Residential

Finally, we analyzed the remainder of the monthly meter reading data available through 2018, calculating usage
and number of locations by customer class. Prior to aggregating the meter reading data, we followed instructions
from PWD and dropped all recycled water accounts as these accounts are pass-through accounts to the Palmdale
Recycled Water Authority, which is an entity separate from PWD. Additionally, we moved all accounts defined by
the customer class “Other” to the “Commercial & Industrial” customer class. The above cleaning process
ultimately yielded a cohesive annual demand dataset. Figure 2-3 and Figure 2-4 show the historical demand for
SFR and non-SFR customers, respectively.

Palmdale Water District - 2019 Financial Planning, Revenue 2-3
Requirements, Cost of Service, and Rate Setting Analysis



Figure 2-3. Single Family Residential Historical Annual Usage

14,000
T 13,000
<
()
(@)}
S 12,000
o
©
3
S 11,000
< ,
10,000
9,000
2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018
—~=— Single Family Residential
Figure 2-4. Non- Single Family Residential Historical Annual Usage
3’000 \/‘;
< 2,000
Q
(o))
(M)
(2
2 -\.\ ——
= g
=3
S 1,000
< ’ -%—.\‘ __/__ﬁ.
B i
2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018

~+= Commercial & Industrial === Irrigation

=== Construction ~== Multi-Family Residential

Palmdale Water District - 2019 Financial Planning, Revenue
Requirements, Cost of Service, and Rate Setting Analysis

2-4



Historical Meter Counts

First, we estimated Location ID growth by customer class from 2013-2018. Customers pay fixed charges for each
meter they have. It follows that, from a revenue forecasting standpoint, we are more interested in the growth of
the number of meters than of Location IDs. However, Location ID is the only identifier variable present in all data
sets, so we forecast Location ID growth and adjust accordingly to estimate meter growth. The technical steps are
outlined in this section.

First, we regressed the number of unique Location IDs based on time for each customer class and stored the time
coefficient. This coefficient represents the annual change in Location ID by customer class.

Next, we scaled up this coefficient to account for the fact that there are more meters than locations. We multiplied

26,416 L
6410 »~ 1.008. This time trend
26,216

coefficient now represents the number of meters added or lost for PWD each year.

the coefficient by the ratio of unique meter IDs to unique Location IDs, or

Next, we collected current meter counts by customer class from December 2018 customer billing data, relying on
this data set because meter reading data does not account for customers with zero usage. It follows that utilizing
meter reading data would underestimate the true number of meters paying fixed charges to PWD.

PWD customers are charged monthly service charges according to their meter size. These charges appear in the
billing data with a column that contains a line item description which details the size of the meter, a column with
the monthly service charge corresponding to the meter size, and a quantity column that displays the proportion
of the month that a monthly service charge was applied to. For example, if a customer switched from a 1-in meter
to a 2-in meter halfway through the month, they would be charged the sum of 50% of the 1-in meter monthly
service charge and 50% of the 2-in meter monthly service charge. Approximately 98.6% of customers were
charged a monthly service charge with a quantity of 1.0 for December 2018 billing data, which is intuitive as most
customers are not switching meters in a given month.

In addition to being charged a monthly service charge quantity of less than one for switching meters, some
accounts were also charged a reduced monthly service charge if the account switched. In this case, the last two
digits of the account number would be one higher than prior to the switch. It is important for the meter count to
drop the first observation of a meter in the above scenarios, so as not to double count a meter that has been
replaced or moved to another account. We extracted meter size from the monthly service charge description in
the billing data.

The above process generated the final meter count, to which we allocated estimated meter growth across meter
sizes according to their overall size and their distribution within each customer class. For example, roughly 16% of
Single Family Residential meters are 1-in meters, so 16% of annual growth of Single Family Residential growth was
allocated to 1-in meters within this customer class.

Because monthly fire protection charges do not include the meter size, RDN matched meter sizes from the Meter
Location Inventory dataset provided by PWD. Some locations in this data set had multiple meter sizes. RDN
assumed the fire protection charges were for the largest meter at the location. The Fire Protection Class includes
both Private Fire Protection and Fire Service Accounts in Commercial & Industrial.

Historical Usage

As we are interested in aggregate usage, we use per location usage as Location ID is the constant customer
identifier present throughout the series. By implementing per location usage, we do not need to make any

Palmdale Water District - 2019 Financial Planning, Revenue 2-5
Requirements, Cost of Service, and Rate Setting Analysis



unnecessary assumptions to adjust from per location usage to per-meter usage when projecting aggregate usage.
Figure 2-5 through Figure 2 9 display the historical trend in per location usage by customer class.

Figure 2-5. Historical Per-Location Single Family Residential Usage (HCF)

250
S
£ 225
(]
(o]
(3]
2]
=)
=
§e]
= 200
o
o
=
@
o
175
2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018
—=— Single Family Residential
Figure 2-6. Historical Per-Location Multi-Family Residential Usage (HCF)
1,300
S 1,200
=
()
(o]
(1Y)
(2]
)
& 1,100
T
(8]
o
.
@
o
1,000
900
2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018
=== Multi-Family Residential
Palmdale Water District - 2019 Financial Planning, Revenue 2-6

Requirements, Cost of Service, and Rate Setting Analysis



Figure 2-7. Historical Per-Location Commercial and Industrial Usage (HCF)

2,100
S 1,900
E=
()
(o]
)
2]
)
§ 1,700
©
(8]
o
=
@
o
1,500
1,300
2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018
~=— Commercial & Industrial
Figure 2-8. Historical Per-Location Irrigation Usage (HCF)
2,000
S
=
S 1,800
(1Y)
(2]
)
| =
Re]
S 1,600
=
@
o
1,400
2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018
=== |rrigation

Palmdale Water District - 2019 Financial Planning, Revenue
Requirements, Cost of Service, and Rate Setting Analysis

2-7



Figure 2-9. Historical Per Location Construction Usage (HCF)

1,250

1,000

750

500

Per-Location Usage (hcf)

250

2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018

Construction

Per location consumption in three customer classes (Commercial & Industrial, Construction, and Irrigation)
increases throughout the series. Alternatively, there is a general decline in the consumption of residential classes.
For residential customers, there was a large decrease in per account consumption going into 2015, which
coincided with severe drought and mandatory water reductions imposed by the state of California.

We regressed per location usage based on time to estimate the time trend (shown by the black lines in the figures).

Based on a recommendation from PWD, per-location usage for Construction accounts has been held constant.

Forecasts

The next step is to forecast aggregate usage. Unlike monthly service charges that vary by meter size, volumetric
rates are constant across various meter sizes. Therefore, we forecast usage by customer class as a whole. In order
to do so, we utilized trends in both customer growth and per location usage. To forecast aggregate usage, we will:

(1) forecast per location usage by customer class according to historical trends,

(2) forecast the number of locations by customer class according to historical trends, and

(3) multiply forecasted per location usage by projected number of locations by customer class.
To forecast per location consumption, we assume these linear trends will continue with the following caveats:

(1) per location consumption in the first four customer classes will no longer continue to increase in the second
half of the forecast period, as it is unlikely these increases are sustainable, and

(2) per location consumption for the residential classes will never drop below 2015 levels because drought
conditions and mandatory reductions in 2015 make this a reasonable baseline consumption level.

Palmdale Water District - 2019 Financial Planning, Revenue 2-8
Requirements, Cost of Service, and Rate Setting Analysis



Applying these linear trends and restrictions provides the per location consumption forecasts shown in Figure 2-
10 and Figure 2-11.

Figure 2-10. Forecast of Per Location Annual Consumption, Single Family Residential, 2020-2028

194

192

190

Per Location Annual Consumption (hcf)

188

2020 2022 2024 2026 2028

—=— Single Family Residential

Figure 2-11. Forecast of Per Location Annual Consumption, Non-Single Family Residential, 2020-2028

(8]

5 //—~

= | e

=)

5

E 1,750

7]

c

o

(5]

©

3

€ 1,500

<

c

9

©

(8]

S 1,250

@

o
2020 2022 2024 2026 2028
—~— Commercial & Industrial == Irrigation
-+ Construction —== Multi-Family Residential

Palmdale Water District - 2019 Financial Planning, Revenue 2-9

Requirements, Cost of Service, and Rate Setting Analysis



Table 2-1 displays an annual change in number of customers by customer class. Applying the location growth
factor generates the projected number of locations by customer class throughout the forecasting period,
displayed in Figure 2-12 and Figure 2-13.

Table 2-1. Annual Change in Number of Location IDs by Customer Class

Annual
Class
Change

Commericial & Industrial -2
Construction -2

Irrigation -1

Multi-Family Residential 2
Single Family Residential 21

Figure 2-12. Projected Single Family Residential Location ID Growth, 2020-2028

25,400
2
IS 25,300
©
(8]
(o]
|
2 25200
(0]
Ke]
€
=}
P
25,100
25,000
2020 2022 2024 2026 2028
—=— Single Family Residential
Palmdale Water District - 2019 Financial Planning, Revenue 2-10

Requirements, Cost of Service, and Rate Setting Analysis



Figure 2-13. Projected Non-Single Family Residential Location Growth, 2020-2028

600

400

Number of Locations

200

2020 2022 2024 2026 2028

== Commercial & Industrial === Irrigation

—=— Construction === Multi-Family Residential

In the next step, we multiplied per location usage by the number of locations, which provides aggregate usage by
year and customer class. Figure 2-14 and Figure 2-15 display the historical and forecasted aggregate usage by
customer class.

Figure 2-14. Aggregate Yearly Single Family Residential Usage, 2014 (Actual) to 2028 (Projected)

14,000

13,000

12,000

Total Usage (AF)

11,000

10,000

9,000

2014 2016 2018 2020 2022 2024 2026 2028

—— Single Family Residential

Palmdale Water District - 2019 Financial Planning, Revenue 2-11
Requirements, Cost of Service, and Rate Setting Analysis



Figure 2-15. Aggregate Yearly Non-Single Family Residential Usage, 2014 (Actual) to 2028 (Projected)

3,000

2,000

Total Usage (AF)

1,000 v

2014 2016 2018 2020 2022 2024 2026 2028

~=— Commercial & Industrial == Irrigation

—=— Construction —== Multi-Family Residential

The final step completed in this analysis was to calculate tiered usage. Palmdale Water District has a six-tier rate
structure. We identified the distribution of tiered consumption from billing data from 2018 (analyzed previously).
The distribution of tier consumption across customer classes is displayed in Figure 2-16. We multiplied the above
tier percentages by the aggregate water consumption estimated in previous steps. Palmdale Water District has a
leak variance program, where the District reimburses customers who were billed for excessive usage because of
a leak. The District estimated that 30% of Tier 6 usage for Single Family Residential accounts were retroactively
billed as Tier 2 usage. Therefore, we shifted 30% of Tier 6 usage to Tier 2 for Single Family Residential Customers.

Palmdale Water District - 2019 Financial Planning, Revenue 2-12
Requirements, Cost of Service, and Rate Setting Analysis



Figure 2-16. Percentage of Tiered Usage by Customer Class, 2018

100%

75%
50%
25%
cal CNS IRR MFR SFR

Tier 6 Tier 4 - Tier 2

. Tier 5 . Tier 3 . Tier 1

Note: Customer Classes are abbreviated Single-Family Residential (SFR), Multi-Family Residential (MFR), Irrigation (IRR), Construction
(CNS), and Commercial and Industrial (C&I)

Percentage of Use

Based on the historical data, the average yearly usage per customer was computed to project future demand
within the District.

Revenue Analysis (Under current rates)

Based on the demand projections, RDN conducted a revenue analysis using the current rates. The District currently
collects revenues from fixed charges, volumetric charges, and other operating revenues such as wholesale water
and turn-on and -off fees. The revenue analysis also includes non-operating revenues such as property taxes, DWR
fixed charge recovery, interest income and grants, and others. Note that the District additionally charges a
treatment fee to all customers and elevation fees to some customers, which vary depending on the location of
their residence. These are pass-through charges and will be calculated and updated by the District annually. These
charges are not included in this Summary Report; however, the information can be found on the District’s website

at www.palmdalewater.org.

Based on the projected water demands, RDN forecasted revenues for the study period under current rates to total
approximately $23.0 to $23.1 million annually. Other operating revenues are estimated to be approximately $1.2
million per year, and non-operating revenues are estimated to provide supplemental revenue of $2.9 to $3.1
million a year. Thus, the District’s total revenues for the study period are estimated to be approximately $27.2 to
$27.3 million annually. Table 2-2 shows forecasted revenues for the current year (2019) plus the study period (CY
2020 - CY 2024).

Palmdale Water District - 2019 Financial Planning, Revenue 2-13

Requirements, Cost of Service, and Rate Setting Analysis


http://www.palmdalewater.org/

Table 2-2. Revenue Forecast for CY 2019 — CY 2024

| cv2o1e CY 2020 CY 2021 CY 2022 CY 2023 CY 2024

Revenues from Rates

Volumetric Charges $9,296,660 $9,277,330 $9,251,713  $9,225,987 $9,208,646 $9,193,696
Fixed Charges $13,835,376 $13,835,980 $13,836,584 $13,837,187 $13,837,791 $13,838,394
Revenues from Rates Total $23,132,036 $23,113,310 $23,088,296 $23,063,174 $23,046,436 $23,032,091

Other Operating Revenues

Wholesale Water $295,000 $295,000 $295,000 $295,000 $295,000 $295,000
Other $875,000 $877,625 $880,258 $882,899 $885,547 $888,204
Other Operating Revenues Total $1,170,000 $1,172,625 $1,175,258 $1,177,899 $1,180,547 $1,183,204

Non-Operating Revenues

Assessments (1%) $1,750,000 $1,785,000 $1,820,700 $1,857,114 $1,892,399  $1,928,355
Successor Agency Component (Prop Tay $550,000 $561,000 $572,220 $583,664 $594,754 $606,054
DWR Fixed Charge Recovery $175,000 $175,000 $175,000 $175,000 $175,000 $175,000
Interest $150,000 $150,150 $150,300 $150,450 $150,601 $150,752
Capital Improvement Fees $75,000 $75225 $75,451 $75,677 $75,904 $76,132
Grants - State & Federal $100,000 $100,000 $100,000 $100,000 $100,000 $100,000
Other $50,000 $50,150 $50,300 $50,451 $50,603 $50,755
Non-Operating Revenues Total $2,850,000 $2,896,525 $2,943,971 $2,992,357 $3,039,261 $3,087,047
Total $27,152,036 $27,182,460 $27,207,525 $27,233,430 $27,266,244 $27,302,342
Reserves

Prudent fiscal management requires that the District maintain reserve balances to meet working capital
requirements, meet unexpected increases in costs and provide for emergencies. Currently, the District maintains
two types of reserve funds: legally restricted funds and Board designated funds. The detailed description and
purpose of each reserve fund can be found in the District’s reserve policy Resolution No, 18-10. The legally
restricted funds include Capital Improvement Fund, Bond Proceed Fund, Debt Service Reserve Fund, and Rate
Stabilization Fund. The Board designated funds include Dam Self Insurance, O&M Operating Reserve, O&M
Emergency Reserve, and Unrestricted Reserves. A brief description of each fund follows:

1. Capital Improvement Fund:

PWD maintains a capital improvement fund with fees collected from developers to pay for the new facilities
necessary to deliver water service to newly developed property and to pay for the additional water supplies
necessitated to meet the demand for water created by such newly developed property. These fees are for offsite
improvements, such as the development's fair share cost of wells, reservoirs, transmission mains, treatment plant
capacity, and other necessary facilities, as well as to pay for water supply acquisitions and projects associated with
new water supplies necessitated by new development. The fees are collected at rates established by the Board of
Directors based upon specific engineering studies. The rates charged are based on a project's equivalent capacity
unit (ECU) basis. These funds are restricted to the design and construction of capital facilities for water delivery,
and as otherwise provided in Resolution No. 13-12 and in Appendix H to the District's Rules and Regulations.

Palmdale Water District - 2019 Financial Planning, Revenue 2-14
Requirements, Cost of Service, and Rate Setting Analysis



2. Bond Proceeds Fund(s):

Bond proceeds fund(s) are monies derived from the proceeds of a bond issue or similar indebtedness like a private
placement loan, certificate of participation or other indebtedness instrument. Typically, they consist of
construction fund monies and a debt service reserve fund. The use of these proceeds is restricted by conditions
set forth in the respective legal bond documents. These funds are usually held by the Trustee in favor of the bond
holders. These funds should be tracked and accounted for in accordance with the bond documents and to ensure,
if applicable, the tax-exempt nature of the applicable bonds. These funds shall also be invested as provided in the
bond documents.

3. Debt Service Reserve Fund:
This fund is governed by legal bond covenants for the District's revenue bonds. Bond covenants may require that
this fund be maintained at a level sufficient to fund maximum annual debt service payments or such other
requirement of the Internal Revenue Code. These funds are held by the bond trustee during the term of the bonds
and are to be used in the event the District is unable to meet its required semi-annual debt service obligation.
Annual interest earnings on bond reserve funds shall be applied to each year's debt service payments or as
otherwise required by the bond documents.

4. Rate Stabilization Fund:
This fund is governed by legal bond covenants for the District's revenue bonds. The District may withdraw all or
any portion of the amounts on deposit in the Rate Stabilization Fund and transfer such amounts to the Water
Revenue Fund for application in accordance with an Installment Purchase Agreement for each of the 2013A Bonds
and the 2018A Bonds.

Board Designated Funds:

Board designated funds are set to accomplish systematic and strategic goals or provide for prudent management
of operations. The Board of Directors has complete discretion in the management and designation of self-adopted
funds. Such funds can be modified, transferred, or altered by Board action.

1. Dam Self-Insurance:
The District shall make available $5 million for self-insurance of the Littlerock Dam as seed money for
reconstruction under the terms of the agreement between Palmdale Water District, Littlerock Creek Irrigation
District and Palmdale Water District Public Facilities Corporation. The money will be used to begin the
reconstruction following an event while applications for FEMA reimbursement are in process.

2. O&M Operating Reserve:
The O&M Operating Reserve will vary over time with a goal of maintaining three (3) months average cash
operating expenses of $5.7 million. This reserve is considered a working cash requirement. It bridges the gap
between the time expenses are paid and the time revenues from the same service are collected from customers.

3. O&M Emergency Reserve:
The O&M Emergency Reserve will vary over time with a goal of maintaining three (3) months average cash
operating expenses of $5.7 million. This reserve is considered a working cash requirement for use in an emergency
situation.

4. Unrestricted Reserves:
Unrestricted reserves represent a remainder balance of cash that is not yet designated for some use by the Board
of Directors.

Palmdale Water District - 2019 Financial Planning, Revenue 2-15
Requirements, Cost of Service, and Rate Setting Analysis



The target total reserve amount for the Board designated funds is set at $16.2 million. The District estimates a
reserve balance at the end of CY 2019 to be $11.6 million ($11.1 million in the Board designated funds, and an
additional $0.5 million). RDN recommends annual cash contributions of $100,000 to the Rate Stabilization Fund,
and $850,000 to the District’s O&M Emergency Reserve to reach the target reserve level of $16.2 million by the
end of the study period.

Operating and Maintenance (0&M) Expense

The itemized O&M expenses were carefully reviewed by the District and forecasted for the study period using
escalation factors discussed in the Key Assumptions section (Table ES 2). Table 2-3 shows PWD’s O&M Expenses
by type for the current year (CY 2019) and the study period, CY 2020 — CY 2024. O&M Expenses are expected to
increase by 5.8% during the test year (CY 2020) and 3.1% to 3.2% annually thereafter (CY 2021 — CY 2024).

Table 2-3. O&M Expenses by Type, CY 2019 — CY 2024

| cvao19 | cv2020 | cv2021 | Cv2022 | CYy2023 | CY2024

Directors $140,500 $144,153 $147,901 $151,746 $155,692 $159,740
Admin $4,369,200 $4,482,552 $4,598,942 $4,718458 $4,841192 $4,967,237
Engeneer $1,596,550 $1,636,974 $1,678,423 $1,720,935 $1,764,578 $1,809,434
Facilities $6,095,343 $6,266,820 $6,443,335 $6,625,155 $6,812,893 $7,007,338
Operations $3,102,000 $3,199,632 $3,300,410 $3,404,524 $3512424 $3,624,696
Finance $1,289,750 $1,322,621 $1,356,333 $1,390,906 $1,426,363 $1,462,726
Water Conservation $374,150 $383,527 $393,142 $402,999 $413,106 $423,469
HR $438,600 $449,365 $460,403 $471,721 $483,326 $495,225
IT $948,050 $969,407 $991,277 $1,013,673 $1,036,609 $1,060,097
Customer Care $1,347,700 $1,382,568 $1,418,340 $1,455,040 $1,492692 $1,531,321
Water Supply $1,920,911  $2,054,954 $2,198267 $2,351,689 $2,516,779 $2,695,572
Plant $212,000 $812,000 $830,071 $848,687 $867,863 $887,617
Total $21,834,755 $23,104,573 $23,816,843 $24,555,534 $25,323,517 $26,124,472

All operating expenses were allocated to the system functions by PWD staff, which include: source of supply,
pumping, treatment, transmission and distribution, customer accounts, administrative and general, and
conservation functions. The functionalized costs were later used in the Cost of Service (COS) analysis to further
allocate expenses into cost causative components (peaking and non-peaking costs). The methodology used for
the analysis is discussed in detail in the COS analysis section of this Report.

Capital Improvement Expense

One of the PWD’s goals is to increase resource reliability to meet their customers’ water needs and sustain the
growth of the community at reasonable costs. The projects scheduled to be executed during the study period
which will increase resource reliability, include:

e Palmdale Recycled Water Recharge Project — water diversification
o  Well Rehabilitation — maintain groundwater capacity

e Future well — well as end of useful life

Palmdale Water District - 2019 Financial Planning, Revenue 2-16
Requirements, Cost of Service, and Rate Setting Analysis



Lake and Ditch Maintenance — moving and storing water for future use

The District also plans to execute the following projects to increase operational efficiency:

Pipeline replacement: 23 projects to improve flow and pressure, and reduce leaks

Booster rehabilitation — restore 3 to 5 boosters per year

Chlorine generators replacement — 21 projects to replace end-of-life equipment

Replacement of large meter with vault -- replace 75 meters to increase accuracy of meter reads
Communication system replacement — replace radios and SCADA communication

Engine replacement — swap out engines for energy saving

Stairs and reservoir safety retrofit -- improve access at these facilities

Replacement of equipment — replace and update various equipment to meet today’s needs
Pump replacement -- replace end-of-life process pump at treatment plant

Sedimentation basin coating -- extend the life of the treatment plant

Meter Replacement Program -- complete the program by replacing up to 5,500 meters

22 vehicle replacements — replace vehicles older than 2008 with newer ones with new safety standards

to meet today’s need
Vacuum excavator -- efficiently and safely excavate around existing utilities
Peterbilt Cat C-7 Motor Rebuilds -- extend operational life of existing equipment

Forklift -- replace inefficient, underpowered and outdated forklift

These project costs will total approximately $30.0 million over the five-year period, which will be funded by cash

revenue generated from customers’ rates (PAYGO) as well as proceeds from the 2021 Revenue Bond for the
amount of $20.0 million.

Debt Service

The District’s current debt service obligations are listed in the bullet points below. The payments shown below

(Table 2-4) include interest and principal payments.

2012 Private Placement (annual payment of $1.4 million)

2013A Series Water Revenue Bonds (annual payment of $2.3 million until CY 2024 and goes up to $3.9

million thereafter)

2018A Series Water Revenue Bond (annual payment of $0.6 million until CY 2021 and goes up to $0.8

million thereafter)

Capital Leases Payable — 2017 (S0.2 million until CY 2021, and goes down to $90,000 in CY 2022, which is

the final payment for this loan)

PWD plans to issue another bond in CY 2021 to mitigate rate impacts on their customers. 2021 Revenue Bonds

will increase the District’s debt service obligations by $1.2 million annually starting in CY 2022.

Palmdale Water District - 2019 Financial Planning, Revenue
Requirements, Cost of Service, and Rate Setting Analysis

2-17



Table 2-4. Debt Service Payments for CY 2019 — CY 2024

| DiswiotDebt | 2019 | 2020 | 2021 | 202 | 2023 | 204

2012 Refunding COPs (Private Placement) $1,373,241 $1,374,152 $1,372,329 $1,372,329 $1,373,924
2013A Series Water Revenue Bonds  $2,345,825 $2,345225 $2,348,475 $2,350,225 $2,345475 $3,851,375
Capital Leases Payable - 2017 $178,953  $178,953  $178,953 $89,477
2018A Series Water Revenue Bonds $568,894  $568,894  $568,894  $818,894  $821,394  $820,794
2021 Water Revenue Bond (Proposed) $1,170,100 $1,169,700 $1,169,400
Total $4,466,913 $4,467,225 $4,468,651 $5,801,025 $5,710,493 $5,841,569

Revenue Requirements

Table 2-5 shows a summary of the financial plan for the current year (CY 2019) plus the study period with an
annual rate adjustment of 8.1%. The District’s cash reserves will fall under $7.5 million during the first year;
however, the steady annual rate adjustment of 8.1% for the subsequent years will bring the reserves up to the
target level of $16.2 million by CY 2023, and will be maintained for the remaining the study period.

Table 2-5. Financial Plan with an 8.1% Annual Rate Adjustment, CY 2020 - CY 2024

Description eYente Gy 2020 CY 2021 CY 2022 CY 2023 CY 2024
Current Year Test Year

Operating Revenues  $24,302,036  $26,158,114  $28,155,340  $30,311,634 $32,651,258 $35,181,866
Water Sales - Proposed ~ $23,132,036  $24,985,489  $26,980,083  $29,133,735 $31,470,711  $33,998,662
Other Operating Revenues $1,170,000 $1,172,625 $1,175,258 $1,177,899 $1,180,547 $1,183,204

O&M Expenses  ($21,834,755) ($23,104,573) ($23,816,843) ($24,555,534) ($25,323,517) ($26,124,472)
Net Operating Revenues ~ $2467,282  $3,053,541  $4,338497  $5756,100  $7,327,741  $9,057,395
Non-operating Revenues ~ $2,850,000  $2,896,525  $2,943971  $2,992,357  $3,039,261  $3,087,047

Other Obligations  ($7,967,239) ($11,146,722) ($5,955,151) ($7,287,525) ($7,196,993) ($12,856,425)

Debt Service Principal ~ ($1,870,195)  ($1,927,762)  ($1,998,889) ($2,728,646) ($2,602,628) ($2,810,000)

Debt Service Interest ~ ($2,596,719)  ($2,539,462) ($2,469,762) ($3,072,379) ($3,107,865) ($3,031,569)

Change in Investmentin PRWA  ($300,000)  ($300,000)  ($300,000)  ($300,000)  ($300,000)  ($300,000)
Water Rebate Program ~ ($236,500)  ($236,500)  ($236,500)  ($236,500)  ($236,500)  ($236,500)
Contribution to Reserves $522,151 (8950,000)  ($950,000)  ($950,000)  ($950,000)  ($950,000)
Capital PAYGO  ($3,485,977)  ($5,192,998) . - - ($5,528,357)

Net Balance  ($2,649,957) ($5,196,656)  $1,327,317 $1,460,933 $3,170,009 ($711,984)

Beginning of the Year Balance $11,649,020 $7,402,364 $9,679,681  $12,090,613  $16,210,622
Ending Balance  $11,649,020 $7,402,364 $9,679,681  $12,090,613 $16,210,622 $16,448,639

Note: There is no rate adjustment made for the current year, CY 2019.

Palmdale Water District - 2019 Financial Planning, Revenue 2-18
Requirements, Cost of Service, and Rate Setting Analysis



Table 2-6 displays PWD’s revenue requirements for CY 2020 — CY 2024. Other obligations include CIP expense,
contributions to reserves ($950,000), and other miscellaneous expenses of $0.5 million. The total expense of each
year is offset by other operating revenues and non-operating revenues to compute the pure portion of revenue
requirements, which need to be collected from water rates. Under the recommended financial plan, the revenues
are adjusted by 8.1% annually to compute necessary revenue requirements. The negative net balance indicates
that cash reserves are used to supplement the shortfall for the year (CY 2020 and CY 2024), and positive net
balance (CY 2021 — CY 2023) indicates that the amount is contributed to the cash reserves in addition to the annual
cash contribution scheduled to be put aside in the amount of $950,000. The revenue requirement of $25.0 million
for the test year was used to compute cost distribution among distinctive cost components and then allocated to

customers equitably in the COS analysis.

Table 2-6. Revenue Requirements for CY 2020 — CY 2024

CY2020 | Cvy2021 | CY2022 | Cv2023 | Cy2024

Test Year
Other Operating Revenues  ($1,172,625) ($1,175,258) ($1,177,899) ($1,180,547) ($1,183,204)
O&M Expenses $23,104,573 $23,816,843 $24,555,534 $25,323,517 $26,124,472
Non-operating Revenues  ($2,896,525) ($2,943,971) ($2,992,357) ($3,039,261) ($3,087,047)
Other Obligations  $11,146,722 $5,955,151 $7,287,525 $7,196,993 $12,856,425
Net Balance ($5,196,656) $1,327,317  $1,460,933  $3,170,009 ($711,984)
Revenue Requirements $24,985,489 $26,980,083 $29,133,735 $31,470,711 $33,998,662

Palmdale Water District - 2019 Financial Planning, Revenue 2-19

Requirements, Cost of Service, and Rate Setting Analysis



This Page Intentionally Left Blank

Palmdale Water District - 2019 Financial Planning, Revenue 2-20
Requirements, Cost of Service, and Rate Setting Analysis



3. COST OF SERVICE ANALYSIS

The purpose of a Cost of Service (COS) analysis is to allocate costs among customers commensurate with their
service requirements. RDN employed the “base-extra capacity” cost-of-service method promulgated in AWWA'’s
M1, whereby costs are first allocated to individual functions, which are typical industry standard activities, then
the costs of each functions are distributed to appropriate cost causative components, which are defined by the
cost driving elements. The results of the COS form a reasonable, equitable, basis for designing rates. Figure 3-1
displays a typical flow of a process for the COS analysis.

Figure 3-1. A typical Flow for Cost of Service Analysis Process

: S Allocation to Cost Causative . .
Functionalization Reallocation to Customers via
Components Rates

The revenue requirement is : :
a The functional categories are

further allocated to base, MDD,
PHD, customer billing and meter
costs.

Each cost component is tied to
fixed and volumetric rate
components.

assigned to various industry
standard activities on a line-by -
line basis.

Operating costs are functionalized based on input from District staff with expertise on the system and utility
industry knowledge. Total capital expense for the study period (CY 2020 — CY 2024) was utilized in the analysis as
opposed to capital project expense for the test year (CY 2020) since a single year of capital spending may not
capture accurate distribution of the necessary CIP costs to repair/rehabilitate system assets. The functions of the
water system for both operating and capital expenses include:

e  Water Supply — costs associated with source of water supply

e  Pumping — costs associated with general pumping and energy use

e Water Treatment — costs associated with treatment of water

e Transmission and Distribution — costs associated with transmitting and distributing water to customers
e Customer Accounts — costs associated with billing and customer services

e Administrative and General — costs associated with administrative and general functions

e Water Conservation — costs associated with the conservation program

e Fire — costs associated with water service for fire protection provided to property and structures

Palmdale Water District - 2019 Financial Planning, Revenue 3-1
Requirements, Cost of Service, and Rate Setting Analysis



For the system to provide adequate service to its customers at all times, it must be capable of meeting not only
the annual volume requirements, but also the peak demand - the maximum rate at which water is consumed.
Therefore, the capacities of the various facilities must meet the maximum coincidental demand of all customers.

Each water service facility within the system has an underlying average demand, exerted by the customers for
whom the base cost component applies. For those facilities designed solely to meet average daily demand, 100%
of the cost should go to the base cost component. Extra capacity requirements associated with demand in excess
of average use consist of Max Day Demand (MDD) and Peak Hourly Demand (PHD). The MDD factor was computed
using average month and maximum month usage (September) reported during CY 2018. Based on the MDD factor,
RDN estimated the average hourly flow during MDD and multiplied it by a peaking factor of 1.5 (the lowest factor
recommended by the State Board’s Division of Drinking Water) to compute a PHD factor. Accordingly, the costs
associated with the functions which require extra capacity service requirements were distributed to the base,
MDD, and PHD cost components for 44.1%, 22.5%, and 33.3%, respectively. The number of bills in one year (the
number of accounts multiplied by 12) serves as the basis for distributing billing and customer service costs
associated with meter reading, customer billing and collection, and other customer services costs. The number of
equivalent meters is used to measure meter related service costs.

The cost causative components therefore include:
e Water Supply — water purchase costs, chemicals, pumping costs, etc.
e Base —delivering water to customers under average demand conditions

e Maximum Day Demand (MDD) — the costs of delivering water to customers on the day with the highest
demand

e Peaking Hourly Demand (PHD) — the costs of delivering water to customers on the hour with the highest
demand on highest day

e Meters —the costs of servicing meters
e Customer Service — billing and other customer service related costs

e Direct Fire Protection Service — the costs of providing water service for public and private fire protection
services

e Water Conservation — the costs of servicing meters and customers

The result of the COS analysis determines how the total revenue requirements should be allocated to the each of
the cost components, which are categorized and grouped based on the similar cost driving elements. Table 3-1
displays the functionalized O&M cost allocation to cost causative components.

Palmdale Water District - 2019 Financial Planning, Revenue 3-2
Requirements, Cost of Service, and Rate Setting Analysis



Table 3-1. O&M Cost Allocation

O&M Cost Allocation Total Cost Warar Base
Supply
Source of Supply  $3,861,070 $3,861,070 - -
Pumping  $2,700,039 - $1,804,794  $360,990
Purchased Power  $1,097,273 - $1,097,273 -
Other  $1,602,767 - $707,521 $360,990
Water Treatment  $3,087,647 - $2,348635  $739,013
Chemicals $900,211 - $900,211 -
Other $2,187,436 - $1,448,423 $739,013
Transmission and Distribution ~ $4,768,917 - $2,089,716 $1,003,415
Storage $418,616 - $184,793 $94,285
Transmission Mains ~ $1,098,758 - $769,131 $329,627
Distribution Mains ~ $1,060,569 - $468174  $238,871
Meter and Services $470,889 - - -
Hydrants $207,711 - - -
Other  $1,512,373 - $667,618  $340,631
Customer Accounts  $2,647,031 - - -
Meter Reading/Bill Collections ~ $2,118,915 - - -
Others $528,116 - - -
Administrative and General  $5,644,061 - $2,138,358 $1,059,402
Water Conservation $395,807 - - -

Total

$534,256

$534,256

$997,186
$139,539

$353,523

$504,124

$771,322

Customer
Service

$470,889 -

- $2,647,031
- $2,118,915
- $528,116

$237,167 $1,333,197

Direct Fire

Water
Conservation

Protection
Service

$207,711 -

$207,711 -

$104,615 -

$395,807

$23,104,573

$3,861,070
17%

$8,381,502
36%

$3,162,820

Percentage 100% 14%

$2,302,764
10%

$708,055 $3,980,228
3%

17%

$312,327
1%

$395,807
2%

Palmdale Water District - 2019 Financial Planning, Revenue
Requirements, Cost of Service, and Rate Setting Analysis

3-3



Table 3-2 displays functionalized capital expenditures for the study period (CY 2020 — CY 2024). The percentages
represented in the cost distribution are derived from the total CIP spending over the five year period to better
represent the District’s needs for repairs and replacements on its system assets.

Table 3-2. Five-Year Capital Expenditures Cost Allocation

Water Customer el Water
Asset Cost Allocation | Total Cost Max Data . Protection .
Service Sertics Conservation

Source of Supply  $8,094,053 $5,359,524 $2,734,529 - - -
Pumping  $2,734,262 - $1,810,508  $923,755 - - - = -

Treatment Plant ~ $3,814,887 - $2,526,050 $1,288,838 - - - = 2
Storage $219,473 - $96,883 $49,432 $73,158 - - - -

Distribution ~ $8,741,875 - $3,858,989 $1,968,928 $2,913,958 - - - -
Transmission  $1,069,455 - $472,097  $240,873  $356,485 - = . 5

Fire  $1,936,350 - - - - - - $1,936,350 -

Water Conservation $6,000 - - - - - - - $6,000
Customer Accounts $380,175 - - - - - $380,175 - -

Meters  $1,994,759 - = = - $1,994,759 - - -

Administration ~ $1,730,065

$655,467  $324,737  $236,432 $72,698 $408,663 $32,068 -

Total $30,721,354 $14,779,518 $7,531,091 $3,580,033 $2,067,458 $788,837 $1,968,418 $6,000

Percentage 100% 0% 48% 25% 12% 7% 3% 6% 0%

Table 3-3 shows the revenue requirements by cost causative components under the proposed financial plan. The
test year capital expense, debt service payments, and other obligations (change in investments in PRWA and
contribution to reserves) are allocated to each cost causative component using the percentages derived from the
five-year capital expenditures cost allocation.

Palmdale Water District - 2019 Financial Planning, Revenue 3-4
Requirements, Cost of Service, and Rate Setting Analysis



Cost Allocation Summary

O&M Cost Allocated
O&M Cost Distribution

CIP/Other Obligations Allocated
CIP/Other Obligations Distribution
CIP Cost Allocation

Debt Service Principal

Debt Service Interest

Change in Investments in PRWA
Contribution to Reserves

Water Conservation Rebate Program
Total Expense

Cash Reserve Used

Non-rate Revenues

Other Operating Revenues
Non-operating Revenues
Rate Revenue Requirements

Table 3-3. Rate Revenue Requirements for Test Year, CY 2020

Wat
Total Cost T
Supply

$23,104,573 $3,861,070

$10,910,222

$5,192,998
$1,927,762
$2,539,462
$300,000
$950,000

$236,500
$34,251,295

($5,196,656)
($4,069,150)
($1,172,625)
($2,896,525)

Base

$8,381,502
17% 36%
= $5,248,721
0% 48%
= $2,498,262
- $927,413
= $1,221,692
= $144,325
= $457,029

$3,861,070 $13,630,223

11% 40%

$24,985,489 $2,816,557 $9,942,917

Max Day

$3,162,820
14%

$2,674,553
25%
$1,273,021
$472,575
$622,529
$73,543
$232,885

$5,837,372
17%

$4,258,221

$2,302,764
10%

$1,271,394
12%
$605,152
$224,647
$295,930
$34,960
$110,706

$3,574,158
10%

$2,607,261

Meters

$708,055
3%

$734,226
%
$349,474
$129,733
$170,898
$20,189
$63,932

$1,442,281
4%

$1,052,109

Customer
Service

$3,980,228
17%

$280,144
3%
$133,341
$49,499
$65,206
$7,703
$24,393

$4,260,372
12%

$3,107,838

Fire
Protection
Service

$312,327
1%

$699,054
6%
$332,732
$123,518
$162,712
$19,222
$60,870

$1,011,381
3%

$737,778

Water
Conservation

$395,807
2%

$2,131
0.02%
$1,014
$376
$496
$59
$186

$236,500

$634,438
2%

$462,807

Palmdale Water District - 2019 Financial Planning, Revenue

Requirements, Cost of Service, and Rate Setting Analysis



This Page Intentionally Left Blank

Palmdale Water District - 2019 Financial Planning, Revenue
Requirements, Cost of Service, and Rate Setting Analysis

3-6



4. WATER SUPPLY

The cost to produce water is directly related to the source from which it is extracted. PWD has three main water
sources: groundwater, surface water from the Littlerock Reservoir, and State Water Project (SWP) imports. When
costs are allocated to customers, it is industry practice to assume that the least expensive water source is used
for integral customer uses, while more expensive sources are used for excessive customer use. As previously
discussed, for PWD customers, integral water is included in their water budget (Tier 1 and Tier 2 use). Table 4-1
shows the total projected water use by tier for the study period. As previously discussed in the Demand Projections
section, it is forecasted to be a slight decline in water use through the study period.

Table 4-1. Projected Water Use by Tier, CY 2020 — CY 2024

Tier 1 3,319,824 3,316,771 3,313,665 3,310,997 3,310,658
Tier 2 2,252,894 2,249,723 2,246,635 2,243,837 2,243,420
Tier 3 644,921 644,033 643,140 642,369 642,325
Tier 4 357,966 357,491 357,012 356,592 356,602
Tier 5 542,716 539,802 536,883 535,174 532,917
Total 7,118,322 7,107,821 7,097,235 7,088,969 7,085,921

There is a finite supply of groundwater and surface water that is available to the District each year. Additionally,
a certain amount (estimated at 9.0%) of water from each water source is lost due to evaporation, leaks, main
flushing, and firefighting, among other things. Table 4-2 shows the projected water source demand through the
study period. The District plans to primarily use SWP water (the most expensive source) to fill its water needs
during this period, though the amount will decline as total usage declines. Groundwater and surface water use
will remain steady through the study period at 1.7 million and 1.6 million ccf of use, respectively.

Table 4-2. Projected Water Supply by Source, CY 2020 — CY 2024

Water Supply from Groundwater+Federal Surplus 1,916,640 1,916,640 1,916,640 1,916,640 1,916,640
Water Supply from Local Surface Water (Littlerock Reservoir) 1,742,400 1,742,400 1,742,400 1,742,400 1,742,400
Water Supply from SWP 4,163,292 4,151,752 4,140,119 4,131,036 4,127,686
Water Loss % 9% 9% 9% 9% 9%
Water Supply from Groundwater+Federal Surplus 1,744 142 1744142 1,744,142 1,744,142 1,744,142
Water Supply from Local Surface Water (Littlerock Reservoir) 1,585,584 1,585,584 1,585,584 1,585,584 1,585,584
Water Supply from SWP 3,788,596 3,778,095 3,767,509 3,759,243 3,756,195

As costs are allocated to each tier of water use during rate design, it is important to understand how the availability
of each water source compares to the usage in each tier. Table 4-3 shows the allocation of each water source to
the respective tier for the test year. The Tier 1 allocation is made up wholly of groundwater and surface water
supplies, making it the lowest cost tier to produce by volume. Tier 2 is supplied by the remaining surface water
and supplemented by SWP water, making it the second lowest cost tier to produce. Tiers 3 through 5 are supplied
by only SWP water. Since SWP water is the most expensive source of water used by the District, the top three

Palmdale Water District - 2019 Financial Planning, Revenue 4-1
Requirements, Cost of Service, and Rate Setting Analysis



tiers’ unit costs are higher than for the bottom two. Even though there are more tiers supplied by SWP water,
PWD customers are projected to primarily use water within their water budgets (Tier 1 and Tier 2). The total costs
borne by these customers will remain lower than if they use water excessively.

Table 4-3. Water Source by Tier Allocation, CY 2020, in millions

Water Supply from Groundwater+Federal Surplus 1,916,640
Water Supply from Local Surface Water (Littlerock Reservoir) 1,403,184 339,216 - - -
Water Supply from SWP - 1913679 644,921 357,966 542,716

If water unit costs were the only factors determining water rates, the District could use only three tiers based on
its three water sources; however, differential water rates are also contingent on capacity use-patterns (peaking
factors) and conservation measures.

Palmdale Water District - 2019 Financial Planning, Revenue 4-2
Requirements, Cost of Service, and Rate Setting Analysis



5. RATE DESIGN

The last step of a rate study is designing rates. Rates must be designed to equitably recover the rate revenue
requirements from each customer given the projected customer demand identified as a result of the COS analysis.
In reviewing the District’'s water rates and finances, RDN used the following criteria in developing our
recommendations:

1) Revenue sufficiency: rates should recover the annual cost of service and provide revenue stability.

2) Rate impacts: while rates are calculated to generate sufficient revenue to cover all costs, they should be
designed to minimize, as much as possible, the impacts on ratepayers.

3) Equitability: rates should be fairly allocated among all customers based on their estimated demand
characteristics.

4) Practicality: rates should be simple in form and, therefore, adaptable to changing conditions, easy to
administer, and easy to understand.

Recommended Changes on the Current Rate Structure

The District currently uses an allocation based water budget rate (WBR) structure for all customers. “Water
Budget” is defined as the quantity of water required for an efficient level of water use by that customer in the
AWWA M1. Under the WBR structure, each customer gets his/her own allocation of water, which is determined
by different parameters. For example, Single-Family Residential (SFR) customers currently receive 66 gallons of
water per capita per day (GPCD) for essential use. RDN recommends reducing this amount to 55 GPCD to be more
closely aligned with the parameter expected to be used in the new State legislation (AB 1668 and SB 606). RDN
also recommends the District change the allocation method for Multi-Family Residential (MFR) customers. The
District currently uses historical usage to compute their allocation. We recommend that MFR customers’ water
budget be computed using the same methodology as that of SFR customers since both classes are defined as
residential customers. Lastly, RDN recommends eliminating Tier 6 from the proposed rate structure. The tiered
pricing should be linked to the actual costs such as water supply cost and peaking cost. RDN determined that there
are no costs that can be allocated to the Tier 6 rate in the proposed rate structure.

Water Budget Rate Structure

The following formula displays a typical indoor water budget calculation for residential customers. RDN
recommends that Gallons per Capita per Day (GPCD) should be reduced from 66 GPCD to 55 GPCD under the
proposed rate structure to be consistent with the State new requirements under AB 1668 and SB 606.

Indoor Water Budget (Residential Customers)

B GPCD
748 gallons/hcf

X Household Size X # of Dwelling Units X Days of Service

Where:

e  GPCD - Gallons per Capita per Day, currently set at 66. RDN recommends setting GPCD at 55 under the
proposed rates.

Palmdale Water District - 2019 Financial Planning, Revenue 5-1
Requirements, Cost of Service, and Rate Setting Analysis



e Household Size — Number of residents per dwelling unit, set at 4 for SFR customers unless a customer
variance has been requested. The default household size for the proposed rates is set at 4 for SFR
customers and 2 for MFR customers.

o Dwelling Units — The number of dwelling units served by the meter. For example, a SFR customer’s
number of dwelling unit is one.

e Days of Service — Number of days of service varies with each billing cycle for each customer. The actual
number of days of service will be applied to calculate the indoor water budget for each billing cycle.

e 748 is the conversion unit from gallons to a billing unit of one hundred cubic feet (ccf) currently used by
the District.

When using these default numbers to calculate a hypothetical SFR customer’s indoor water budget under the
current rates in a hypothetical month (30 billing days), the water budget for this customer is 10.6 hcf a month.
Example for a SFR Indoor Water Budget (Current)

- 66 GPCD
748 gallons/hcf

X 4 persons X 1unit X 30 days = 10.6 hcf

RDN recommends reducing GPCD from 66 to 55 for the proposed rate structure. The following equation shows
the proposed indoor allocation.

Example for a SFR Indoor Water Budget (Proposed)

B 55 GPCD
"~ 748 gallons/hcf

X 4 persons X 1unit X 30 days = 8.8 hcf

The data on the number of dwelling units for all MFR customers were collected from the Los Angeles County
website and used in the same equation. The household size for MFR customers is set at 2. The indoor allocation
for a hypothetical MFR customer with an apartment complex with 20 units is computed as follows:

Example for a MFR Indoor Water Budget (Proposed)

B 55 GPCD
748 gallons/hcf

X 2 persons X 20 units X 30 days = 88.2 hcf

Under the current and proposed rate structure, residential customers’ outdoor water (Tier 2) budgets are
calculated in the formula below. Irrigation customer’s allocations are also computed using this formula.

Outdoor Water Budget for Residential Customers and Irrigation Customers

Landscape Area (Irrigable)? xﬂ
andscap lga 12 in/ft

= X LF X DF
100 sf/hcf

! Landscape Area (or Irrigable Area in square feet) is the measured irrigable landscape area served by a customer’s meter

2 Evapotranspiration (ET0) is measured in inches of water during the billing period based on a ten-year rolling average ET from CIMIS
weather station # 197.

Palmdale Water District - 2019 Financial Planning, Revenue 5-2
Requirements, Cost of Service, and Rate Setting Analysis



Where:

SFR customers’ irrigable area is currently set at 50% of the total parcel size. Under the proposed rates
the District utilized aerial imagery data to measure actual irrigable area of each residential customer’s
parcel.

Irrigation customers’ irrigable area is set at 100% of the total parcel size.

Landscape Factor (LF) is set to 70% to the amount of water needed for irrigation to encourage
conservation, which was the metric set by the District in 2009. This is consistent with the State of
California Code of Regulations Title 23, Section 491 and an expected parameter to be used for LF under
Assembly Bill No. 1668 (AB 1668) and Senate Bill No. 606 (SB 606), approved in May, 2018.

Note that Irrigation customers Tier 1 allocation is calculated using the same formula, but the Landscape
Factor (LF) is set at 0.42 for their essential water use.

Landscape Factor (LF) for the efficient use (Tier 1 + Tier 2) for the exempt irrigation customers is set at
100%. The exempt irrigation customers include schools, government offices, and parks.

Drought Factor (DF) is currently set at 1. The District may apply this additional parameter to the
equation if the State mandates reduction of water usage due to drought.

PWD contracted Eagle Arial Solutions (EA) to provide the District’s parcel by parcel aerial imagery data within the

service area and measure irrigable area for each of those parcels. SFR customer’s landscape area (irrigable area)

is currently set at 50% of their total property. EA’s imagery includes spatial data for 27,169 parcels and breaks

down the total square footage of a parcel into irrigable (pools, irrigated vegetation, horse corrals, and irrigable

vegetation but not currently irrigated) and non-irrigable area (impervious, non-irrigable vegetation, undeveloped

lands, open water, and artificial turf). PWD incorporated EA’s data to set new allocations for all residential

customers.

Example of Outdoor Water Budget for a SFR Customer (Current) with 7,000 sf. Parcel when ETO @ 10 inch

ETO
3 3,500 X Tn/ft

100 sf /hcf

X 0.7 x 1.0 = 20.4 hef

Example for Outdoor Water Budget for a Residential Customer (Proposed) with 2,135 sf. Irrigable
Landscape Area when ETO @ 10 inch

10
B 2,135 X Tn/ft

100 sf /hcf

X 0.7 X 1.0 = 12.5 hef

Example for Essential Water Budget (Tier 1) for an Irrigation Customer (Current and Proposed) with
10,000 sf. Parcel Size when ETO @ 10 inch

10
_ 10,000 x Tn/ft
~ 100 sf/hcf

X 0.42 x 1.0 = 35.0 hcf

Example for Efficient Water Budget (Tier 1+Tier 2) for an Irrigation Customer (Current and Proposed)
with 10,000 sf. Parcel Size with ETO @ 10 inch

Palmdale Water District - 2019 Financial Planning, Revenue 5-3
Requirements, Cost of Service, and Rate Setting Analysis



10

100 sf /hcf

x 0.7 X 1.0 = 58.3 hcf

Landscape Factor (LF) for the efficient use (Tier 1 + Tier 2) for exempt irrigation customers is set at 100%. The
exempt irrigation customers include schools, government offices, and parks.

Example for Efficient Water Budget (Tier 1+Tier 2) for an Exempt Irrigation Customer (Proposed) with
10,000 sf. Parcel Size with ETO @ 10 inch

10

100 sf /hcf

x 1.0 x 1.0 = 83.3 hef

Note that Irrigation customers’ Tier 2 width is computed by subtracting Essential Water Budget from Efficient
Water Budget. Thus this hypothetical customer’s Tier 1 width is 35 hcf and Tier 2 width is 23.3 hcf (58.3 — 35.0
hcf). The Tier 1 and Tier 2 rates are applied to these widths accordingly when the monthly bill is computed.

Commercial/Industrial/Institutional Tier 1 (essential use) is based on a 3-year average of minimum monthly usage
to reflect the lowest winter month. The average is based on the minimum usage month of the past 3 full calendar
years (January to December). Tier 2 (efficient usage) is based on a 3-year rolling 3-month average based on an
average of the current month and surrounding two months of the past three full calendar years (January to
December). For this customer group, efficient water use Tier 2 allocation is computed by subtracting Tier 1.

Commercial/Industrial/Institutional Customers Tier 1 (Essential Usage)
= 3 yr average minimum monthly usage
Commercial/Industrial/Institutional Customers Tier 2 (Efficient Usage)
= 3 yr moving average by month — 3 yr average minimum monthly usage

Table 5-1 displays definitions for each of the five tiers by customer type.

Palmdale Water District - 2019 Financial Planning, Revenue 5-4
Requirements, Cost of Service, and Rate Setting Analysis



Table 5-1. Definition of Water Budget Tier Widths

0, 0, 0,
Water Budget up to 130 % over | up to 160 % over 160 % + over
Budget Budget Budget
Tier1 Tier2 Tier3 Tier4 Tier5

Residential

Indoor Water Use: GPCD (55) /(748
gallons/hcf) x Household Size (4) x # of
Dwelling Units x Days of Service

Outdoor Water Use: Landscape Area
(Irrigable) x ETO /(12 in/ft.) )/(100 sf/hcf)
x LF (0.7) x DF (1.0)

up to 130 % of (Tier
1 +Tier 2)

131 % - 160 % of
(Tier 1 +Tier 2)

over 161 % of (Tier
1+Tier 2)

Irrigation

Essential Water Use: Landscape Area
(Irrigable) x ETO /(12 in/ft.) )/(100 sf/hcf) x
LF (0.42) x DF (1.0)

[Efficient Water Use: Landscape Area
(Irrigable) x ETO /(12 in/ft.) )/(100 sf/hcf)
x LF (0.7) x DF (1.0)] - [Essential Water Use]

up to 130 % of
Efficient Water Use

131 % - 160 % of
Efficient Water Use

over 161 % of
Efficient Water Use

Commercial

Essential Water Use: 3 yr. average minimum
monthly usage

[Efficient Water Use: 3 yr. moving average
by month] - [Essential Water Use]

up to 130 % of
Efficient Water Use

131 % - 160 % of
Efficient Water Use

over 161 % of
Efficient Water Use

Note: Landscape Factor (LF) in the Efficient Water Use formula for Exempt Irrigation customers is set at 100%

Palmdale Water District - 2019 Financial Planning, Revenue
Requirements, Cost of Service, and Rate Setting Analysis



Eagle Aerial

PWD contracted Eagle Arial Solutions (EA) to provide the District’s parcel-by-parcel aerial imagery data within the
service area and measure irrigable area for each of those parcels. SFR customer’s landscape area (irrigable area)
is currently set at 50% of their total property. The ultimate purpose of incorporating Eagle Aerial data is to
categorize customer’s land as either Irrigable or Non-Irrigable. Prior to classifying land as belonging to one of these
two categories, we will use the following terms as they are defined here:

e Irrigated - Land that is currently irrigated (living lawn, living trees).

e Irrigable - Land this is not currently irrigated, but has the potential to be irrigated (dead lawn, dormant
trees).

e Non-Irrigable - Land that is not capable of being irrigated (artificial lawn, driveways).

Overview

EA’s data includes spatial data for 27,169 parcels located within PWD’s service area. The EA data breaks down the
total square footage of a parcel into the nine distinct land use categories shown in Table 5-2. EA also provided
recommendations as to which larger irrigation category each land use classification should be grouped.

Table 5-2. Eagle Aerial Land Categories

CH Impervious Non-Irrigable
CI5 Non-Irrigable Vegetation Non-Irrigable
Clé Undeveloped Lands Non-Irrigable
CI8 Open Water Non-Irrigable
Cl9 Artificial Turf Non-Irrigable
Cl2 Pools Irrigated
CI3 Irrigated Vegetation Irrigated
Cl7 Horse Corrals Irrigated

Cl4 Irrigable Vegetation - Not Currently Irrigated Irrigable

First, RDN converted the area and category variables from square meters to square feet to be readily used in the
PWD rate study. Next, we calculated the percentage of the total area of the parcel that each category covers.
Figure 5-1 displays overlaid density functions for the three most common land types -- Impervious, Irrigable
Vegetation, and Irrigated Vegetation. This plot displays the frequency of impervious land use in the District’s

service area.

Palmdale Water District - 2019 Financial Planning, Revenue 5-6

Requirements, Cost of Service, and Rate Setting Analysis



Figure 5-1. Density Function of Land Use

8
6
=
2 4
[}
(@)
2
0
0% 25% 50% 75% 100%
. Impervious i Irrigable vegetation Irrigated vegetation

Figure 5-2 displays a box and whisker plot for the percentage of parcel by land use category. For each category,
the dark line in the middle of the plot represents the median value. The wider box represents 50% of the
distribution. For example, the plot suggests that 50% of parcels are comprised of 46-70% impervious surfaces. This
plot demonstrates that artificial turf, horse corrals, open water, pools, and undeveloped land are not prevalent

within PWD’s service area.

Palmdale Water District - 2019 Financial Planning, Revenue 5-7
Requirements, Cost of Service, and Rate Setting Analysis



Figure 5-2. Percentage of Land Use by Category

100% .
8 75%
©
0. {
5 50%
(o
S 5 ’
S 25%
® e ]
oo | 4= - .

Hnj [eryiuy
s|elio) asioH
snoinladw|
uoljeyaban ajqebii)
uolnjelaban pajebii)
uoneyaban pajebiill JoN
J21em uadQ
sjood
spue| padojanspun

Accuracy

EA has provided PWD with an interim data set that is not as accurate as the final deliverable, informing RDN that
the current data set is 95% accurate at the aggregate level but not as accurate at the parcel level. Accompanying
the broader dataset, EA provided a statistical analysis of the accuracy of land use classification. In so doing, EA
hand-digitized 50 parcels to establish a set of “true” values for which to compare modeled land use category
values. (The parcels were selected on the basis of having common characteristics found within PWD’s service
area.)

EA was able to estimate the accuracy of its model by comparing the hand-digitized data to the correct and
incorrect classifications of the current dataset. A confusion matrix, displayed in Table 5-3, is a common way to
display results of testing the accuracy of classifications. Each column represents the actual surface of an area and
each row represents the surface predicted by the model. It follows that each value on the diagonal from top left
to bottom right represents an accurate classification, or a true positive. All other values represent a
misclassification. For example, the table suggests that the model predicted the surface was CI2 when it was
actually CI1 (column 1, row 2). Exploring the relationships in this confusion matrix allows us to determine the level
of accuracy of EA’s data.

To summarize, the model selected the correct surface roughly 87.6% of the time and has a Cohen’s kappa
coefficient of roughly 0.80 (which is relatively large). Although the overall percentages indicate that EA’s
classification model is generally accurate, distribution of area to some classifications contain approximately 35%
of error. Table 5-3 demonstrates that the model has difficulty distinguishing between Irrigated Vegetation and
Irrigable Vegetation, a potentially confounding issue if PWD wants to distinguish between “Irrigated” and
“Irrigable” area. It is imperative that EA’s classification model is accurate at distinguishing between areas that will
ultimately be categorized as irrigable by PWD and less important for distinguishing between categories that end

Palmdale Water District - 2019 Financial Planning, Revenue 5-8

Requirements, Cost of Service, and Rate Setting Analysis



up in the same final irrigable land category. For example, it would not be problematic if the model is not accurate
at detecting the difference between pools and irrigated vegetation if both of these surfaces will ultimately be
included in the irrigable area allotment using the suggested approach.

Table 5-3. Confusion Matrix for Surface Classifications

Actual Surface

Al ci3 cl6 | cI7 | c18 | CI9
Surface

371,750 5710 15,788 11,779 0 0 0 0
Cl2 861 2,068 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Ci3 7,608 0 45,236 43,494 3,259 0 0 0 0
Cl4 45,169 0 17,893 126,817 30,439 0 0 0 0
CI5 379 0 36 6,975 808,243 0 0 0 0
Clé 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 O
Cl7 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
CI8 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 O
Cl19 569 0 245 1,060 0 0 0 0 0

Aware of the potential inaccuracies of the EA classification model, we first collapsed land use categories into
“Irrigated,” “Irrigable,” and “Non-Irrigable” classifications. Table 5-4 displays the corresponding confusion matrix.
The columns on the right display the sensitivity of the model, or the number of true predictions divided by the
total number of observations for each actual land use. This table highlights the weakness of EA’s current modeling
of “Irrigable” versus “Irrigated” area. Only about two-thirds of the time is the EA model able to accurately predict
both “Irrigable” and “Irrigated” area under these classifications.

Table 5-4. Confusion Matrix for EA Recommended Irrigable Classifications

Predicted Surface | Irrigable Irrigated Non-Irrigable | Irrigable % Irrigated % Non-Irrigable %

Irrigable 126,817 17,893 75,608 63.5% 251% 5.9%
Irrigated 43,494 47,304 11,728 22.4% 66.4% 0.9%
Non-Irrigable 23,823 5,991 1,192,720 12.3% 8.4% 93.2%

Because of EA’s lack of precision in classifying “Irrigated” versus “Irrigable” area, RDN included Irrigable Vegetation
in the definition of “Irrigable” area. RDN concluded that differentiating “Irrigated” and “Irrigable” area using this
dataset is not optimal, thus, collapsing the nine land use classifications into two simple categories. “Irrigable Area”
and “Non-Irrigable Area” are the best approach to establishing water budget allocations for the purpose of this
study. Table 5-5 displays the confusion matrix and corresponding sensitivity statistics under RDN’s proposed
“Irrigable Area” and “Non-Irrigable Area.” Both categories marked roughly a 90% sensitivity rate.

Table 5-5. Confusion Matrix for RDN Recommended Irrigable Classifications

Actual Surface
Predicted Surface Irrigable | Non-Irrigable | Irrigable % | Non-Irrigable %

Irrigable 235,508 87,336 88.8% 6.8%
Non-Irrigable 29,814 1,192,720 11.2% 93.2%
Palmdale Water District - 2019 Financial Planning, Revenue 5-9

Requirements, Cost of Service, and Rate Setting Analysis



RDN Spot Check

RDN conducted a spot check of Eagle Aerial’s data to verify accuracy. RDN randomly sampled the parcel list and
collected parcel square footage for 856 parcels using the Los Angeles County Assessor’s Portal. This amounts to
roughly 3% of the sample. In addition, RDN estimated the proportion of irrigable and non-irrigable surface on each
parcel using the photo on the parcel page. Although it is not a trivial exercise to estimate irrigable area from a
photo, the estimates should be somewhat similar to EA’s data, particularly because most parcels are comprised
of mostly obvious impervious surfaces (houses or driveways).

The first step is simply verifying the parcel sizes. These numbers should be very accurate as parcels are unique,
which is supported by the results in Figure 5-3. We used the natural logarithm of parcel size to make the data
easier to visualize.

Figure 5-3. Parcel Size Verification

D
QL
9 °
S 14 .
(on ]
(%]
gs)
(@]
o °
© N 4
s 12 °®
= »°
= ®
o) /
N
n
s 10 4
@
o
©
@
< .
o 8
& 8 10 12 14
Ll
RDN Collected Parcel Size (natural log of square feet)

Next, RDN attempted to verify that there were no systematic abnormalities in the irrigable area allocations in EA’s
data. Due to the subjective nature of the classification task from RDN’s side and the error present in EA’s data it
is highly unlikely that both series will match up perfectly. Therefore, we overlay density functions of RDN
estimated irrigable area as a percent of parcel size and EA estimations of the same variable, shown in Figure 5-4.
Broadly speaking, there is a large degree of overlap between the two classifications, suggesting that the area
(when including not currently irrigated area) is reasonably accurate. RDN’s estimates are more likely to be at the
extremes - more estimates of 0% and 100% irrigable area than EA’s data. This is intuitive because small photos do
not provide the degree of nuance that EA’s classification process can. This provides further support for the claim
that Eagle Aerial’s data is reasonably accurate.

RDN concludes that EA’s data, when including “Irrigable” area in the “Irrigable Area” category along with
“Irrigated” area, is reasonably accurate. RDN recommends that the District implements a simple method in which

Palmdale Water District - 2019 Financial Planning, Revenue 5-10
Requirements, Cost of Service, and Rate Setting Analysis



the areas are categorized by “Irrigable Area” and “Non-Irrigable Area” only and still use the data on individual

customer basis, not the aggregate level, provided by EA.

Figure 5-4. Irrigable Area Verification

2.9

2.0

1.5

Density

1.0

0.5

0.0

0.00 0.25 0.50 0.75 1.00

Irrigable Area as Percent of Parcel Area

SRy

Effect on Allocations

In the next step we explore the effect of the proposed surface classifications on customer allocations. Figure
5-5 displays the distribution of proposed irrigable area as a percentage of parcel area. The yellow vertical line is
the current allocation for irrigable area for all customers, which is defined as 50% of the parcel area. This implies
that all customers to the left of the yellow line will receive a reduced outdoor allocation relative to the current
rate structure, and all customers to the right of the yellow line will receive an increase in outdoor allocation. Most
customers will receive a reduced allocation. The data, in addition to anecdotal evidence from staff that reviewed
parcel imagery, strongly support an overall reduction in irrigable area. All else equal, a reduction in irrigable area
will result in increased revenue for the District and more stringent price signals to promote conservation for the

customers.

Palmdale Water District - 2019 Financial Planning, Revenue 5-11

Requirements, Cost of Service, and Rate Setting Analysis



Figure 5-5. Proposed Irrigable Area as Percentage of Parcel Area

2500

2000

1500

Count

1000

500

0% 25% 50% 75% 100%

Irrigable Area as Percent of Parcel

Figure 5-6 presents District customers’ actual usage distribution by tier. Under the proposed rate structure, the
Tier 1 usage will reduce by 7% while the Tier 2 usage will only reduce by 3%. This indicates that the majority of
District customers are not using all of their water allocation for outdoor use currently. Incorporating EA data,
which provides District customers’ actual landscaped area that is defined as “Irrigable” for each residential parcel
will help align the District’s residential customers’ water needs and water budgets.

Palmdale Water District - 2019 Financial Planning, Revenue 5-12
Requirements, Cost of Service, and Rate Setting Analysis



Figure 5-6. Usage Distribution by Tier Current vs. Proposed

Tier 6, 1.2%

0 .
100% _ Tier 5, 1.1% Tier 5. 3.8%

90% Tier 4, 2.6% Tier 4,8.1%

80%
70% Tier 2, 34.6%

Tier 2,31.2%
60%

50%
40%

30% .
Tier 1, 54.6% .
Tier 1, 47.6%
20%

10%

0%
Current Proposed

Irrigation Customers’ Tier 1 (essential usage) is based on the same outdoor usage formula used for residential
customers with a Landscape Factor (LF) of 0.42 based on low water use plants. Tier 2 (Efficient usage) uses a LF
factor of 0.7, which is consistent with that of residential customers. Irrigation customers are given 100% of their
parcel as a Landscape (Irrigable) area.

Recommended Rates

It is estimated that approximately 82% of the District’s O&M costs are fixed while 18% are variable. In order to
maintain an incentive for water conservation, there should be a reasonable balance between cost recovered
under the fixed base charges and volumetric charges; therefore, not all fixed costs will be recovered from the fixed
monthly service charges. Under the proposed rates, the revenues recovered from fixed charges represent 55% of
the total revenue.

Table 5-6 shows the CY 2020 revenue requirements ($25.0 million) allocated to each cost causative component.
Most of other operating revenues and non-operating revenues are used to offset the cost allocated to the base.
Approximately $ 1.3 million from property tax revenue was used to offset the Tier 1 rate to mitigate rate impacts
on small users.

Palmdale Water District - 2019 Financial Planning, Revenue 5-13
Requirements, Cost of Service, and Rate Setting Analysis



Table 5-6. Fixed and Variable Cost Components, CY 2020

Fixed
m Base ' EVEEY Max Hour Meter Customer/Billing Fire Protection
Total $24,985,489 $148,027 $5,269,809 $2,074,993 $1,441,810 $4,257,724 $450,173

1% 21% 8% 6% 17% 2%

Volumetric Offset

Water Supply Energy Delivery Max Day Max Hour L EICTH L ELTWENT M Offset - Tier 1

$2,996,048  $1,097,273 $6,025,887 $996,528 $887,778 $634,438 ($1,295,000)

12% 4% 24% 4% 4% 3% -5%

Base, peaking, meter, and fire protection service costs in the fixed charge components are distributed among various meter sizes using the AWWA ratio discussed
in the Key Assumptions section (Table ES 3). Customer service and billing costs are simply divided by the number of accounts since the service requirements of this
type are the same regardless of the meter size installed on a property. The monthly service charge per equivalent meter per month is $37.17. However, the District
wishes to maintain the same charge for the meter size 1-inch and below since all new meters being installed in the District’s service area are 1-inch meters. The
fixed service charge for 1-inch meter and below is therefore computed by taking the revenue requirements that need to be collected from these meters divided
by the number of accounts, resulting in $38.22 per month. Table 5-7 shows the cost distribution of each cost causative component to different customer classes
based on their service requirements. The total of $13.6 million is the revenue requirements that need to be collected from customers’ fixed charges.

Table 5-7. Cost Allocation by Customer Class and Cost Component

Equivalent Fedking Fire Customer Billing -

Meter Base (Max Day, Meters ! ) Customer/Billing

e Max Hour) Protection | Number of Bills
Residential Customers 27,268 $126,247 $6,120,990 $1,196,928  $383,938 305,964 $4,051,774
Commercial Customers 3,464 $16,037 $777,538  $152,044 $48,771 8,472 $112,192
Irrigation Customers 1,064 $4,925  $238,770 $46,690 $14,977 4,908 $64,995
Construction 177 $818 $11,161 $7,755 $2,488 204 $2,702
Private Fire Protection 875 $0  $196,343 $38,394 $0 1,968 $26,062
Total Fixed Charge Revenue Reuquirements 32,846 $148,027 $7,344,802 $1,441,810 $450,173 321,516 $4,257,724
$13,642,536

Volumetric charges are established based on variable costs such as water purchases, treatment, and energy costs. The peaking and delivery costs on the volumetric
side are the remaining fixed costs intended to be recovered from volumetric charges. Additionally, water conservation related costs must be recovered from tiers
greater than customers’ water budgets. Examples of the District’s programs include conservation outreach such as contests, landscape workshops, trainings, and
education programs.

Palmdale Water District - 2019 Financial Planning, Revenue 5-14
Requirements, Cost of Service, and Rate Setting Analysis



Table 5-8 displays detailed cost allocations to Tier 1 through Tier 5 based on their characteristics.

Table 5-8. Distribution of Costs to Tiers (Test Year, CY 2020)

Variable Costs CY 2020 CY 2020

Salaries $112,075 all tiers $0.02
Natural Gas - Wells & Boosters $218,350 Tier 1 $0.07
Electricity - Wells & Boosters $827,487 Tier 1 $0.25
Maint. & Rep. Operations - Wells $82,297 Tier 1 $0.02
Maint. & Rep. Operations - Boosters $51,435 all tiers $0.01
Chemicals Tier 1 $238,410 Tier 1 $0.07
Chemicals Tier 2-5 $645,388 Tier 2 $0.17

Tier 3 $0.17
Tier 4 $0.17

Tier 5 $0.17
Water Purchases Tier 1 Tier 1 $0.00
Water Purchases Tier 2 $1,113,893 Tier 2 $0.49
Water Purchases Tier 3-5 $899,647 Tier 3 $0.58
Tier 4 $0.58
Tier 5 $0.58
Water Quality (GAC Media) Tier 1 $4,428 Tier 1 $0.001
Water Quality (GAC Media) Tier 2-5 $11,986 Tier 2 $0.003
Tier 3 $0.003
Tier 4 $0.003
Tier 5 $0.003
Total Variable Costs $4,205,396
Water Conservation Facilities Tier 3 $5,124 Tier 3 $0.01
Water Conservation Facilities Tier 4 $2,844 Tier 4 $0.01
Water Conservation Facilities Tier 5 $4,312 Tier 5 $0.01
Water Conservaion Other Tier 3 $97,887 Tier 3 $0.15
Water Conservaion Other Tier 4 $54,333 Tier 4 $0.15
Water Conservaion Other Tier 5 $82,375 Tier 5 $0.15
Water Conservaion Other Tier 4 $133,678 Tier 4 $0.37
Water Conservaion Other Tier 5 $15,254 Tier 5 $0.03
Water Conservation CIP related Tier 5 $2,131 Tier 5 $0.004
Water Conservation Rebate Program Tier3 $165,550 Tier 3 $0.26
Water Conservation Rebate Program Tier4 $35,475 Tier 4 $0.10
Water Conservation Rebate Program Tier5 $35,475 Tier 5 $0.07
Total Water Conservation Costs $634,438
Base Cost $5,913,812 all tiers $0.83
Peaking Tier 4 (Peaking) $376,861 Tier 4 $1.05
Peaking Tier 5 (Peaking) $1,507,445 Tier 5 $2.78
Total Delivery/Peaking Costs $7,798,118
Tier 1 Offset -$1,295,000 Tier 1 -0.39
Proposed Rates CY 2020
Total Revenue Collected from Volumetric Charges $11,342,952 Tier 1 $0.88
Tier 2 $1.52
Tier 3 $2.03
Tier 4 $3.29
Tier 5 $4.64
Palmdale Water District - 2019 Financial Planning, Revenue 5-15

Requirements, Cost of Service, and Rate Setting Analysis



Based on the results from the financial planning and COS analysis, RDN developed water budget rates as shown

in Table 5-9.

Table 5-9. Recommended Rates for CY 2020 (Test Year)

Fixed Charge

5/8 in
3/4 in
1in
11/2in
2in
3in
4in
6in
8in
10in
(| Terwan | porwcr |

Residential,
Commercial,
Irrigation

Tier 1 100% of Essential (Water Budget)
Tier 2 100% of Efficient (Water Budget)
Tier 3 100-130% of Total Water Budget (Tier 1 + Tier 2)
Tier 4 130-160% of Total Water Budget (Tier 1 + Tier 2)

$

$

$

$

$1
$2
$4
$8
$1,2
$1,8

Tier 5 160% and above of Total Water Budget (Tier 1 + Tier 2)

38.22
38.22
38.22
92.99
40.84
52.48
12.05
10.62
89.09
47.47

$0.88
$1.52
$2.03
$3.29
$4.64

Fixed Charges for Study Period

Table 5-10 presents the recommended rate adjustments for fixed charges for SFR, MFR, Irrigation, and
Commercial customers through the study period.

Table 5-10. Current (CY 2019) and Recommended Fixed Charges, CY 2020 - CY 2024

5/8-in
3/4-in
1-in

1 1/2-in
2-in
3-in
4-in
6-in
8-in
10-in

$37.77
$37.77
$37.77
$113.30
$173.74
$314.78
$516.26
$1,019.96
$1,624.40
$2,329.60

Fixed Charge Monthly

$38.22
$38.22
$38.22
$92.99
$140.84
$252.48
$412.05
$810.62
$1,289.09
$1,847.47

$41.60
$41.60
$41.60
$101.49
$153.81
$275.89
$450.38
$886.21
$1,409.41
$2,019.99

$45.52
$45.52
$45.52
$111.51
$169.16
$303.69
$495.96
$976.21
$1,552.74
$2,225.56

$49.79
$49.79
$49.79
$122.47
$185.96
$334.10
$545.84
$1,074.72
$1,709.62
$2,450.56

$54.43
$54.43
$54.43
$134.37
$204.21
$367.16
$600.07
$1,181.81
$1,880.17
$2,695.17

Palmdale Water District - 2019 Financial Planning, Revenue
Requirements, Cost of Service, and Rate Setting Analysis

5-16



Volumetric Charges for Study Period

Table 5-11 presents recommended volumetric charges for the study period. Tier 6 was eliminated under the
proposed rates because no costs can be associated with an additional usage tier. This also simplifies the tiered
rate structure, which helps promote better customer understanding.

Table 5-11. Current (CY 2019) and Recommend Volumetric Charges, CY 2020 - CY 2024

Volumetric Charges per HCF
Proposed Rates CY 2020 | CY 2021 | CY 2022 | CY 2023 | CY 2024

Tier 1 $0.88 $0.88 $0.93 $0.98 $1.03 $1.08
Tier 2 $1.01 $1.52 $1.63 $1.74 $1.86 $1.98
Tier 3 $2.86 $2.03 $2.15 $2.27 $2.40 $2.54
Tier 4 $4.31 $3.29 $3.51 $3.74 $3.98 $4.23
Tier 5 $5.57 $4.64 $5.01 $5.39 $5.79 $6.23
Tier 6 $7.16

Fire Protection Service/Construction Meters

Private Fire Protection service accounts are normally charged a fixed monthly charge only. The costs allocated to
these accounts include costs associated with peaking and customer/billing. Construction meters are excluded
from the computation of peaking cost allocation because the service does not use the system’s distribution.
Private Fire Protection and Construction meter charges for the study period are shown in Table 5-12.

Table 5-12. Construction and Private Fire Protection Service Recommended Rates for the Study Period

" Customer et ize |G 2020 | G 2021 | o 2022 | O 2023 | 2024

Construction 3-in $118.06 $143.61 $178.87 $227.62 $298.20
4-in $187.97 $229.87 $287.89 $368.33 $485.11
Private Fire Protection All $132.52 $14479 $159.31 $175.19 $192.47

Financial Planning with Proposed Rate Adjustments

Table 5-13 shows the financial plan under the proposed rates with an 8.1% annual rate adjustment. The cash
balance of the District slips below the $10.0 million minimum cash reserve alert level during CY 2020 and CY 2021.
However, the cash balance will reach the reserve target of $16.2 million by the end of CY 2023, and will be
maintained through the remaining study period.

Palmdale Water District - 2019 Financial Planning, Revenue 5-17
Requirements, Cost of Service, and Rate Setting Analysis



Table 5-13. Financial Plan, CY 2019 (Current Year) plus CY 2020 — CY 2024

CY 2019 CY 2020
Description CY 2021 CY 2022 CY 2023 CY 2024
Current Year Test Year

Operating Revenues  $24,302,036  $26,158,114  $28,155,340  $30,311,634 $32,651,258 $35,181,866
Water Sales - Proposed ~ $23,132,036  $24,985,489  $26,980,083  $29,133,735 $31,470,711  $33,998,662
Other Operating Revenues $1,170,000 $1,172,625 $1,175,258 $1,177,899 $1,180,547 $1,183,204

O&M Expenses ($21,834,755) ($23,104,573) ($23,816,843) ($24,555,534) ($25,323,517) ($26,124,472)
Net Operating Revenues $2,467,282 $3,053,541 $4,338,497 $5,756,100 $7,327,741 $9,057,395
Non-operating Revenues $2,850,000 $2,896,525 $2,943,971 $2,992,357 $3,039,261 $3,087,047

Other Obligations  ($7,967,239) ($11,146,722) ($5,955,151) ($7,287,525) ($7,196,993) ($12,856,425)

Debt Service Principal ~ ($1,870,195)  ($1,927,762)  ($1,998,889) ($2,728,646) ($2,602,628) ($2,810,000

Debt Service Interest  ($2,596,719)  ($2,539,462)  ($2,469,762) ($3,072,379) ($3,107,865)  ($3,031,569

Change in Investmentin PRWA  ($300,000)  ($300,000)  ($300,000)  ($300,000)  ($300,000)  ($300,000
Water Rebate Program ($236,500)  ($236,500)  ($236,500)  ($236,500)  ($236,500)  ($236,500
Contribution to Reserves $522,151 (8950,000)  ($950,000)  ($950,000)  ($950,000)  ($950,000
Capital PAYGO  ($3,485,977)  ($5,192,998) = . - ($5,528,357

e R e

Net Balance  ($2,649,957) ($5,196,656)  $1,327,317 $1,460,933 $3,170,009 ($711,984)

Beginning of the Year Balance $11,649,020 $7,402,364 $9,679,681 $12,090,613 $16,210,622
Ending Balance  $11,649,020 $7,402,364 $9,679,681 $12,090,613 $16,210,622 $16,448,639

Palmdale Water District - 2019 Financial Planning, Revenue 5-18
Requirements, Cost of Service, and Rate Setting Analysis



6. BILL IMPACTS

RDN performed a bill impact analysis to find the least impact on the customer bills among all customers. Note that
the bill impacts shown below only reflect the test year rates.

Bill Impact on a Hypothetical Customer with a Median Parcel Size Lot

This analysis compares a hypothetical customer’s bill under current and proposed rates. Under the current rates,
a customer, whose parcel is defined as a median, receives indoor water allocation of 11 hcf, assuming the
customer’s household size is 4, and outdoor water allocation of 13 hcf, which totals 24 hcf of water budget. Under
the proposed rates, the same customer receives 9 hcf of water for the indoor allocation and 8 hcf of outdoor
water, which totals 17 hcf of budgeted water. Figure 6-1 shows the hypothetical effect on a customer with a
median parcel across all ranges of use. Figure 6-2 shows the hypothetical effect on a customer with a large parcel
(8,364 sq. ft. of irrigable area) across all ranges of use.

Figure 6-1. Bill Impact on SFR Customers with Median Parcel Size

$200

& $150
E
)
<

€ $100
(@)
=

$50

0 10 20 30 40 50
Monthly Usage (hcf)
=== Current ==- Proposed
Palmdale Water District - 2019 Financial Planning, Revenue 6-1

Requirements, Cost of Service, and Rate Setting Analysis



Figure 6-2. Bill Impact on SFR Customers with a Large Parcel

$200
& $150
E
)
-
€ $100
o
=
$50
0 10 20 30 40 50
Monthly Usage (hcf)
=== Current ==- Proposed

Bill Impacts on Actual Customers

The previous section provides insight into the effects of the rate changes on hypothetical customers. However, in
order to fully understand the impacts of the proposed rates it is necessary to take into account the distribution of
customers across customer classes.

To begin the analysis, Figure 6-3 displays a scatterplot of the change in annual bill of all customers. The annual bill
is the sum of all monthly bills and has been used to reduce the number of observations. In addition, using the
annual bill ignores seasonal effects, implying that each point represents the total effect of the rate change for one
customer. The natural logarithm of annual usage has been used for the x-axis for visualization purposes - small
numbers of large users obfuscate patterns for the majority of users when plotting in levels. Figure 6-3 further
demonstrates how many of the District’s customers are comprised of SFR accounts.

Palmdale Water District - 2019 Financial Planning, Revenue 6-2
Requirements, Cost of Service, and Rate Setting Analysis



Figure 6-3. Annual Customer Bills by Percent Change

200%

CNS
A com
100% IND
INS
* IRR
0% MFR
° SFR

Percent Change in Annual Bill

Natural Log of Annual Usage

We examined the effect of the proposed rates on the entire distribution of customers in the cumulative
distribution function in Figure 6-4. The x-axis is the percentage change in monthly bill, and the y-axis is the
percentage of customers that experience the corresponding percentage change in their monthly bills. Customers
to the left of the red line will experience a bill decrease, and the customers to the right of the red line will
experience a bill increase. This plot tells us that about half of customers will experience a maximum bill increase
of less than 4%.

Figure 6-4. Customer Rate Change Distribution under Proposed Rates

100%

o 80%

)

S

ie]

7] 60%

]

(@)

Y

1)

= 40%

)

1

)

O 20%

0% _J
0% 100% 200%
Percent Change in Monthly Bill
Palmdale Water District - 2019 Financial Planning, Revenue 6-3

Requirements, Cost of Service, and Rate Setting Analysis



This Page Intentionally Left Blank

Palmdale Water District - 2019 Financial Planning, Revenue
Requirements, Cost of Service, and Rate Setting Analysis

6-4



7.DROUGHT SURCHARGE

Revenue that is lost during mandatory cutbacks is revenue the District still requires to cover its costs whether or
not water is available from the State or elsewhere. Not all fixed costs are recovered from the District’s fixed
charges, and the District relies upon estimated consumption to recover its fixed costs, which is reduced during
times of drought. Additionally, there are additional costs to the District during drought and mandatory cutbacks,
including, but not limited to, enforcement of State mandated restrictions on customers and additional reporting
to the State.

A drought surcharge is recommended based on the Board Resolution No. 09-04, which calls for 3 stages of
mandatory cutbacks of 20%, 30%, and 40% of water deliveries. RDN calculated estimated usage reductions per
customer. Rather than a percentage reduction uniformly across each tier, it is more realistic for customers to
reduce excessive use before essential use. Additionally, tier widths above Tier 1 contract due to the application of
drought factors, which means that in a 20% cutback, Tier 3 use actually increases due to Tier 2 including less water.
Table 7-1 shows the estimated overall use reductions based on individual customer responses to State drought
mandates for 2020 if it is a drought year. Reductions were calculated for each year of the study period based on
the total projected use for that year using the percentages calculated for 2020.

Table 7-1. Drought Reductions Based on Individual Customer Use Reduction, 2020

2020 Baseline | 20% Reduction | % of Baseline | 30% Reduction | % of Baseline | 40% Reduction | % of Baseline

Tier 1 3,319,824 2,651,911 -20.1% 2,318,807 -30.2% 1,985,708 -40.2%
Tier 2 2,252,894 1,798,953 -20.1% 1,572,774 -30.2% 1,346,596 -40.2%
Tier 3 644,921 724,840 12.4% 633,706 -1.7% 542,574 -15.9%
Tier 4 357,966 265,272 -25.9% 231,919 -35.2% 198,567 -44 5%
Tier 5 542,716 253,681 -53.3% 225,619 -58.4% 197,548 -63.6%
Total 7,118,322 5,694,658 -20.0% 4,982,825 -30.0% 4,270,993 -40.0%

While revenues ultimately decrease overall due to drought mandates, some variable costs associated with water
purchases also decrease, softening the impact on the District. Customer use reduction will spur a lower demand
for SWP water purchases by the District, reducing the total cost of purchased water. A calculation of the necessary
drought surcharges also includes a reduction in the cost for purchased water. Table 7-2 shows the reduction in
SWP costs under various drought stages based on the usage estimates provided in Table 7-1. Those reductions
are applied to the total revenues, which need to be recovered from water sales.

Table 7-2. Water Purchase Offset, CY 2020 to CY 2024

e a0 | ovauan | cvzoee | ovaoas | v aoud |

Estimated State Water Purchase Cost $2,013,540 $2,156,336 $2,309,226 $2,473,760 $2,651,967
Estimated State Water Volume 3,788,596 3,778,095 3,767,509 3,759,243 3,756,195
Estimated Per Unit Cost $0.53 $0.57 $0.61 $0.66 $0.71

State Water Purchase Offset 20 % $756,641 $811,353  $870,024 $932,976 $1,000,567
State Water Purchase Offset 30 % $1,134,961 $1,217,030 $1,305,036 $1,399,464 $1,500,851
State Water Purchase Offset 40 % $1,513,281 $1,622,707 $1,740,049 $1,865,951 $2,001,135

Palmdale Water District - 2019 Financial Planning, Revenue 7-1

Requirements, Cost of Service, and Rate Setting Analysis



Based on the differences between drought revenues and revenue requirements, unit costs were calculated as
drought surcharges so that the District can maintain sufficient revenues during mandated reduction stages.

Surcharge unit costs through the study period are shown in Table 7-3.

Table 7-3. Drought Surcharges in per HCF, CY 2020 to CY 2024

20% Surcharge $0.35 $0.38 $0.40 $0.42 $0.45
30% Surcharge $0.54 $0.58 $0.61 $0.65 $0.69
40% Surcharge $0.79 $0.84 $0.89 $0.94 $1.00

Palmdale Water District - 2019 Financial Planning, Revenue
Requirements, Cost of Service, and Rate Setting Analysis



8. BILL COMPARISON

There are significant differences in the rates and rate structures of water providers in the neighboring
communities of Palmdale Water District (PWD). Some of the differences are because of administrative paradigms,
which are unique to each agency. For example, investor-owned utilities are allowed to make a profit on their water
service, whereas municipal ones are not. Furthermore, customer rates can be affected by outside funding sources
such as property taxes and transfers. Additionally, the costs associated with different water sources may affect
rates. Finally, the rate structure itself may influence which types of users pay a proportion of costs. Figure 8-1 and
Figure 8-2 show projected water rates in July 2020 for 15 local providers at 17 and 45 ccf of use. The usage level
at 17 ccf was chosen because it represents the average customer usage for PWD customers. Additionally, to
ensure an equal comparison, all variables were controlled for when possible, i.e., lot size, meter size, and season.
Also shown is the proposed rates for PWD. Predictably, when customers use more water, their rates increase. The
rate structure of each agency dictates the price differences between usage levels. Individual water rates range
between $38.56 and $111.68 at 17 ccf of usage and between $67.97 and $260.31 at 45 ccf of usage. The new rates
proposed by PWD will fund O&M expenses, contribute to reserves, and allow significant CIP spending. Following
is a list of the agencies compared in this study:

o Littlerock Creek Irrigation District (LCID)

e Los Angeles County Waterworks District Region 40, Lancaster (LACWWD-40)
e Quartz Hill Water District (QHWD)

e The City of Hesperia (Hesperia)

e Rosamond Community Services District (RCSD)

o Helendale Community Services District (HCSD)

e Victorville Water District (Victorville)

e PWD - Current Rates

e Palm Ranch Irrigation District (PRID)

e Los Angeles County Waterworks District Region 34, Desert View (LACWWD-34)
e Indian Wells Valley Water District (IWVWD)

e (California City

e Santa Clarita Valley Water Agency (SCVWA)

e Golden State Water Company - Barstow/Apple Valley/Wrightwood (GSW)

o CalWater - Antelope Valley

For PWD customers using 17 ccf, their bill will remain significantly below the regional average of customer bills.
The average customer who uses 17 ccf is staying within their water budget. For PWD customers using 45 ccf, their
bill will be slightly above the regional average of customer bills. The average customer using 45 ccf is well above
their water budget. The extra Tier 3 through Tier 5 use this customer is incurring is being billed at a higher level
because it is deemed outside of both essential and efficient use. Customers with larger lots than the average
customer will have more budgeted water and thus lower bills relatively. Even at the high level of usage incurred
at 45 ccf, PWD customers will still have lower bills than approximately 40% of neighboring agency customers.

Palmdale Water District - 2019 Financial Planning, Revenue 8-1
Requirements, Cost of Service, and Rate Setting Analysis



Figure 8-1. Rate Comparison for Customers Using 17 ccf, July 2020

$125
$111.68

$100
(7] $85.61 $85.84
o
14
°
% $75 N

68.61
§_ Average N rr. $6452 $65.37 $67.12
S
o $57.98 $58.30
~§ $54.61 $55.30
$50.21
N~ $50
1
o $42.15
“— $38.56
73
(]
(&)
$25
$0
© » @ @ o © o v o & P & Q L & &
RS §\0 2 N g QQ\ q,}@" K QQ\QQ 44\ O & F &o‘ (’}6 & & © Q\\q’
S .0\- Q\Q Q~ O =) 'b\ g
v N & * o . -
V & Q N
&

Palmdale Water District - 2019 Financial Planning, Revenue
Requirements, Cost of Service, and Rate Setting Analysis

8-2



Figure 8-2. Rate Comparison for Customers Using 45 ccf, July 2020

©»
N
(=]
o

$100

Cost for 45 ccf Proposed Rates

$0

Average

$128.74

$158.29

$150.79 $151.22

$260.31

$229.83 $234.76

$183.66

$141.10
$113.97 $120.35
$111.25 .
$103.55 $107.37

$89.15
$67.97 I

Q )2 Q Q Q¢ O O R \g Q o @ Q D Q o
o O Wo P N & e \6\ K\ ’ S o %) N N
N & o Q < O O ¢ © X >

& T & &g T & F& & &

o & = O L <

W & > ¥

Palmdale Water District - 2019 Financial Planning, Revenue
Requirements, Cost of Service, and Rate Setting Analysis



This Page Intentionally Left Blank

Palmdale Water District - 2019 Financial Planning, Revenue
Requirements, Cost of Service, and Rate Setting Analysis



APPENDIX

Detailed 0&M Expense Projection

Description Escalated by CY 2020 CY 2021 CY 2022 CY 2023 CY 2024 CY 2025 CY 2026 CY 2027 CY 2028 CY 2029
Directors Fees Employee Expenses Inflation Rate: sSo $o $o so $o $o sSo $o $o sSo
Payroll Taxes Employee Expenses Inflation Rate: $5,643 $5,790 $5,940 $6,095 $6,253 $6,416 $6,583 $6,754 $6,929 $7,109
Health Insurance Employee Expenses Inflation Rate: $o $o sSo $o $o $o $o sSo s$o $o
Director's Travel, Seminars & Meetings Employee Expenses Inflation Rate: so sSo $o so So so sSo so so sSo
Director's Expense Share - Alverado, Robert Employee Expenses Inflation Rate: $27,702 $28,422 $29,161 $29,919 $30,697 $31,495 $32,314 $33,155 $34,017 $34,901
Director's Expense Share - Mac Laren, Kathy Employee Expenses Inflation Rate: $27,702 $28,422 $29,161 $29,919 $30,697 $31,495 $32,314 $33,155 $34,017 $34,901
Director's Expense Share - Estes, Joe Employee Expenses Inflation Rate: $27,702 $28,422 $29,161 $29,919 $30,697 $31,495 $32,314 $33,155 $34,017 $34,901
Director's Expense Share - Dino, Vincent Employee Expenses Inflation Rate: $27,702 $28,422 $29,161 $29,919 $30,697 $31,495 $32,314 $33,155 $34,017 $34,901
Director's Expense Share - Henriquez, Marco Employee Expenses Inflation Rate: $27,702 $28,422 $29,161 $29,919 $30,697 $31,495 $32,314 $33,155 $34,017 $34,901
Salaries Employee Expenses Inflation Rate: $1,385,100 $1,421,113 $1,458,062 $1,495,971 $1,534,866 $1,574,773 $1,615,717 $1,657,726 $1,700,827 $1,745,048
Salaries - Departmental Overtime Employee Expenses Inflation Rate: $14,364 $14,737 $15,121 $15,514 $15,917 $16,331 316,756 $17,191 $17,638 $18,097
Payroll Taxes Employee Expenses Inflation Rate: $99,009 $101,583 $104,224 $106,934 $109,715 $112,567 $115,494 $118,497 $121,578 $124,739
Health Insurance Employee Expenses Inflation Rate: $199,044 $204,219 $209,529 $214,977 $220,566 $226,301 $232,185 $238,221 $244,415 $250,770
Pers Employee Expenses Inflation Rate: $123,120 $126,321 $129,605 $132,975 $136,433 $139,980 $143,619 $147,353 $151,185 $155,115
Salaries-On-Call/Stand By Time Employee Expenses Inflation Rate: $107,730 $110,531 $113,405 $116,353 $119,378 $122,482 $125,667 $128,934 $132,287 $135,726
Salaries-Public Relations Overtime Employee Expenses Inflation Rate: so So s$o so So so so so s$o so
PERS-Unfunded Liability Employee Expenses Inflation Rate: $717,174 $735,821 $754,952 $774,581 $794,720 $815,382 $836,582 $858,333 $880,650 $903,547
Worker's Compensation Employee Expenses Inflation Rate: $384,750 $394,754 $405,017 $415,548 $426,352 $437,437 $448,810 $460,479 $472,452 $484,736
Vacation Benefit Expense Employee Expenses Inflation Rate: $25,650 $26,317 $27,001 $27,703 $28,423 $29,162 $29,921 $30,699 $31,497 $32,316
Life Insurance/EAP Employee Expenses Inflation Rate: $6,669 $6,842 $7,020 $7,203 $7,390 $7,582 $7,779 $7,982 $8,189 $8,402
Staff Travel Overall Inflation Rate: $15,365 $15,740 $16,123 $16,516 $16,918 $17,330 $17,752 $18,184 $18,627 $19,081
General Manager Travel Overall Inflation Rate: $5,122 $5,247 $5,374 $5,505 $5,639 $5,777 $5,917 $6,061 $6,209 $6,360
Staff Conferences & Seminars Overall Inflation Rate: $6,146 $6,296 $6,449 $6,606 $6,767 $6,932 $7,101 $7,274 $7,451 $7,632
General Manager Conferences & Seminars Overall Inflation Rate: $4,097 $4,197 $4,299 $4,404 $4,511 $4,621 $4,734 $4,849 $4,967 $5,088
Employee Expense Overall Inflation Rate: so sSo $o so sSo s$o so S0 sSo sSo
Settlements Overall Inflation Rate: $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0
Settlements - City of Palmdale Overall Inflation Rate: $0 $0 $o $0 $o $o $o $o $o $o
Settlements - Mr. Hill's Contract Overall Inflation Rate: $0 $0 $o $0 $0 $0 $0 $o $0 $0
Bank Charges Overall Inflation Rate: $153,653 $157,395 $161,229 $165,155 $169,177 $173,298 $177,518 $181,841 $186,270 $190,807
Legal Services - Consultants Overall Inflation Rat: S0 sSo $o $0 so $0 (o) S0 $0 $0
Accounting Services Overall Inflation Rate: $25,609 $26,233 $26,871 $27,526 $28,196 $28,883 $29,586 $30,307 $31,045 $31,801
Contracted Services Overall Inflation Rate: $0 $0 $o $0 $0 $o $o $o $o $0
Contracted Services - Landscape Services Overall Inflation Rate: $0 so $0 $0 $o $0 S0 $0 $0 $0
Contracted Services - Janatorial Services Overall Inflation Rate: $0 $0 $o $o $o $o $o $o $o $0
Contracted Services - Elevator Services Overall Inflation Rate: $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $o $0 $0
Contracted Services - GASB45 Actuarial Overall Inflation Rate: $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0
Collection Related Fees Overall Inflation Rate: $0 $0 $o $0 $0 $0 $0 $o $0 $0
Permits (Construction) Overall Inflation Rat $17,926 $18,363 $18,810 $19,268 $19,737 $20,218 $20,710 $21,215 $21,732 $22,261
Postage Overall Inflation Rate: $25,609 $26,233 $26,871 $27,526 $28,196 $28,883 $29,586 $30,307 $31,045 $31,801
Public Relations Overall Inflation Rate: $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $o $0 $0
Public Relations - Publications Overall Inflation Rate: $30,731 $31,479 $32,246 $33,031 $33,835 $34,660 $35,504 $36,368 $37,254 $38,161
Public Affairs - Marketing/Outreach Overall Inflation Rate: $25,609 $26,233 $26,871 $27,526 $28,196 $28,883 $29,586 $30,307 $31,045 $31,801
Public Affairs - Advertising Overall Inflation Rate: $4,097 $4,197 $4,299 $4,404 $4,511 $4,621 $4,734 $4,849 $4,967 $5,088
Public Affairs - EQuipment Equipment Inflation Rate: $2,521 $2,542 $2,564 $2,586 $2,608 $2,630 $2,652 $2,674 $2,697 $2,720
Public Affairs - Conference/Seminar/Travel Overall Inflation Rate: $2,561 $2,623 $2,687 $2,753 $2,820 $2,888 $2,959 $3,031 $3,105 $3,180
Public Affairs - Consultants Overall Inflation Rat $3,073 $3,148 $3,225 $3,303 $3,384 $3,466 $3,550 $3,637 $3,725 $3,816
Public Affairs - Memberships Overall Inflation Rate: $717 $735 $752 $771 $789 $809 $828 $849 $869 $890
Public Relations - Other Overall Inflation Rate: $0 $0 $o $0 $o $o $o $o $o $o
Advertising Overall Inflation Rate: $4,097 $4,197 $4,299 $4,404 $4,511 $4,621 $4,734 $4,849 $4,967 $5,088
Office Supplies Overall Inflation Rate: $25,097 $25,708 $26,334 $26,975 $27,632 $28,305 $28,995 $29,701 $30,424 $31,165
Office Furniture Overall Inflation Rate: $5,122 $5,247 $5,374 $5,505 $5,639 $5,777 $5,917 36,061 $6,209 $6,360
Other Operating Overall Inflation Rate: $25,609 $26,233 $26,871 $27,526 $28,196 $28,883 $29,586 $30,307 $31,045 $31,801
Consultants Overall Inflation Rate: $239,699 $245,537 $251,517 $257,642 $263,917 $270,344 $276,928 $283,673 $290,581 $297,658
Insurance Overall Inflation Rate: $286,819 $293,805 $300,960 $308,290 $315,798 $323,489 $331,367 $339,437 $347,704 $356,172
Groundwater Adjudication - Legal Overall Inflation Rate: $40,974 $41,972 $42,994 $44,041 $45,114 $46,213 $47,338 $48,491 $49,672 $50,882
Legal Services Overall Inflation Rate: $128,044 $131,163 $134,357 $137,629 $140,981 $144,415 $147,932 $151,535 $155,225 $159,006
Memberships Overall Inflation Rate: $128,044 $131,163 $134,357 $137,629 $140,981 $144,415 $147,932 $151,535 $155,225 $159,006
Elections Overall Inflation Rate: $29,194 $29,905 $30,633 $31,379 $32,144 $32,927 $33,728 $34,550 $35,391 $36,253
Succession Planning Overall Inflation Rate: $138,288 $141,656 $145,106 $148,640 $152,260 $155,968 $159,766 $163,657 $167,643 $171,726
Groundwater Adjudication - Pumping Assessment Purchased Water Inflation Rate $46,118 $49,461 $53,047 $56,893 $61,018 $65,441 $70,186 $75,274 $80,732 $86,585
100th Anniversary No Escalation: $o s$o so $o $o $o $o so $o $o

Palmdale Water District - 2019 Financial Planning, Revenue
Requirements, Cost of Service, and Rate Setting Analysis

A-1




Salaries

Salaries - Departmental Overtime
Payroll Taxes

Health Insurance

PERS

Staff Travel

Staff Conferences & Seminars
Contracted Services

Staff Training - Auto CAD Civil 3D
Contracted Services - GIS Services
Contracted Services - Reproduction

Contracted Services - Prod./Demand Database

Contracted Services - Plotter/Scanner
Contracted Services - Backflow Software
Contracted Services -
Memberships/Subscriptions

General Materials & Supplies

Supplies - Plotter Paper/Toner

Supplies - Surveying Total Station
Supplies - Miscellaneous

Inspection - Non Recovered
Maintenance & Repair - Office EQuipment
Computer Software - Maint. & Support
Computer Software - SCADAWatch
Salaries

Salaries - Departmental Overtime
Payroll Taxes

Health Insurance

PERS

Staff Travel

Staff Conferences & Seminars
Contracted Services

Contracted Services - Landscape Svcs (All Sites)

Contracted Services - Landscape Svcs (Wells)
Contracted Services - Alarm Services

Contracted Services - Janitorial Services (All Sites)
Contracted Services - Pest Control Svcs (Contracted)
Contracted Services - Pest Control Svcs (Plm Dam)

Contracted Services - Elevator Services
Contracted Services - SCADA Software
Contracted Services - SCADA Hardware

Contracted Services - Seismic Valve Controllers

Contracted Services - Annual Tank Service
Contracted Services - Fire Extinguisher Servi
Contracted Services - Firetide Radio
Contracted Services - Clearscada
Contracted Services - Fenway

Contracted Services - Miscellaneous
Permits (District Facilities including Dams)
Natural Gas - Wells & Boosters

Natural Gas - Buildings

Electricity - Wells & Boosters

Electricity - Buildings

Maint. & Repair - Vehicles

Maint. & Rep. Operations - Office Building
Maint. & Rep. Office - Equipment

Maint. & Rep. Operations - EQuipment
Maint. & Rep. Operations - Wells

Maint. & Rep. Operations - Boosters

Maint. & Rep. Operations - Shop Bldgs
Maint. & Rep. Operations - Facilities

Maint. & Rep. Operations - Water Lines
Maint. & Rep. Operations - Littlerock Dam
Maint. & Rep. Operations - Palmdale Dam
Maint. & Rep. Operations - Palmdale Canal
Maint. & Rep. Operations - Large Meters
Maint. & Rep. Operations - Telemetry
Maint. & Rep. Operations - Hypo Generators
Maint. & Rep. Operations - Heavy Equipment

Maint. & Rep. Operations - Storage Reservoirs

Maint. & Rep. Operations - Fire Hydrants

Employee Expenses Inflation Rate:
Employee Expenses Inflation Rate:
Employee Expenses Inflation Rate:
Employee Expenses Inflation Rate:
Employee Expenses Inflation Rate:

Overall Inflation Rate:
Overall Inflation Rate:
Overall Inflation Rate:
Overall Inflation Rate:
Overall Inflation Rate:
Overall Inflation Rate:
Overall Inflation Rate:
Overall Inflation Rate:
Overall Inflation Rate:
Overall Inflation Rate:
Overall Inflation Rate:
Equipment Inflation Rate:
Equipment Inflation Rate:
Equipment Inflation Rate:
Equipment Inflation Rate:
Equipment Inflation Rate:
Overall Inflation Rate:
Equipment Inflation Rate:
Equipment Inflation Rate:

Employee Expenses Inflation Rate:
Employee Expenses Inflation Rate:
Employee Expenses Inflation Rate:
Employee Expenses Inflation Rate:
Employee Expenses Inflation Rate:

Overall Inflation Rate:
Overall Inflation Rate:
Overall Inflation Rate:
Overall Inflation Rate:
Overall Inflation Rate:
Overall Inflation Rate:
Overall Inflation Rate:
Overall Inflation Rate:
Overall Inflation Rate:
Overall Inflation Rate:
No Escalation:

No Escalation:

Overall Inflation Rate:
Overall Inflation Rate:
Overall Inflation Rate:
Overall Inflation Rate:
Overall Inflation Rate:
Overall Inflation Rate:
Overall Inflation Rate:
Overall Inflation Rate:
Utility/Chemical Inflation Rate:
Utility/Chemical Inflation Rate:

B Utility/Chemical Inflation Rate:

Utility/Chemical Inflation Rate:
Construction Inflation Rate:
Construction Inflation Rate:
Construction Inflation Rate:
Construction Inflation Rate:
Construction Inflation Rate:
Construction Inflation Rate:
Construction Inflation Rate:
Construction Inflation Rate:
Construction Inflation Rate:
Construction Inflation Rate:
Construction Inflation Rate:
Construction Inflation Rate:
Construction Inflation Rate:
Construction Inflation Rate:
Construction Inflation Rate:
Construction Inflation Rate:
Construction Inflation Rate:
Construction Inflation Rate:

$1,120,752
$11,543
$84,132
$216,486
$108,756
$4,610
$4,917
$0
$13,317
$18,438
$2,049
$0

$0

$7,563
$2,310,039
$117,990
$185,706
$485,298
$236,493
$6,146
$15,365
$0
$15,877
$38,925
so
$46,096
$6,146
$5,122
$4,097
$18,000
$10,000
$7,683
$102,435
$5,122
so
$15,365
$0
$2,049
$40,974
$218,350
$9,371
$827,487
$91,624
$33,479
$25,753
$o
$12,361
$82,297
$51,435
$25,753
$51,506
$309,036
$15,452
$0
$10,301
$15,452
$5,151
$7,726
$43,780
$5,151
$0

$1,149,721
$11,843
$86,319
$222,115
$111,584
$4,722
$5,037
SO
$13,641
$18,887
$2,099
$0

$o

$7,627
$2,370,100
$121,058
$190,534
$497,916
$242,642
$6,296
$15,740
)
$16,264
$39,873
$0
$47,219
$6,296
$5,247
$4,197
$18,000
$10,000
$7,870
$104,930
$5,247
S0
$15,740
S0
$2,099
$41,972
$227,008
$9,757
$860,298
$95,398
$34,487
$26,529
$0
$12,734
$84,650
$52,906
$26,529
$53,057
$318,343
$15,917
$0
$10,611
$15,917
$5,306
$7,959
$45,099
$5,306
$0

$1,179,439
$12,151
$88,564
$227,890
$114,485
$4,837
$5,159
SO
$13,973
$19,347
$2,150
)

$0

$7,692
$2,431,723
$124,205
$195,488
$510,862
$248,951

$4,299
$18,000
$10,000
$8,061
$107,486
$5,374
so
$16,123
S0
$2,150
$42,994
$236,005
$10,158
$894,397
$99,327
$35,526
$27,328
S0
$13,117
$87,070
$54,419
$27,328
$54,655
$327,932
$16,397
$0
$10,931
$16,397
$5,466
$8,198
$46,457
$5,466
$0

$1,209,963
$12,466
$90,866
$233,815
$117,461
$4,955
$5,285
$0
$14,313
$19,819
$2,202
$0

$0

$7,757
$2,494,947
$127,435
$200,571
$524,144
$255,423
$6,606
$16,516
$0
$17,066
$41,839
so
$49,547
$6,606
$5,505
$4,404
$18,000
$10,000
$8,258
$110,103
$5,505
so
$16,516
$0
$2,202
$44,041
$245,440
$10,577
$930,150
$103,418
$36,596
$28,151
$0
$13,512
$89,588
So0I002)
$28,151
$56,301
$337,809
$16,890
$0
$11,260
$16,890
$5,630
$8,445
$47,856
$5,630
$0

$1,241,369
$12,791
$93,229
$239,894
$120,515
$5,075
$5,414
S0
$14,662
$20,301
$2,256
)

$0

$7,823
$2,559,816
$130,748
$205,786
$537,772
$262,064
$6,767
$16,918
)
$17,482
$42,858
so
$50,753
$6,767
$5,639
$4,511
$18,000
$10,000
$8,459
$112,785
$5,639
so
$16,918
S0
$2,256
$45,114
$255,439
$11,013
$968,043
$107,678
$37,698
$28,999
$0
$13,919
$92,247
$57,654
$28,999
$57,997
$347,983
$17,399
$0
$11,599
$17,399
$5,800
$8,700
$49,298
$5,800
$0

$1,273,614
$13,123
$95,653
$246,131
$123,649
$5,199
$5,546
$o
$15,019
$20,796
$2,311
$0

$0

$7,889
$2,626,371
$134,147
$211,136
$551,754
$268,878
$6,932
$17,330
$0
$17,907
$43,902
so
$51,989
$6,932
$5,777
$4,621
$18,000
$10,000
$8,665
$115,532
$5,777
so
$17,330
$0
$2,311
$46,213
$265,895
$11,466
$1,007,671
$112,113
$38,834
$29,872
$o
$14,339
$95,002
$59,376
$29,872
$59,744
$358,464
$17,923
$0
$11,949
$17,923
$5,974
$8,962
$50,782
$5,974
$0

$1,306,696
$13,464
$98,140
$252,531
$126,864
$5,326
$5,681
S0
$15,385
$21,302
$2,367
$0

$0

$7,956
$2,694,657
$137,635
$216,626
$566,099
$275,869
$7,101
$17,752
$0
$18,344
$44,971
so
$53,255
$7,101
$5,917
$4,734
$18,000
$10,000
$8,876
$118,345
$5,917
so
$17,752
S0
$2,367
$47,338
$276,779
$11,938
$1,048,919
$116,730
$40,003
$30,772
S0
$14,770
$97,840
$61,150
$30,772
$61,543
$369,260
$18,463
$0
$12,309
$18,463
$6,154
$9,232
$52,312
$6,154
$0

$1,340,614
$13,814
$100,691
$259,096
$130,162
$5,455
$5,819
$o
$15,760
$21,821
$2,425
$0

so

$8,023
$2,764,718
$141,214
$222,258
$580,818
$283,041
$7,274
$18,184
$0
$18,790
$46,067
so
$54,552
$7,274
$6,061
$4,849
$18,000
$10,000
$9,092
$121,228
$6,061
so
$18,184
$o
$2,425
$48,491
$288,060
$12,430
$1,091,670
$121,538
$41,208
$31,699
$o

Sl 215
$100,745
$62,966
$31,699
$63,397
$380,382
$19,019
$0
$12,679
$19,019
$6,340
$9,510
$53,887
$6,340
$0

$1,375,401
$14,174
$103,309
$265,833
$133,546
$5,588
$5,961
$0
$16,143
$22,352
$2,484
$0

$0

$8,091
$2,836,601
$144,885
$228,037
$595,919
$290,400
$7,451
$18,627
$0
$19,248
$47,188
so
$55,881
$7,451
$6,209
$4,967
$18,000
$10,000
$9,314
$124,180
$6,209
$o
$18,627
$0
$2,484
$49,672
$299,773
$12,942
$1,136,060
$126,544
$42,449
$32,653
$0
$15,674
$103,727
$64,829
$32,653
$65,306
$391,839
$19,592
$0
$13,061
$19,592
36,531
$9,796
$55,510
$6,531
$0

$1,411,103
$14,542
$105,996
$272,745
$137,019
$5,724
$6,106
S0
$16,537
$22,897
$2,544
$0

$0

$8,159
$2,910,352
$148,652
$233,966
$611,413
$297,951
$7,632
$19,081
30
$19,717
$48,338
$0
$57,242
$7,632
$6,360
$5,088
$18,000
$10,000
$9,540
$127,204
$6,360
$0
$19,081
$0
$2,544
$50,882
$311,991
$13,475
$1,182,362
$131,756
$43,728
$33,637
$0
$16,146
$106,807
$66,754
$33,637
$67,273
$403,640
$20,182
$0
$13,455
$20,182
36,727
$10,091
$57,182
$6,727
$0

Palmdale Water District - 2019 Financial Planning, Revenue
Requirements, Cost of Service, and Rate Setting Analysis

A-2



Maint. & Rep. Operations - Air Vacs

Maint. & Rep. Operations - Meter Exchanges
Materials - Hot Tapping
Telecommunication - Other

Testing - Regulatory Compliance

Testing - Large Meter Testing

Testing - Edison Testing

Service Costs Construction

Groundwater Adjudication - Pumping Assessment
Waste Disposal

Fuel - Gas and Diesel

Lubricates District Wide

Uniforms

Supplies

Supplies - General

Supplies - Hypo Generators

Supplies - Electrical

Supplies - Telemetry

Supplies - Construction Materials

Tools

Tools - Facilities

Tools - Vehicles

Equipment - Firetide Radios

Equipment - GF Signet Flow Meters
Equipment - SCADA Workstations
Equipment - Compound Meters

Leases - EQuipment

Leases - Fleet

Salaries

Salaries - Departmental Overtime

Payroll Taxes

Health Insurance

PERS

Staff Travel

Staff Conferences & Seminars

Training - Lab Equipment

Training - SCADA Network Equipment
Contracted Services

Contracted Services - Landscape Services
Contracted Services - Alarm Services
Contracted Services - Janatorial Services
Contracted Services - Pest Control Services
Contracted Services - Wind Turbine Services
Contracted Services - CMMS Software
Contracted Services - SCADA Software
Contracted Services - Lab Software
Contracted Services - Lab Equipment Services
Contracted Services - Water Quality Svcs (SolarBee)
Contracted Services - SCADA Hardware
Contracted Services - Seismic Valve Controllers
Contracted Services - Miscellaneous
Permits (WTP Facilities Inclusive)

Natural Gas - Wells & Boosters

Natural Gas - Water Treatment Plant
Electricity - Wells & Boosters

Electricity - Water Treatment Plant

Maint. & Rep. Office - Equipment

Maint. & Rep. Operations - EQuipment
Maint. & Rep. Operations - Shop Bldgs
Maint. & Rep. Operations - Facilities
Maint. & Rep. Operations - Telemetry
Maint. & Rep. Operations - Hypo Generators
Maint. & Repair - Wind Turbine

Palmdale Lake Management

General Material & Supplies
Telecommunication - Other

Testing - Edison Testing

Emergency Repair & Recovery

Filter Media Testing/Inspection

EPA / Regulatory Compliance

Waste Disposal

Palmdale Water District - 2019 Financial Planning, Revenue

Construction Inflation Rate:
Construction Inflation Rate:
Equipment Inflation Rate:

Overall Inflation Rate:

Overall Inflation Rate:

Overall Inflation Rate:

Overall Inflation Rate:

Overall Inflation Rate:

Purchased Water Inflation Rate
Utility/Chemical Inflation Rate:
Fuels and Automobile Inflation Rate:
Fuels and Automobile Inflation Rate:
Equipment Inflation Rate:
Equipment Inflation Rate:
Equipment Inflation Rate:
Equipment Inflation Rate:
Equipment Inflation Rate:
Equipment Inflation Rate:
Equipment Inflation Rate:
Equipment Inflation Rate:
Equipment Inflation Rate:
Equipment Inflation Rate:
Equipment Inflation Rate:
Equipment Inflation Rate:
Equipment Inflation Rate:
Equipment Inflation Rate:
Equipment Inflation Rate:
Equipment Inflation Rate:
Employee Expenses Inflation Rate:
Employee Expenses Inflation Rate:
Employee Expenses Inflation Rate:
Employee Expenses Inflation Rate:
Employee Expenses Inflation Rate:
Overall Inflation Rate:

Overall Inflation Rate:

Overall Inflation Rate:

Overall Inflation Rate:

Overall Inflation Rate:

Overall Inflation Rate:

Overall Inflation Rate:

Overall Inflation Rate:

Overall Inflation Rate:

Overall Inflation Rate:

Overall Inflation Rate:

Overall Inflation Rate:

Overall Inflation Rate:

Overall Inflation Rate:

Overall Inflation Rate:

Overall Inflation Rate:

Overall Inflation Rate:

Overall Inflation Rate:

Overall Inflation Rate:
Utility/Chemical Inflation Rate:
Utility/Chemical Inflation Rate:
Utility/Chemical Inflation Rate:
Utility/Chemical Inflation Rate:
Construction Inflation Rate:
Construction Inflation Rate:
Construction Inflation Rate:
Construction Inflation Rate:
Construction Inflation Rate:
Construction Inflation Rate:
Construction Inflation Rate:
Employee Expenses Inflation Rate:
Overall Inflation Rate:

Overall Inflation Rate:

Overall Inflation Rate:
Construction Inflation Rate:
Utility/Chemical Inflation Rate:
Overall Inflation Rate:
Utility/Chemical Inflation Rate:

Requirements, Cost of Service, and Rate Setting Analysis

$5,151
$154,518
$0
$5,122
$20,487
$12,804
$15,365
$o

$0
$20,824
$138,809
$25,897
$28,237
$o
$75,635
$0
$3,025
$0
$35,296
$0
$35,296
$10,085
so

$141,185
$1,032,669
$75,411
$83,106
$183,654
$104,652
$3,073
$3,073
$5,122

$30,731
so

$0

$So
369,656
so
$3,124
$So
$208,237
$5,151
$20,602
$6,181

$10,301
$102,600
$0

so

$5,306
$159,172
$0
$5,247
$20,986
$13,116
$15,740
S0

$0
$21,681
$143,790
$26,827
$28,476
S0
$76,275
$0
$3,051
$0
$35,595
$0
$35,595
$10,170
so
$7,627

$15,255
$142,379
$1,059,518
$77,372
$85,267
$188,429
$107,373
$3,148
$3,148
$5,247

$0
$7,870
$27,282
$31,479
S0

$0

S0
$71,353
so
$3,252
SO
$216,814
$5,306
$21,223
$6,367
$74,280
S0

)
$10,611
$105,268
S0

so

$5,466
$163,966
$0
$5,374
$21,497
$13,436
$16,123
SO

S0
$22,574
$148,951
$27,789
$28,717
S0
$76,920
)
$3,077
S0
$35,896
)
$35,896
$10,256
so

$143,584
$1,087,066
$79,383
$87,484
$193,328
$110,165
$3,225
$3,225
$5,374

$32,246
S0

)
$8,061
$27,946
$32,246
so

)

S0
$73,090
so
$3,386
SO
$225,744
$5,466
$21,862
$6,559
$76,517
S0

)
$10,931
$108,005
S0

so

$5,630
$168,904
$0
$5,505
$22,021
$13,763
$16,516
$So

$o
$23,504
$154,296
$28,787
$28,960
$o
$77,571
$0
$3,103
$o
$36,200
$0
$36,200
$10,343
so
$7,757

$15,514
$144,799
$1,115,330
$81,447
$89,758
$198,355
$113,029
$3,303
$3,303
$5,505

$33,031
so

$0

$o
$74,870
so
$3,526
$o
$235,042
$5,630
$22,521
$6,756

$11,260
$110,813
$0

so

$5,800
$173,991
$0
$5,639
$22,557
$14,098
$16,918
S0

S0
$24,472
$159,834
$29,820
$29,205
S0
$78,227
$0
$3,129
S0
$36,506
)
$36,506
$10,430
so

$146,024
$1,144,328
$83,565
$92,092
$203,512
$115,968
$3,384
$3,384
$5,639

$33,835
S0

)
$8,459
$29,324
$33,835
so

)

S0
$76,694
so
$3,671
SO
$244,722
$5,800
$23,199
$6,960
$81,196
S0

$0
$11,599
$113,694
S0

so

$5,974
$179,232
$0
$5,777
$23,106
$14,441
$17,330
$S0

$0
$25,480
$165,570
$30,890
$29,452
$0
$78,889
$0
$3,156
$0
$36,815
$0
$36,815
$10,519
so
$7,889

$15,778
$147,260
$1,174,081
$85,738
$94,486
$208,803
$118,983
$3,466
$3,466
$5,777

$78,562
so
$3,822
S0
$254,802
$5,974
$23,898
$7,169

$11,949
$116,650
$0

so

$6,154
$184,630
)
$5,917
$23,669
$14,793
$17,752
SO

S0
$26,530
$171,511
$31,998
$29,701
S0
$79,557
$0
$3,182
S0
$37,126
)
$37,126
$10,608
so

$148,506
$1,204,607
$87,967
$96,943
$214,232
$122,076
$3,550
$3,550
$5,917

$35,504
S0

)
$8,876
$30,770
$35,504
so

)

S0
$80,475
so
$3,979
SO
$265,296
$6,154
$24,617
$7,385
$86,161
S0

)
$12,309
$119,683
S0

so

$6,340
$190,191
$0
$6,061
$24,246
$15,153
$18,184
$So

$0
$27,622
$177,667
$33,147
$29,952
S0
$80,230
$0
$3,209
$0
$37,441
$0
$37,441
$10,697
so
$8,023

$16,046
$149,762
$1,235,927
$90,254
$99,464
$219,802
$125,250
$3,637
$3,637
$6,061

$82,435
so
$4,143
$o
$276,223
$6,340
$25,359
$7,608

$12,679
$122,794
$o

so

36,531
$195,919
$0
$6,209
$24,836
$15,523
$18,627
$o

$0
$28,760
$184,043
$34,336
$30,206
$0
$80,909
$0
$3,236
$0
$37,757
$0

CEWL 757
$10,788
$o
$8,091

$16,182
$151,029
$1,268,061
$92,601
$102,050
$225,517
$128,507
$3,725
$3,725
$6,209

$84,442
$o
$4,314
$0
$287,600
$6,531
$26,123
$7,837

$13,061
$125,987
$0

$o

36,727
$201,820
30
$6,360
$25,441
$15,901
$19,081
$0

$0
$29,944
$190,647
$35,569
$30,461
$0
$81,593
30
$3,264
$0
$38,077
30
$38,077
$10,879
$o

$152,307
$1,301,030
$95,008
$104,703
$231,380
$131,848
$3,816
$3,816
$6,360

$38,161
$o

30

$0
$86,499
$o
$4,492
S0
$299,445
36,727
$26,909
$8,073

$13,455
$129,263
$0

$0



Uniforms

Supplies - General

Supplies - Hypo Generators

Supplies - Electrical

Supplies - Telemetry

Supplies - Lab

Outside Lab Work

Tools

Chemicals

Leases -Equipment

Salaries

Salaries - Departmental Overtime

Payroll Taxes

Health Insurance

PERS

Staff Travel

Staff Conferences & Seminars

Contracted Services

Contracted Services - Infosend

Contracted Services - Infosend Drought Related
Contracted Services - Vendors

Contracted Services - Assessor Data (Realquest)
Contracted Services - Credit Reporting Services
Contracted Services - AMR Services (Itron)
Contracted Services - Letter Extractor (OPEX)
Contracted Services - GASB Actuarial Reports
Memberships/Subscriptions

Office Furniture

Natural Gas - Office Building

Electricity - Office Building

Maintenance & Repair - Office Building
Maintenance & Repair - Office Equipment
Maint. & Rep. Operations - Large Meters
Maint. & Rep. Operations - Meter Exchanges
General Material & Supplies

Business Forms

Telecommunication - Office
Telecommunication - Cellular Stipend
Telecommunication - Cellular (District On-Call)
Testing - Meter Testing

Testing - Large Meter Testing

Supplies

Leases - EQuipment

Salaries

Salaries - Departmental Overtime

Payroll Taxes

Health Insurance

PERS

Staff Travel

Staff Conferences & Seminars

Public Relations - Landscape Workshop/Training
Public Relations - Contests

Public Relations - Education Programs
Public Relations - General Media (Public Outreach)
Public Relations - Other

Drought Enforcement Expense

Supplies - General

Salaries

Salaries - Departmental Overtime

Salaries - Intern Program

Payroll Taxes

Health Insurance

Pers

Staff Travel

Staff Conferences & Seminars

Employee Expense

Succession Planning

Temporary Staffing

Employee Recruitment

Employee Retention

Employee Relations

Consultants

Training - Safety

Training - Specialty

Safety/HR Program
Memberships/Subscriptions

HR/Safety Publications

Office Furniture

Supplies - Safety

Equipment Inflation Rate:
Equipment Inflation Rate:
Equipment Inflation Rate:
Equipment Inflation Rate:
Equipment Inflation Rate:
Utility/Chemical Inflation Rate:
Utility/Chemical Inflation Rate:
Equipment Inflation Rate:
Utility/Chemical Inflation Rate:
Equipment Inflation Rate:

Employee
Employee
Employee
Employee
Employee

Expenses Inflation Rate:
Expenses Inflation Rate:
Expenses Inflation Rate:
Expenses Inflation Rate:
Expenses Inflation Rate:

Overall Inflation Rate:
Overall Inflation Rate:
Overall Inflation Rate:
Overall Inflation Rate:
Overall Inflation Rate:
Overall Inflation Rate:
Overall Inflation Rate:
Overall Inflation Rate:
Overall Inflation Rate:
Overall Inflation Rate:
Overall Inflation Rate:
Overall Inflation Rate:
Equipment Inflation Rate:
Utility/Chemical Inflation Rat
Utility/Chemical Inflation Rat
Construction Inflation Rate:
Construction Inflation Rate:
Construction Inflation Rate:
Construction Inflation Rate:
Equipment Inflation Rate:
Overall Inflation Rate:
Overall Inflation Rate:
Overall Inflation Rate:
Overall Inflation Rate:
Overall Inflation Rate:
Overall Inflation Rate:
Equipment Inflation Rate:
Equipment Inflation Rate:

Employee
Employee
Employee
Employee
Employee

Expenses Inflation Rate:
Expenses Inflation Rate:
Expenses Inflation Rate:
Expenses Inflation Rate:
Expenses Inflation Rate:

Overall Inflation Rate:
Overall Inflation Rate:
Overall Inflation Rate:
Overall Inflation Rate:
Overall Inflation Rate:
Overall Inflation Rate:

Overall Inflation Rate:
Equipment Inflation Rate:

Employee
Employee
Employee
Employee
Employee
Employee

Expenses Inflation Rate:
Expenses Inflation Rate:
Expenses Inflation Rate:
Expenses Inflation Rate:
Expenses Inflation Rate:
Expenses Inflation Rate:

Overall Inflation Rate:
Overall Inflation Rate:

Employee Expenses Inflation Rate:

Overall Inflation Rate:

Employee Expenses Inflation Rate:

Overall Inflation Rate:
Overall Inflation Rate:
Overall Inflation Rate:
Overall Inflation Rate:
Overall Inflation Rate:
Overall Inflation Rate:
Overall Inflation Rate:
Overall Infla’
Overall Inflation Rate:

Equipment Inflation Rate:
Equipment Inflation Rate:

n Rate:

$16,135
$15,127

$730,256
$3,078
$56,430
$103,883
$74,385
$2,049
$1,537
$0
$276,576

$25,609

$122,923
$o
$5,122
$0
$7,059
$228,542
$1,026
$0
$17,442
$32,576
$18,468
Sisa7
$1,537

$35,852
$15,365
$1,024
$1,639
$1,024
$0
$30,254

$16,272
$15,255

$749,242
$3,158
$57,897
$106,583
$76,319
$2,099
$1,574
$0
$283,311

$o
$3,051
$4,197
$26,233
$25,708

$125,916
so
$5,247
$0
$7,119
$234,484
$1,053
$o
$17,895
$33,422
$18,948
$1,574
$1,574

$36,726
$15,740
$1,049
$1,679
$1,049
$o
$30,510

$16,410
$15,384

$768,722
$3,240
$59,403
$109,355
$78,303
$2,150
$1,612
$0
$290,211

$o
$3,077
$4,299
$26,871
$26,334

$128,983
o
$5,374
$0
$7,179
$240,580
$1,080
$o
$18,361
$34,291
$19,441
$1,612
$1,612

$37,620
$16,123
$1,075
$1,720
$1,075
$o
$30,768

$16,548
$15,514

$788,709
$3,324
$60,947
$112,198
$80,339
$2,202
$1,652
S0
$297,279
SO
$4,679

$27,526

$7,240
$246,835
$1,108
$o
$18,838
$35,183
$19,946
$1,652
$1,652

$38,536
$16,516
$1,101
$1,762
$1,101
$o
$31,028

$16,688

$1,033,918
$3,129
$809,216
$3,411
$62,532
$115,115
$82,428
$2,256
$1,692
$o
$304,519
so
$4,793
$0

$o
$3,129
$4,511
$28,196
$27,632

$135,342
so
$5,639
$0
$7,301
$253,253
$1,137
$o
$19,328
$36,098
$20,465
$1,692
$1,692

$39,475
$16,918
$1,128
$1,805
$1,128
$o
$31,291

$16,830
$15,778

$1,076,242
$3,156
$830,255
$3,499
$64,157
$118,108
$84,571
S2)ea|
$1,733
$o
$311,936
S0
$4,910

$138,638
$o
$5,777
$0
$7,363
$259,838
$1,166
$o
$19,830
$37,036
$20,997
Sl 7R
$1,733

$40,436
$17,330
$1,155
$1,849
$1,155
$o
$31,556

$16,972
$15,911

$1,120,297
$3,182
$851,842
$3,590
$65,826
$121,179
$86,770
$2,367
$1,775
$o
$319,533
so

$o
$3,182
$4,734
$29,586
$28,995

$142,015
so
$5,917
$o
$7,425
$266,593
$1,197
$o
$20,346
$37,999
$21,543
$1,775
$1,775

$41,421
$17,752
$1,183
$1,894
$1,183
$0
$31,823

$17,116
$16,046

$1,165,957
$3,209
$873,990
$3,684
$67,537
$124,329
$89,026
$2,425
$1,818
$0
$327,315
$0
$5,152

$145,473
$o
$6,061
Ee]
$7,488
$273,525
$1,228
$o
$20,875
$38,987
$22,103
$1,818
$1,818

$42,430
$18,184
$1,212
$1,940
$1,212
$o
$32,092

$17,260
$16,182

$1,213,368
$3,236
$896,714
$3,780
$69,293
$127,562
$91,341
$2,484
$1,863
$0
$335,286
$0

$31,045

$149,016
$o
$6,209
$o
$7,551
$280,636
$1,260
$o
$21,418
$40,001
$22,678
$1,863
$1,863

$43,463
$18,627
$1,242
$1,987
$1,242
$o
$32,363

$17,407
$16,319

$1,262,821
$3,264
$920,028
$3,878
$71,095
$130,879
$93,716
$2,544
$1,908
$0
$343,452
$o

$o
$3,264
$5,088
$31,801
$31,165

$152,645
so
$6,360
$0
$7,615
$287,933
$1,293
$0
$21,975
$41,041
$23,267
$1,908
$1,908

$44,522
$19,081
$1,272
$2,035
$1,272
$0
$32,637

Palmdale Water District - 2019 Financial Planning, Revenue
Requirements, Cost of Service, and Rate Setting Analysis

A-4



Salaries

Salaries - Departmental Overtime

Payroll Taxes

Health Insurance

PERS

Staff Travel

Staff Conferences & Seminars

Cogsdale Reimplementation and Templates
Contracted Services - ACS

Contracted Services - Computer Vendors
Cloud Services-MS-Office 360

Cloud Services-MS-Project

Cloud Services-Ms-Visio

Cloud Services-Adobe-Creative Suite

Cloud Services-SeamlessDocs

Cloud Services-IPSwitch-Moveit

Cloud Services-GFI Fax

Cloud Services-KnowBe4-Security Awareness

Cloud Services-Network Solutions-DNS, Web Registration

Cloud Services-IBM-Maa$ 360

Cloud Services-MSP Portal-Bit Defender
Cloud Services-Akins-WiFi

Cloud Services-FleetMate

Cloud Services-Security Metrics-PCl Compliance
Cloud Services-Citrix

Contracted Services - Offsite Services
Contracted Services - Printer Services
Contracted Services - Website Design Services
Contracted Services - Telephony Services
Contracted Services - Cloud Services
Contracted Services - Network Services
Contracted Services - Hardware Warranties
Contracted Services - Access Control
Memberships/Subscriptions

Maintenance & Repair - Computer
Telecommunication - Office Phone
Telecommunication - Office Backbone
Telecommunication - WTP Backbone
Telecommunication - Cellular (Data & On-Call)
Computer Equipment - Computers
Computer Equipment - Mobility

Computer Equipment - Monitors

Computer Equipment - Printers

Computer Equipment - Printer Supplies
Computer Equipment - Telephony
Computer Equipment - Other

Computer Equiment - Warranty and Support
Software - Maint. and Support

Software M&S - Xtelesis-Phone

Software M&S- Tredent-Appassure
Software M&S- Condusive/V-locity-Diskeeper
Software M&S- FWI

Software M&S- Strategy 7

Software M&S- Astria Solutions-Docstar
Software M&S- NemoQ-Ticketing

Software M&S- FMT-Management Reporter
Software M&S- Neogov

Software M&S- TruePoint

Software M&S- Technology Unlimited
Software M&S- Sierra Workforce-Timesheet
Software M&S- Tredent-SAN Manager
Software M&S- Faranics-Powersaver
Software M&S- Netwrix-Monitoring
Software M&S- VMWare-Virtualization
Software M&S- iPrism-Web Filter

Software M&S- Quest-VMWare Recovery
SoftwareM&sS - Starnik

Software M&S- Dynamics GP

Software - Software and Upgrades

Salaries

Employee Expenses Inflation Rate:
Employee Expenses Inflation Rate:
Employee Expenses Inflation Rate:
Employee Expenses Inflation Rate:
Employee Expenses Inflation Rate:

Overall Inflation Rate:
Overall Inflation Rate:
Overall Inflation Rate:
Overall Inflation Rate:
Overall Inflation Rate:
Overall Inflation Rate:
Overall Inflation Rate:
Overall Inflation Rate:
Overall Inflation Rate:
Overall Inflation Rate:
Overall Inflation Rate:
Overall Inflation Rate:
Overall Inflation Rate:
Overall Inflation Rate:
Overall Inflation Rate:
Overall Inflation Rate:
Overall Inflation Rate:
Overall Inflation Rate:
Overall Inflation Rate:
Overall Inflation Rate:
Overall Inflation Rate:
Overall Inflation Rate:
Overall Inflation Rate:
Overall Inflation Rate:
Overall Inflation Rate:
Overall Inflation Rate:
Overall Inflation Rate:
Overall Inflation Rate:
Overall Inflation Rate:
Overall Inflation Rate:
Overall Inflation Rate:
Overall Inflation Rate:
Overall Inflation Rate:
Overall Inflation Rate:
Equipment Inflation Rate:
Equipment Inflation Rate:
Equipment Inflation Rate:
Equipment Inflation Rate:
Equipment Inflation Rate:
Equipment Inflation Rate:
Equipment Inflation Rate:
Equipment Inflation Rate:
Overall Inflation Rate:
Overall Inflation Rate:
Overall Inflation Rate:
Overall Inflation Rate:
Overall Inflation Rate:
Overall Inflation Rate:
Overall Inflation Rate:
Overall Inflation Rate:
Overall Inflation Rate:
Overall Inflation Rate:
Overall Inflation Rate:
Overall Inflation Rate:
Overall Inflation Rate:
Overall Inflation Rate:
Overall Inflation Rate:
Overall Inflation Rate:
Overall Inflation Rate:
Overall Inflation Rate:
Overall Inflation Rate:
Overall Inflation Rate:
Overall Inflation Rate:
Overall Inflation Rate:

Employee Expenses Inflation Rate:

$219,051
$3,078
$17,442
$25,394
$22,316
$3,073
$10,244
so

$0

$0
$30,731
$3,073
$1,024
$5,122
$5,122
$6,146
$2,561
$1,537
$4,097
$6,146
$3,227
$3,175
$6,658
$3,073
$2,049
$5,122
$2,561
$3,688
$5,122
$0
$35,852
$15,365
$56,339
$2,561
$o
$17,926
$22,536
$15,365
$46,096
$45,381
$45,381
$2,017
$0
$3,025
$3,025
$25,212
$15,127
$o
$10,244
$8,195
$4,610
$512
$2,561
$16,390
$2,561
$1,537
$8,195
$37,901
$2,049
$4,097
$3,073
$205
$2,049
$1,024
$26,633
$8,707
$o
$56,339
$20,487
$945,459

$224,746
$3,158
$17,895
$26,054
$22,896
$3,148
$10,493
$0

$0

SO
$31,479
$3,148
$1,049
$5,247
$5,247
$6,296
$2,623
$1,574
$4,197
$6,296
$3,305
$3,253
$6,820
$3,148
$2,099
$5,247
$2,623
$3,777
$5,247
$0
$36,726
$15,740
$57,712
$2,623
S0
$18,363
$23,085
$15,740
$47,219
$45,765
$45,765
$2,034
$0
$3,051
$3,051
$25,425
$15,255
S0
$10,493
$8,394
$4,722
$525
$2,623
$16,789
$2,623
$1,574
$8,394
$38,824
$2,099
$4,197
$3,148
$210
$2,099
$1,049
$27,282
$8,919
S0
$57,712
$20,986
$970,041

$230,590
$3,240
$18,361
$26,731
$23,491
$3,225
$10,749
s$o

$0

SO
$32,246
$3,225
$1,075
$5,374
$5,374
$6,449
$2,687
$1,612
$4,299
$6,449
$3,386
$3,332
$6,987
$3,225
$2,150
$5,374
$2,687
$3,869
$5,374
)
$37,620
$16,123
$59,117
$2,687
S0
$18,810
$23,647
$16,123
$48,369
$46,152
$46,152
$2,051
)
$3,077
$3,077
$25,640
$15,384
SO
$10,749
$8,599
$4,837
$537
$2,687
$17,198
$2,687
$1,612
$8,599
$39,770
$2,150
$4,299
$3,225
$215
$2,150
$1,075
$27,946
$9,136
S0
$59,117
$21,497
$995,262

$236,585
$3,324
$18,838
$27,426
$24,102
$3,303
$11,010

$0
$38,536
$16,516
$60,557
$2,753
$o
$19,268
$24,223
$16,516
$49,547
$46,542
$46,542
$2,069
$0
$3,103
$3,103
$25,857
$15,514
$0
$11,010
$8,808
$4,955
$551
$2,753
$17,617
$2,753
$1,652
$8,808
$40,738
$2,202
$4,404
$3,303
$220
$2,202
$1,101
$28,627
$9,359
$o
$60,557
$22,021
$1,021,139

$242,736
$3,411
$19,328
$28,139
$24,728
$3,384
$11,278
s$o

$0

S0
$33,835
$3,384
$1,128
$5,639
$5,639
$6,767
$2,820
$1,692
$4,511
$6,767
$3,553
$3,496
$7,331
$3,384
$2,256
$5,639
$2,820
$4,060
$5,639
$0
$39,475
$16,918
$62,032
$2,820
SO
$19,737
$24,813
$16,918
$50,753
$46,936
$46,936
$2,086
$0
$3,129
$3,129
$26,076
$15,645
S0
$11,278
$9,023
$5,075
$564
$2,820
$18,046
$2,820
$1,692
$9,023
$41,730
$2,256
$4,511
$3,384
$226
$2,256
$1,128
$29,324
$9,587
S0
$62,032
$22,557
$1,047,688

$249,047
$3,499
$19,830
$28,871
$25,371
$3,466
$11,553
$o

$0

$0
$34,660
$3,466
$1,155
$5,777
$5,777
$6,932
$2,888
$1,733
$4,621
$6,932
$3,639
$3,581
$7,510
$3,466
$2,311
$5,777
$2,888
$4,159
$5,777
$0
$40,436
$17,330
$63,542
$2,888
$o
$20,218
$25,417
$17,330
$51,989
$47,333
$47,333
$2,104
$0
$3,156
$3,156
$26,296
$15,778
$o
$11,553
$9,243
$5,199
$578
$2,888
$18,485
$2,888
$1,733
$9,243
$42,747
$2,311
$4,621
$3,466
$231
$2,311
$1,155
$30,038
$9,820
$o
$63,542
$23,106
$1,074,928

$255,523
$3,590
$20,346
$29,621
$26,031
$3,550
$11,835
s$o

$0

SO
$35,504
$3,550
$1,183
$5,917
$5,917
$7,101
$2,959
$1,775
$4,734
$7,101
$3,728
$3,669
$7,692
$3,550
$2,367
$5,917
$2,959
$4,260
$5,917
$0
$41,421
$17,752
$65,090
$2,959
S0
$20,710
$26,036
$17,752
$53,255
$47,734
$47,734
$2,122
$0
$3,182
$3,182
$26,519
$15,911
S0
$11,835
$9,468
$5,326
$592
$2,959
$18,935
$2,959
$1,775
$9,468
$43,788
$2,367
$4,734
$3,550
$237
$2,367
$1,183
$30,770
$10,059
S0
$65,090
$23,669
$1,102,876

$262,166
$3,684
$20,875
$30,392
$26,708
$3,637
$12,123
so

$0

$o
$36,368
$3,637
$1,212
$6,061
$6,061
$7,274
$3,031
$1,818
$4,849
$7,274
$3,819
$3,758
$7,880
$3,637
$2,425
$6,061
$3,031
$4,364
$6,061
$0
$42,430
318,184
$66,675
$3,031
$o
$21,215
$26,670
$18,184
$54,552
$48,138
$48,138
$2,139
$0
$3,209
$3,209
$26,743
$16,046
S0
$12,123
$9,698
$5,455
$606
$3,031
$19,396
$3,031
$1,818
$9,698
$44,854
$2,425
$4,849
$3,637
$242
$2,425
$1,212
$31,519
$10,304
$o
$66,675
$24,246
$1,131,551

$268,983
$3,780
$21,418
$31,182
$27,402
$3,725
$12,418
S0

$0

$0
$37,254
$3,725
$1,242
$6,209
$6,209
$7,451
$3,105
$1,863
$4,967
$7,451
$3,912
$3,850
$8,072
$3,725
$2,484
$6,209
$3,105
$4,470
$6,209
$0
$43,463
$18,627
$68,299
$3,105
$o
$21,732
$27,320
$18,627
$55,881
$48,545
$48,545
$2,158
$0
$3,236
$3,236
$26,970
$16,182
$o
$12,418
$9,934
$5,588
$621
$3,105
$19,869
$3,105
$1,863
$9,934
$45,947
$2,484
$4,967
$3,725
$248
$2,484
$1,242
$32,287
$10,555
$0
$68,299
$24,836
$1,160,972

$275,976
$3,878
$21,975
$31,993
$28,115
$3,816
$12,720
$o

$0

S0
$38,161
$3,816
$1,272
$6,360
$6,360
$7,632
$3,180
$1,908
$5,088
$7,632
$4,007
$3,943
$8,268
$3,816
$2,544
$6,360
$3,180
$4,579
$6,360
$0
$44,522
$19,081
$69,962
$3,180
$0
$22,261
$27,985
$19,081
$57,242
$48,956
$48,956
$2,176
$0
$3,264
$3,264
$27,198
$16,319
S0
$12,720
$10,176
$5,724
$636
$3,180
$20,353
$3,180
$1,908
$10,176
$47,066
$2,544
$5,088
$3,816
$254
$2,544
$1,272
$33,073
$10,812
$0
$69,962
$25,441
$1,191,157

Palmdale Water District - 2019 Financial Planning, Revenue
Requirements, Cost of Service, and Rate Setting Analysis

A-5



Salaries - Departmental Overtime

Payroll Taxes

Health Insurance

PERS

Staff Travel

Staff Conferences & Seminars

Contracted Services - Assessor Data (Realquest)
Contracted Services - Credit Reporting Services
Contracted Services - AMR Services (Itron)
Contracted Services - NEMO-Q System

Mtce & Rep Office - EQuipment

General Material & Supplies

Business Forms

Water Purchases

OAP Chrg (Prior Year)

Water Recovery

Water Quality (GAC Media)

Plant Expenditures

Annual Sediment Removal

Employee Expenses Inflation Rate:
Employee Expenses Inflation Rate:
Employee Expenses Inflation Rate:
Employee Expenses Inflation Rate:

Overall Inflation Rate:

Overall Inflation Rate:

Overall Inflation Rate:

Overall Inflation Rate:

Overall Inflation Rate:

Overall Inflation Rate:
Equipment Inflation Rate:
Equipment Inflation Rate:
Overall Inflation Rate:
Purchased Water Inflation Rate
No Escalation:

Purchased Water Inflation Rate

" Treatment Inflation Rate:

No Escalation:
Construction Inflation Rate:

$7,695
$74,129
$222,899
$96,444
$2,049
$3,073
$10,244
$4,097
$8,195

$0

$202
$7,059
$1,024
$2,142,064
$25,000
-$128,524
$16,414
$212,000
$600,000

$7,895
$76,056
$228,694
$98,952
$2,099
$3,148
$10,493
$4,197
$8,394

S0

$203
$7,119
$1,049
$2,293,974
$25,000
-$137,638
$16,931
$212,000
$618,071

$8,100
$78,033
$234,640
$101,524
$2,150
$3,225
$10,749
$4,299
$8,599

S0

$205
$7,179
$1,075
$2,456,623
$25,000
-$147,397
$17,463
$212,000
$636,687

$8,311
$80,062
$240,741
$104,164
$2,202
$3,303
$11,010
$4,404
$8,808

$0

$207
$7,240
$1,101
$2,631,660
$25,000
-$157,900
$18,018
$212,000
$655,863

$8,527
$82,144
$247,000
$106,872
$2,256
$3,384
$11,278
$4,511
$9,023

S0

$209
$7,301
$1,128
$2,821,242
$25,000
-$169,275
$18,605
$212,000
$675,617

$8,749
$84,280
$253,422
$109,651
$2,311
$3,466
$11,553
$4,621
$9,243

$0

$210
$7,363
$1,155
$3,025,052
$25,000
-$181,503
$19,214
$212,000
$0

$8,976
$86,471
$260,011
$112,502
$2,367
$3,550
$11,835
$4,734
$9,468

S0

$212
$7,425
$1,183
$3,243,579
$25,000
-$194,615
$19,844
$212,000
$o

$9,210
$88,719
$266,771
$115,427
$2,425
$3,637
$12,123
$4,849
$9,698

$0

$214
$7,488
$1,212
$3,477,303
$25,000
-$208,638
$20,490
$212,000
S0

$9,449
$91,026
$273,707
$118,428
$2,484
$3,725
$12,418
$4,967
$9,934

S0

$216
$7,551
$1,242
$3,727,530
$25,000
-$223,652
$21,156
$212,000
S0

$9,695
$93,392
$280,823
$121,507
$2,544
$3,816
$12,720
$5,088
$10,176
S0

$218
$7,615
$1,272
$3,996,124
$25,000
-$239,767
$21,845
$212,000
S0

Palmdale Water District - 2019 Financial Planning, Revenue
Requirements, Cost of Service, and Rate Setting Analysis



Detailed CIP Expense Projection

Damword gt b m Ewom vt o By [ e i) O ARZL oY 23 oY D23
ahy Chwmrall lnfilation Eate: Eop e - |
I m e s-oresan el Bl e pletformma P E-Rst P DT R-F- 1 TS, T
LIPS Syrate rm | Syamermeetra | Fl o et o o S, DD
atimnm Flam Ciwemrall Imif e ticn Rate:
wirofit o f OO0 wersrioct ot o wwey" Ex e et Dol vam i s Divarall infilntisn Rate: e, AT
S lnd raxtms churs Be freoaks (4 e el - oot b Ko Coem et oo o e R e N, DD frta e e )
et | Se-yrmon s oo v o b Mo Excn o : o, T o S, [0 o T, TN g R e )
ntlm Flam Civarall Inflation Rate: SO, A0S
arees Lrf e e Syate e Kl o et o o S, DD
g Kl ez et o 0 RN, DD
et P vmi - P T ng Dremrall Infilntion Eate:
TR oy R o e e Syt Divarall infilntisn Rate: e, T
mtrisctl o K o tor Wie i/ Teat Dmowin Chwmprall Infilation Eate:
sl gy Sl e o B s m-rdy S e ik Divarall infilntisn Rate:
dte Fadexign Civmrall Infintion Eate: G, T
ot ikm Sy Civarall Inflation Rate:
o Firop et b a Ao ronee-d B2 220 1R Civarall Inflation Rate:
Equipment nflaticn Rate : 1%, 137
e Tank @ WTHF Emguiprment i flstizn Rate
@D Filter e Gl P e Can by Dnvbr o o et st e s R e S5l S
WG (2D Fores, Capacity 2 L% g, e sd of 455 P eet, rete s ts 3005 WS RP, Flgurs D5, FUr-Da ) Lt ruest b ekl sl ose Rt
vtomrage tank mear A7 Stre et Cast ardd Caxt B E. S, W 3250 Tone | et rsst bm e Il Rete: =0
vtorage tank e ar Sierre Ty ardd Baes Street (25950 Toree ) Lt mact o Tl e o Bk e =]
= MDD Fmres At 00 P Bomater Purmgs St o | 30 16 VWS RAP, S oo 108} ot et b ekl bl ese Rt L] S0, L L
I T St omnd Avesnoa e 5| 2000 WSRAF , Sectiiom LI ot mast b It o Bt
T om0 ST morth oo Weell 2% (2016 WS RAF, Se i om L) L et st b Dol m i e v
A o St St oo bl fove oy B tow s Ao . 5 oared Aove. T 290040 WS P, Sectiom W0k et ruset oo Dieeflmtiloses Boreas:
[T Chwrmrall Irflati=sn REate: SNRlE, 1ITT
r Civarall Inflation Rate: 121, B0
- 2th St Caxt Couiprme-sryt inflaticm Rate
R U L el AR TR e Cguiipm-rt Iniflation Rate
Jloaking at Leane O tiaon) Exguipmesnt I flaticm Rate e, S
e M WA red el Cogu et Pl stion Rate L 10
for Fab Shap Equipmesnt bnflation Rate : ], T
abile ApR Mo Excn o : TS [0
CFERLLT P E-Q s ES A R-F-1,H Sl [0
it for WTHF Cguiipm-rt Iniflation Rate
EFT-T-110F 3 Civarall Inflation Rate: &=L 50T
P E-Rst P DT R-F- 1 I 15, D0
et | S-yrman i o s s Fl o et o o
mret s Dirembkeor eyt et echmeent for ok idstesr Exguipmesnt I flaticm Rate o, T
wt Fhole Dijgeer Sk Ste e At e chemes mtp Couiprmesryt inFlaticm Eate e e
B el LS KLl Cyuiiprm-srt Iniflation Rate
et ibmn hag b ter @0 Woell 5 Eguiipmmesnt Iniflation Rate ST
Fl b= -1, P E-Q s ES A R-F-1,H Sl [0
R tromiler Emguiprment inflstizn Rate
amevis 2%t 51 ATt h 51 Krth St Equipment inflaticn Rate :
v s | 2 yrmmr sl - ot Egquiprme-mryt Ini Flation Rate e e o [ e o |
3 For SEADA | 4 year repls cemmaeent schecale Emguiprment i flstizn Rate fri-a | e SNl MED L. T1A
Chanin re cord ar Emguiprment i flstizn Rate RIS, 213
DAPRCK 32 with SOADAR ok 575 [4- e ar wobaedul e} Cogus et e Pl mtiom Rate i, A LEE W v s L= LA LT
t /i i e s (P o 1 e (15 f Couiprme-sryt inflaticm Rate S, D Tl 1OHG el 2T
b Winckern - J Tampa (-ysnrm schoe o b Exguipmesnt I flaticm Rate ==, T Sl O o=, B3 oL 1aT
it ot b P Sk da Eguiiprmesrst I flatiicm Rate
o v ecours ven e r Coguiprm-srt nflsticm Rate S, 23T
b Wt s P reacnu e Wiaahaer Emguiprment inflstizn Rate a0
e wee kdar for tmeck 11ES Eguiiprmesrst I flatiicm Rate o, 2

Palmdale Water District - 2019 Financial Planning, Revenue
Requirements, Cost of Service, and Rate Setting Analysis




V-03 2000 Cat 4 416C Backhoe

V-04 1991 Dump Truck

V-100 Replacement

V-101 2007 Cat 420E Backhoe

V-119 2008 Cat 420E Backhoe

V-24 1988 Crane - Newer Crane

V-35 Replacement

V-43 1990 Flatbed w/liftgate

V-60 1998 Utility

V-66 1993 JD Loader

V-67 1999 Water Truck

V-7 Replacement

V-82 2004 PU - Traffic Control - Overload

V-84 Replacement

Ware House Conversion to Office & Fleet Shop Repairs

17TH FR P-4 TO P-8

20TH FRP-8TO Q

25TH FRP TO P-8

25th St. Booster #3

26th St, Rudall, & 27th St @ Avenue Water Main Replacement

2800 Zone Avenue P-8from 32nd St to 37 St. ( 2,675 feet of 12" Dia. Pipe)
2800 Zone Avenue Q-6 between 12St East and 15th St. East (965 feet of 12" Dia. Pipe)
2950 Zone 52nd St North and Fort Tejon Road (1,570 feet of 16" Dia. Pipe)
2950 Zone Avenue S-10 and 40St. East (48 feet of 8" Dia. Pipe)

3400 Zone Camares Drive between Sierra Ancha Drive and Avenue S-14 (1,400 feet of 8" Dia. Pipe)

45th St. Booster #3 Zone 2800

45th St. Booster #3 Zone 3000

Ave. P-12, Division, 2nd, 3rd, Stanridge Water Main Repl.

Ave. Q1, Q2, Q3, Q4, & Q5 @ 5th St. E. Wtr Main Repl. (Spec 1603)

Ave. Q10 and 12th Street East Water Main Replacement

Ave. Q14 and 15th Street East Water Main Replacement

Avenue V-5 Water Main Replacement (Spec 1504)

Bathroom Remodel

Booster Building Rehab (5-years schedule)

Brine Storage Tanks - Well Sites (Qty. 8) (2 each year)

CAMARES @ S

Carpet, Tile and Painting of District Building

Cat C-7 enginer rehab (1 each year for total 2)

CL2 Monitoring @ Well Sites

Clearwell #3 Booster

District Office - Stucco Repair & Painting

District Office Fire System upgrade w/control panel changeout
Emergency Power to NOB

Engine Swap for efficiency @Well 2

Filter Influent Valve Replacements

Fire Pump Deficiency at Existing 5MG Booster Pump Station (Zone 3250)
Fire Pump Deficiency at Existing Hilltop Pump Station (Zone 3250)

Fire Pump Deficiency at Existing T-8 Pump Station (Zone 3250)

Fire Pump Deficiency at Existing V-5 Pump Station (zone 3400)

FT TEJON

Hypo Generator

Influent Mag Meter 30"

Meter Replacement Program (Quantity = 2,700)

NaOCL Generator Replacement - (4 Wells) (1 each year)

P @ 10TH (LOCKHEED)

Palmdale Ditch Improvements (5-years schedule)

Parking Lot Re-Surfacing - Administration and N.O.B.

Parking Lot Resurfacing (Main Office)

Pipeline with Velocity Deficiency (1,350 feet of 24" diameter 2800 Zone)
Pipeline with Velocity Deficiency (23 feet of 20" diameter 2800 Zone)
Pipeline with Velocity Deficiency (231 feet of 24" diameter 2950 Zone)
Pipeline with Velocity Deficiency (516 feet of 20" diameter 2950 Zone)

Palmdale Water District - 2019 Financial Planning, Revenue
Requirements, Cost of Service, and Rate Setting Analysis

Equipment Inflation Rate:
Equipment Inflation Rate:
Equipment Inflation Rate:
Equipment Inflation Rate:
Equipment Inflation Rate:
Equipment Inflation Rate:
Equipment Inflation Rate:
Equipment Inflation Rate:
Equipment Inflation Rate:
Equipment Inflation Rate:
Equipment Inflation Rate:
Equipment Inflation Rate:
Equipment Inflation Rate:
Equipment Inflation Rate:
Construction Inflation Rate:
Equipment Inflation Rate:
Equipment Inflation Rate:
Equipment Inflation Rate:
Equipment Inflation Rate:
Equipment Inflation Rate:
Equipment Inflation Rate:
Equipment Inflation Rate:
Equipment Inflation Rate:
Equipment Inflation Rate:
Equipment Inflation Rate:
Equipment Inflation Rate:
Equipment Inflation Rate:
Construction Inflation Rate:
Construction Inflation Rate:
Construction Inflation Rate:
Construction Inflation Rate:
Construction Inflation Rate:
Construction Inflation Rate:
Construction Inflation Rate:
Equipment Inflation Rate:
Equipment Inflation Rate:
Construction Inflation Rate:
Overall Inflation Rate:
Overall Inflation Rate:
Equipment Inflation Rate:
Construction Inflation Rate:
Overall Inflation Rate:
Utility/Chemical Inflation Rate:
Equipment Inflation Rate:
Equipment Inflation Rate:
Equipment Inflation Rate:
Equipment Inflation Rate:
Equipment Inflation Rate:
Equipment Inflation Rate:
Equipment Inflation Rate:
Equipment Inflation Rate:
Equipment Inflation Rate:
Equipment Inflation Rate:
Equipment Inflation Rate:
Equipment Inflation Rate:
Construction Inflation Rate:
Construction Inflation Rate:
Construction Inflation Rate:
Equipment Inflation Rate:
Equipment Inflation Rate:
Equipment Inflation Rate:
Equipment Inflation Rate:

$65,550
$23,195
$55,465
$23,195

$355,785

$18,152

o)

$23,195
$25,212

$36,054
$32,775

$112,679

$221,476
$43,023

$705,923
$66,811
$183,540
$15,452

$43,265

$11,341

$66,105

$162,719

$23,391

$23,391

$53,057

$791,888
$285,672

so
$91,258
$49,874
$60,167

$37,140
$33,052

$159,172
$31,479

so

$813,595
$20,340
$711,896
$67,376

$15,917
$137,949

$165,484
$23,589
$164,096
$46,152
so
$846,119
$94,119

so $630,226

$9,634
$1,465,854
$112,603
$38,259 $39,411
$33,332 $33,614
$53,844
$32,246
$232,712
$205,120

sSo $713,633

$o $970,094

so
$67,946 $68,521
$16,397 $16,890

so $814,365

$259,121

$156,454

$146,024

$844,853

$283,370

$40,598

$30,590

$506,912

$17,399

$140,420



Pipeline with Velocity Deficiency (96 feet of 16" diamter 2950 Zone)
Radar Level Sensor (3 year roll-out)

Radio System for SCADA (4 year replacement schedule)
Radio System Upgrades for District

Replacement Diaphragm Pump (4 pumps) (1/yr.)
Sampling Dock at Inlet Structure

Sedimentation Basin Cleaning

Septic Tank

Sierra Hwy. Tie-In and Abandonment (Harold Streets)
Soft Starts (22 well & 11 booster) (5-years schedule)
Turbidimeter

TX Plant GAC Staging Area Pavement

Vault Access Issues - WTP

Vault/Large Meter (~ 15/yr @ $7500/setup for 5 years)
Water Main Replacement - Avenue P and 25th (Spec 1601)
Water Main Replacement - Avenue P8 & 20th STE

Well 16 Rehabilitation

WELL 17 YARD PIPING

Well 2 Rehabilitation

Well 23 Rehabilitation

Well 3 Rehabilitation

Well 33 Rehabilitation

Well/Booster Rehab 2021 - 2024

WTP Kitchen Remodel

Recharge Project Design (PRGRRP) (3 years)

Palmdale Water District - 2019 Financial Planning, Revenue
Requirements, Cost of Service, and Rate Setting Analysis

Equipment Inflation Rate:
Equipment Inflation Rate:
Equipment Inflation Rate:
Equipment Inflation Rate:
Equipment Inflation Rate:
Equipment Inflation Rate:
Equipment Inflation Rate:
Equipment Inflation Rate:
Equipment Inflation Rate:
Equipment Inflation Rate:
Equipment Inflation Rate:
Equipment Inflation Rate:
Equipment Inflation Rate:
Equipment Inflation Rate:

Construction Inflation Rate:
Construction Inflation Rate:
Construction Inflation Rate:
Construction Inflation Rate:
Construction Inflation Rate:
Construction Inflation Rate:
Construction Inflation Rate:
Construction Inflation Rate:
Construction Inflation Rate:
Construction Inflation Rate:

Overall Inflation Rate:

$81,685

$143,201

$32,271
$100,846
$121,015

$113,452

$123,614
$64,897
$0
$185,421
$195,723
$o

$512,177

$37,873
$0
S0
$8,205

$1,025,599
$20,512

$32,544 $32,819

$114,412 $115,380

$196,312

$196,312
$100,809  $508,294

$786,976 $806,143

$1,034,277

$33,097

$116,356

$523,603
$56,301
$1,101,034

$33,377

$117,341

$539,374

A-9



Reserve Policy
RESOLUTION NO. 18-10

PALMDALE WATER DISTRICT'S RESERVE POLICY

WHEREAS, the Board of Directors recognizes the need to ensure that the District will have
sufficient funding available to meet its operating, emergency capital, and debt service obligations.

WHEREAS, the Board of Directors recognizes the need for sound financial policies as stewards
ofour customers' funds.

WHEREAS, the Board of Directors recognizes the need for funds to be held in reserve for
unanticipated and unforeseeable expenses.

WHEREAS, the Board of Directors recognizes the need to avoid significant water rate fluctuations.
WHEREAS, the Board of Directors recognizes a need for long term strategic financial policies.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Board of Directors of Palmdale Water District
hereby rescinds the District's existing Reserve Policy (Resolution No. 13-13) and establishes the
Palmdale Water District Reserve Policy as follows:

Legally Restricted Funds:

The Capital Improvement Fees, as modified by District Resolution No. 13-12, to consist of fee
components allocated for infrastructure and for water supply, and Water Supply Connection Fees
are subject to the requirements of the Mitigation Fee Act (AB 1600). These funds are deposited
in the Capital Improvement Fund described below. The funds may not be used to support ongoing
operations of the District. The District is legally required to account for these funds separately. An
annual report is required to show balance forward, fees collected, income earned, expenditures, and
future commitments. All funds collected must be committed or expended within five years of
being collected or they must be refunded. Other legally restricted funds, including bond proceeds
funds, reserve funds or rate stabilization funds, are described below.

I. Capital Improvement Fund:

PWD will maintain a capital improvement fund with fees collected from developers to pay
for the new facilities necessary to deliver water service to newly developed property and to
pay for the additional water supplies necessitated to meet the demand for water created by
such newly developed property. These fees are for offsite improvements, such as the
development's fair share cost of wells, reservoirs, transmission mains, treatment plant capacity,
and other necessary facilities, as well as to pay for water supply acquisitions and projects
associated with new water supplies

necessitated by new development. The fees are collected at rates established by the Board of
Directors based upon specific engineering studies. The rates charged are based on a project's
equivalent capacity unit (ECU) basis. These funds are restricted to the design and construction
of capital facilities for water delivery, and as otherwise provided in Resolution No. 13-12 and in

Palmdale Water District - 2019 Financial Planning, Revenue A-10
Requirements, Cost of Service, and Rate Setting Analysis



Appendix H to the District's Rules and Regulations.
2. Bond Proceeds Fund(s):

Bond proceeds fund(s) are monies derived from the proceeds of a bond issue or similar
indebtedness like a private placement loan, certificate of participation or other indebtedness
instrument. Typically, they consist of construction fund monies and a debt service reserve fund.
The use of these proceeds is restricted by conditions set forth in the respective legal bond
documents. These funds are usually held by the Trustee in favor of the bond holders. These
funds should be tracked and accounted for in accordance with the bond documents and to ensure,
IT applicable, the taxe exempt nature ofthe applicable bonds. These funds shall also be invested
as provided in the bond documents.

3. Debt Service Reserve Funds:

This fund is governed by legal bond covenants for the District's revenue bonds. Bond covenants
may require that this fund be maintained at a level sufficient to fund maximum annual debt service
payments or such other requirement of the Internal Revenue Code. These funds are held by the
bond trustee during the term of the bonds and are to be used in the event the District is unable
to meet its required semi-annual debt service obligation. Annual interest earnings on bond reserve
funds shall be applied to each year's debt service payments or as otherwise required by the
bond documents.

A Reserve Fund for the Palmdale Water District Public Financing Authority Water Revenue
Bonds, Series 2013A (the"2013A Bonds") and the Palmdale Water District Public Financing
Authority Water Revenue Refunding Bonds (the "2018A Bonds") is established pursuant to the
Indentures for each of the bonds in an amount equal to the Reserve Requirement. Assured
Guaranty Municipal Corp. ("AGM") has issued a municipal bond debt service reserve insurance
policy in an amount equal to the initial Reserve Requirement for deposit in the Reserve Fund for
the 2013A Bonds. Build America Mutual Assurance Company ("BAM") has issued a municipal
bond debt service reserve insurance policy in an amount equal to the initial Reserve
Requirement for deposit in the Reserve Fund for the 2018 A Bonds.

4, Rate Stabilization Fund:
This fund is governed by legal bond covenants for the District's revenue bonds. The District may

withdraw all or any portion of the amounts on deposit in the Rate Stabilization Fund and transfer
such amounts to the Water Revenue Fund for application

Palmdale Water District - 2019 Financial Planning, Revenue A-11
Requirements, Cost of Service, and Rate Setting Analysis



in accordance with an Installment Purchase Agreement for each of the 2013A Bonds and the 2018 A
Bonds.

Board Designated Funds:

Board designated funds are set to accomplish systematic and strategic goals or provide for prudent
management of operations. The Board of Directors has complete discretion in the management and
designation of self-adopted funds. Such funds can be modified, transferred, or altered by Board action.

I. Dam Self Insurance:

The District shall make available $5 million for self-insurance of the Littlerock Darn as seed money
for reconstruction under the terms of the agreement between Palmdale Water District, Littlerock
Creek Irrigation District and Palmdale Water District Public Facilities Corporation. The money will
be used to begin the reconstruction following an event during the time applications for FEMA
reimbursement are in process following an event.

2. O&M Operating Reserve:

The O&M Operating Reserve will vary over time with a goal of maintaining three (3) months
average cash operating expenses of $5.7 million. This reserve is considered a working cash
requirement. It bridges the gap between the time expenses are paid and the time revenues from the
same service are collected from customers.

3. O&M Emergency Reserve:

The O&M Emergency Reserve will vary over time with a goal of maintaining three (3) months
average cash operating expenses of $5.7 million. This reserve rs considered a working cash
requirement for use in an emergency situation.

4. Unrestricted Reserves:

Unrestricted reserves represent a remainder balance of cash that is not yet designated for some use
by the Board of Directors.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Directors ofthe Palmdale Water
District as follows:

Each fiscal year budget will report on the status of the reserve over the previous year and budget for
proposed sources and uses for each reserve.

PASSED AND ADOPTED by the Board of Directors of the Palmdale Water District at a
regular meeting held on this 25thday of September ,2018 by the following vote:

Ayes: Vice President Mac Laren, Director Alvarado,
Director Henriquez

Noes: None.

Palmdale Water District - 2019 Financial Planning, Revenue A-12
Requirements, Cost of Service, and Rate Setting Analysis



Absent: President Dino, Director Estes

Abstain: None.

ATTEST:

R aws(

Assistant Secretary, Board of Directors

APPROVED AS TO FORM:

e b P

Aleshire & Wynder, LLP

Palmdale Water District - 2019 Financial Planning, Revenue A-13
Requirements, Cost of Service, and Rate Setting Analysis



Loan Documents

Palmdale Water District

2022 Water Revenue Bonds

(Capital Improvement Project Financing)

Sources & Uses

Dated 06/01/2022 | Delivered 06/01/2022

Sources Of Funds

Par Amount of Bonds $20,550,000.00
Total Sources $20,550,000.00
Uses Of Funds

Deposit to Project Construction Fund 20,000,000.00
Costs of Issuance 240,000.00
Total Underwriter's Discount (0.800%) 164,400.00
Gross Bond Insurance Premium ( 30.0 bp) 105,156.00
Reserve Surety (3%) 35,724.00
Rounding Amount 4,720.00
Total Uses $20,550,000.00

2022 Revenue Bonds 190716 | SINGLE PURPOSE | 7/16/2019 | §:32Pm

NHA|ADVISORS

Financial & Policy Strategies.

Delivered.

Palmdale Water District - 2019 Financial Planning, Revenue
Requirements, Cost of Service, and Rate Setting Analysis

A-14



Palmdale Water District

2022 Water Revenue Bonds

(Capital Improvement Project Financing)

Debt Service Schedule

Date Principal Coupon Interest Total P+l
06/30/2022 - - - -
06/30/2023 495,000.00 4.000% 675.100.00 1,170,100.00
06/30/2024 375,000.00 4.000% 794,700.00 1,169,700.00
06/30/2025 390,000.00 4.000% 779.,400.00 1,169,400.00
06/30/2026 405,000.00 4.000% 763,500.00 1,168,500.00
06/30/2027 420,000.00 4.000% 747,000.00 1.167.000.00
06/30/2028 440,000.00 4.000% 729.800.00 1.169.800.00
06/30/2029 455,000.00 4.000% 711,900.00 1,166,900.00
06/30/2030 475,000.00 4.000% 693,300.00 1,168,300.00
06/30/2031 495,000.00 4.000% 673.900.00 1,168,200.00
06/30/2032 515,000.00 4.000% 653,700.00 1,168,700.00
06/30/2033 535,000.00 4.000% 632,700.00 1,167,700.00
06/30/2034 555,000.00 4.000% 610,900.00 1,165,900.00
06/30/2035 580,000.00 4.000% 588.,200.00 1.168,200.00
06/30/2036 605,000.00 4.000% 564,500.00 1,169.,500.00
06/30/2037 430,000.00 4.000% 539,800.00 1,169,800.00
06/30/2038 655,000.00 4.000% 514,100.00 1,169,100.00
06/30/2039 680,000.00 4.000% 487,400.00 1,167,400.00
06/30/2040 710,000.00 4.000% 459,600.00 1,169.,600.00
06/30/2041 740,000.00 4.000% 430.600.00 1.170.600.00
06/30/2042 770,000.00 4.000% 400,400.00 1,170,400.00
06/30/2043 800,000.00 4.000% 369.,000.00 1,169,000.00
06/30/2044 830,000.00 4.000% 336,400.00 1,166,400.00
06/30/2045 865,000.00 4.000% 302,500.00 1,167,500.00
06/30/2046 900,000.00 4.000% 267,200.00 1,167.200.00
06/30/2047 940,000.00 4.000% 230,400.00 1,170.400.00
06/30/2048 975,000.00 4.000% 192,100.00 1,167.100.00
06/30/2049 1.015,000.00 4.000% 152,300.00 1,167.300.00
06/30/2050 1,055,000.00 4.000% 110,900.00 1,165,900.00
06/30/2051 1,100,000.00 4.000% 67.800.00 1,167,800.00
06/30/2052 1,145,000.00 4.000% 22,900.00 1,167,900.00

Total $20,550,000.00 - $14,502,000.00 $35,052,000.00

Yield Statistics

Bond Year Dollars $362,550.00
Average Life 17.642 Years
Average Coupon 4.0000000%
Net Interest Cost (NIC) 4.0453455%
True Interest Cost (TIC) 4.0684292%
Bond Yield for Arbitrage Purposes 4.0586409%
All Inclusive Cost (AIC) 4.2293709%
IRS Form 8038

Net Interest Cost 4.0000000%
Weighted Average Maturity 17.642 Years

2022 Revenue Bonds 190716 | SINGLE PURPOSE | 7/16/2019 | 5:32 PM

NHA|ADVISORS

Financial & Policy Strategies.
Delivered.

Palmdale Water District - 2019 Financial Planning, Revenue

Requirements, Cost of Service, and Rate Setting Analysis

A-15



Palmdale Water District

2022 Water Revenue Bonds
{Capital Improvement Project Financing)

Pricing Summary

Maturity Type of Bond Coupon Yield Maturity Value Price Dollar Price
10/01/2022 Serial Coupon 4.000% 4.000% 495,000.00 100.000% 495,000.00
10/01/2023 Serial Coupon 4.000% 4.000% 375,000.00 100.000% 375,000.00
10/01/2024 Scrial Coupon 4.000% 4.000% 390.000.00 100.000% 390.,000.CO
10/01/2025 Serial Coupon 4.000% 4.000% 405,000.00 100.000% 405.000.00
10/01/2026 Serial Coupon 4.000% 4.000% 420,000.00 100.000% 420,000.00
10/01/2027 Serial Coupon 4.000% 4.000% 440,000.00 100.000% 440,0C0.C0
10/01/2028 Serial Coupon 4.000% 4.000% 455.000.00 100.000% 455.000.00
10/01/2029 Serial Coupon 4.000% 4.000% 475,000.00 100.000% 475,0C0.00
10/01/2030 Serial Coupon 4.000% 4.000% 495,000.00 100.000% 495,000.C0
10/01/2031 Serial Coupon 4.000% 4.000% 515,0600.00 100.000% 515.000.00
10/01/2032 Serial Coupon 4.000% 4.000% 535,000.00 100.000% 535.000.00
10/01/2033 Serial Coupon 4.000% 4.000% 555,000.00 100.000% 555,000.00
10/01/2034 Serial Coupon 4.000% 4.000% 580,000.00 100.000% 580,000.C0
10/01/2035 Serial Coupon 4.000% 4.000% 605,000.00 100.000% 605.000.00
10/01/2036 Serial Coupon 4.000% 4.000% 630,000.00 100.000% 630,000.00
10/01/2037 Serial Coupon 4.000% 4.000% 655,000.00 100.000% 655,000.00
10/01/2038 Serial Coupon 4.000% 4.000% 680,000.00 100.000% 680.000.C0
10/01/203% Serial Coupon 4.000% 4.000% 710.000.00 100.000% 710.000.00
10/01/2040 Serial Coupon 4.000% 4.000% 740,000.00 100.000% 740,000.00
10/01/2041 Scrial Coupon 4.000% 4.000% 770,000.00 100.000% 770.000.C0
10/01/2046 Term 1 Coupon 4.000% 4.000% 4,335,000.00 100.000% 4,335.000.00
10/01/2051 Termn 2 Coupon 4.000% 4.000% 5.290,000.00 100.000% 5,290.000.00

Total - - - $20,550,000.00 - $20,550,000.00
Bid Information
Par Amount of Bonds $20.550,000.00
Gross Production $20.550,000.00
Tetal Underwriter's Discount (0.800%) $(144.400.0C)
Bid {99.200%) 20,385,600.00
Total Purchase Price $20.385.600.00
Bond Year Dollars $362,550.00
Average Life 17.642 Years
Average Coupon 4.00C0000%

Net Interest Cost [NIC)

4.0453455%

True Interest Cost (TIC|

4.0684292%

2022 Revenue Bonds 190714 | SINGLE FURPOSE | /1672019 | 533278

NHA|ADVISORS

Financial & Policy Strategjes
Delivered

Palmdale Water District - 2019 Financial Planning, Revenue
Requirements, Cost of Service, and Rate Setting Analysis

A-16



Palmdale Water District

2022 Water Revenue Bonds

(Capital Improvement Project Financing)

Bond Summary Statistics

Average

Maturity Type Par Value Price Coupon Average life
10/01/2041 Total Serial 1 10.925,000.00 100.000% 4.000% 11.018 Years
10/01/2046 Term | 4,335,000.00 100.000% 4.000% 22.414 Years
10/01/2051 Term 2 5,290,000.00 100.000% 4.000% 27.414 Years

Total - $20,550,000.00 - - -

Bond Statistics
Dated 6/01/2022
Delivery Date 6/01/2022
Last Maturity 10/01/2051
Arbitrage Yield 4.0586409%
True Interest Cost (TIC) 4.0684292%
Net Interest Cost (NIC) 4.0453455%
All Inclusive Cost (AIC) 4.2293709%
Average Coupon 4.0000000%
Average Life (years) 17.642 Years
Par Amount 20,550,000.00
Bond Proceeds 20,409,120.00
Total Interest 14,502,000.00
Net Interest 14,666,400.00
Bond Years from Dated Date 362,550,000.00
Bond Years from Delivery Date 362,550,000.00
Total Debt Service 35,052,000.00
Maximum Annual Debt Service 1,170,600.00
Average Annual Debt Service 1,168,400.00
Total Underwriter's Discount (0.800%) 164,400.00
Bid (99.200%) 20,385,600.00
Derivation of True Interest Cost
Par Amount of Bonds $20,550,000.00
Total Underwriter's Discount (0.800%) (164,400.00)
Total Purchase Price $20,385,600.00
True Interest Cost (TIC) 4.0684292%
Derivation of All Inclusive Cost
Par Amount of Bonds $20,550,000.00
Bond Insurance Premium....... { 30.0 bp) (105,156.00)
Total Underwriter's Discount (0.800%) (164,400.00)
Costs of Issuance [240,000.00)
Other Credit Enhancement Fees (35.724.00)
Net Issue Proceeds $20,004,720.00
All Inclusive Cost (AIC) 4.2293709%
Derivation of Arbitrage Yield
Par Amount of Bonds $20,550,000.00
Bond Insurance Premium....... { 30.0 bp) (105,156.00)
Other Credit Enhancement Fees {35.724.00)
Criginal Issue Proceeds $20,409,120.00
Bond Yield for Arbitrage Purposes 4.0586409%

2022 Revenue Bonds 190716 | SINGLE PURPOSE | 7/16/2019 | 5:32PM

NHA|ADVISORS

Financial & Policy Strategies.
Delivered.

Palmdale Water District - 2019 Financial Planning, Revenue

Requirements, Cost of Service, and Rate Setting Analysis

A-17



Sample Eagle Aerial Data

ci

462.108698309814000
364.782784901568000
382.417466951512000
181.492915495065000
242.613747398425000
488.836211972928000
207.586185515212000
414.094537990377000
226.560490738962000
349.001188173094000
472.573600084530000
614.934753596038000
320.188842603116000
322.320740917309000
83.973915136480500
250.411959608951000
460.449244297203000
432.335775180473000
468.482169746979000
304.053498618125000
420.080600038042000
483.198575497886000
244.851143749002000
438.130871091751000
281.345339238320000
359.477431263821000
415.973155830868000
365.826509647773000
449.342110303436000
451.779759882270000
386.787602198265000
420.384789712887000
303.963119976258000
613.841573785360000
250.928652715104000
279.711751351919000
390.412714670678000
318.692690862605000
1375.890802568170000
1574.167531223880000
546.738038285473000
776.599642470316000
911.312890280191000
760.192838382675000
404.026846915098000
829.336932616442000
432.690319623777000
586.011410568923000
432.475004968526000
570.743966148152000
525.810131446705000
0.000000000000000
542.939532018775000
432.467701581830000
600.916049806448000
412.646980296716000
291.336075227450000
251.128339803471000
435.439701761461000

ci2
0.000000000000000
0.000000000000000
40.263973149285700
0.000000000000000
0.000000000000000
19.074779484310800
0.000000000000000
0.000000000000000
0.000000000000000
0.000000000000000
0.000000000000000
0.000000000000000
0.000000000000000
0.000000000000000
0.000000000000000
0.000000000000000
0.000000000000000
0.000000000000000
0.000000000000000
0.000000000000000
0.000000000000000
0.000000000000000
0.000000000000000
0.000000000000000
0.000000000000000
0.000000000000000
0.000000000000000
0.000000000000000
0.000000000000000
3.717978754550990
0.000000000000000
0.000000000000000
0.000000000000000
0.000000000000000
0.000000000000000
0.000000000000000
25.158932130676600
0.000000000000000
0.000000000000000
50.492166095860500
0.000000000000000
30.693147668333000
0.000000000000000
0.000000000000000
0.000000000000000
0.000000000000000
3.607255686734280
0.000000000000000
0.000000000000000
0.000000000000000
0.000000000000000
0.000000000000000
0.000000000000000
0.000000000000000
0.000000000000000
0.000000000000000
0.000000000000000
0.000000000000000
0.000000000000000

ci3

10.803242508704000
7.746004815193800
57.687620722855500
0.000000000000000
65.471490110859400
116.158209029458000
74.260679001302400
124.868481410118000
61.739990304960200
95.534122975142700
127.109741028280000
0.000000000000000
147.544170235771000
21.548409083797600
154.897221811235000
5.711786189487290
119.776286097275000
54.098324318724500
33.760403654486700
7.646315793651180
22.204518179922300
17.279591450101300
22.169076688352700
0.000000000000000
65.975617617723800
12.043406326605100
101.674243161108000
144.476266728512000
58.127890322044900
81.342120556884000
116.513129761980000
71.999107636546700
158.565762616835000
7.576064090210150
51.770353538279500
1.624656832634570
59.123490507090000
10.085781683134100
515.036449842674000
107.734621776729000
70.424830495674500
52.565390728171600
119.246452658626000
88.258379530271500
6.480270211157730
52.649170437397600
12.264669334896500
2.524745267876570
76.101911536527400
27.654418814312300
42.440453680225200
0.000000000000000
12.804752291424300
18.712977309968900
39.343540286846000
77.776394192051300
39.301524999742700
0.000000000000000
24.276968129110500

cl4

170.601204616617000
140.779134024975000
151.305872193280000
136.435091390034000
144.091312486073000
77.558773186207200
137.667178367822000
79.068345268356400
292.723375086236000
179.903089259505000
13.009099295005200
67.380185077386200
209.440748968826000
271.437522828678000
94.234393513285200
68.269444455300500
215.399039708419000
149.221211245815000
107.616943552774000
181.622489263314000
116.979900655200000
63.358501983705000
307.573409501414000
149.672036708362000
145.598246550894000
214.774079491125000
92.852774836754800
140.245497547054000
34.065647351524000
76.445270489914400
112.464410967162000
198.087544885049000
194.983214397677000
0.000000000000000
217.165378668400000
282.329254026719000
38.007958183129300
74.112485046601900
1898.038031777780000
1009.483306472670000
57.456575263734500
79.118113784354100
813.755792407020000
173.364674077319000
39.961666302139300
486.802329736553000
132.927372056158000
216.677245668121000
24.676832853264500
158.900308757156000
135.448256426250000
0.000000000000000
75.926770629431800
155.731556363251000
2.080233164591860
77.776394192051300
278.175472819280000
173.316467441648000
143.297759443738000

Ci5

0.000000000000000
131.592012034862000
30.513952745422800
144.815846673570000
363.290221605511000
31.581356599024000
0.000000000000000
10.638614300645400
69.773410096102600
57.986781523083800
0.000000000000000
0.000000000000000
12.415302129595400
0.000000000000000
198.909273795950000
36.174645866752800
9.282887485341930
32.639322338963700
13.124017506435800
158.863455195152000
109.578394595226000
94.407767870605800
41.454371043261300
62.045862490011900
161.233564150711000
65.417593455878000
0.000000000000000
0.000000000000000
196.283015692114000
0.000000000000000
0.000000000000000
34.469572780996700
27.426609570609500
0.270573717507505
94.357096535855500
86.016553416708200
18.689492439931200
159.211267998046000
876.966118632851000
1020.463777530950000
193.803369855104000
218.002356752793000
431.717157285609000
418.957124055942000
188.557862394103000
883.786074692726000
85.131234206929100
120.556586541106000
261.628465104866000
71.342995768519100
0.000000000000000
0.000000000000000
238.961926565313000
229.683803232455000
68.014579990133800
192.370549060663000
119.527115022153000
181.801752826812000
10.638221989160700

Palmdale Water District - 2019 Financial Planning, Revenue
Requirements, Cost of Service, and Rate Setting Analysis

Cle

0.000000000000000
0.000000000000000
0.000000000000000
0.000000000000000
0.000000000000000
0.000000000000000
0.000000000000000
0.000000000000000
0.000000000000000
0.000000000000000
0.000000000000000
0.000000000000000
0.000000000000000
0.000000000000000
0.000000000000000
0.000000000000000
0.000000000000000
0.000000000000000
0.000000000000000
0.000000000000000
0.000000000000000
0.000000000000000
0.000000000000000
0.000000000000000
0.000000000000000
0.000000000000000
0.000000000000000
0.000000000000000
0.000000000000000
0.000000000000000
0.000000000000000
0.000000000000000
0.000000000000000
0.000000000000000
0.000000000000000
0.000000000000000
0.000000000000000
0.000000000000000
423.586426592035000
4893.239918241800000
6727.012229584910000
849.777147028541000
1554.073769440830000
3655.337865688430000
139.685824551622000
2456.781289914660000
0.000000000000000
0.000000000000000
0.000000000000000
0.000000000000000
0.000000000000000
663.500007646103000
0.000000000000000
0.000000000000000
0.000000000000000
0.000000000000000
17.307093577868300
76.367568466476100
0.000000000000000

ciz

0.000000000000000
0.000000000000000
0.000000000000000
0.000000000000000
0.000000000000000
0.000000000000000
0.000000000000000
0.000000000000000
0.000000000000000
0.000000000000000
0.000000000000000
0.000000000000000
0.000000000000000
0.000000000000000
0.000000000000000
0.000000000000000
0.000000000000000
0.000000000000000
0.000000000000000
0.000000000000000
0.000000000000000
0.000000000000000
0.000000000000000
0.000000000000000
0.000000000000000
0.000000000000000
0.000000000000000
0.000000000000000
0.000000000000000
0.000000000000000
0.000000000000000
0.000000000000000
0.000000000000000
0.000000000000000
0.000000000000000
0.000000000000000
0.000000000000000
0.000000000000000
0.000000000000000
0.000000000000000
0.000000000000000
0.000000000000000
0.000000000000000
0.000000000000000
0.000000000000000
0.000000000000000
0.000000000000000
0.000000000000000
0.000000000000000
0.000000000000000
0.000000000000000
0.000000000000000
0.000000000000000
0.000000000000000
0.000000000000000
0.000000000000000
0.000000000000000
0.000000000000000
0.000000000000000

ci8

0.000000000000000
0.000000000000000
0.000000000000000
0.000000000000000
0.000000000000000
0.000000000000000
0.000000000000000
0.000000000000000
0.000000000000000
0.000000000000000
0.000000000000000
0.000000000000000
0.000000000000000
0.000000000000000
0.000000000000000
0.000000000000000
0.000000000000000
0.000000000000000
0.000000000000000
0.000000000000000
0.000000000000000
0.000000000000000
0.000000000000000
0.000000000000000
0.000000000000000
0.000000000000000
0.000000000000000
0.000000000000000
0.000000000000000
0.000000000000000
0.000000000000000
0.000000000000000
0.000000000000000
0.000000000000000
0.000000000000000
0.000000000000000
0.000000000000000
0.000000000000000
0.000000000000000
0.000000000000000
0.000000000000000
0.000000000000000
0.000000000000000
0.000000000000000
0.000000000000000
0.000000000000000
0.000000000000000
0.000000000000000
0.000000000000000
0.000000000000000
0.000000000000000
0.000000000000000
0.000000000000000
0.000000000000000
0.000000000000000
0.000000000000000
0.000000000000000
0.000000000000000
0.000000000000000

ci9

0.000000000000000
0.000000000000000
0.000000000000000
0.000000000000000
0.000000000000000
0.000000000000000
0.000000000000000
0.000000000000000
0.000000000000000
0.000000000000000
0.000000000000000
0.000000000000000
0.000000000000000
0.000000000000000
0.000000000000000
0.000000000000000
0.000000000000000
0.000000000000000
0.000000000000000
0.000000000000000
0.000000000000000
0.000000000000000
0.000000000000000
0.000000000000000
0.000000000000000
0.000000000000000
0.000000000000000
0.000000000000000
0.000000000000000
0.000000000000000
0.000000000000000
0.000000000000000
0.000000000000000
0.000000000000000
0.000000000000000
0.000000000000000
0.000000000000000
0.000000000000000
0.000000000000000
0.000000000000000
0.000000000000000
0.000000000000000
0.000000000000000
0.000000000000000
0.000000000000000
0.000000000000000
0.000000000000000
0.000000000000000
0.000000000000000
0.000000000000000
0.000000000000000
0.000000000000000
0.000000000000000
0.000000000000000
0.000000000000000
0.000000000000000
0.000000000000000
0.000000000000000
0.000000000000000

Coverage
1.000000000000000
1.000000000000000
1.000000000000000
1.000000000000000
1.000000000000000
1.000000000000000
1.000000000000000
1.000000000000000
1.000000000000000
1.000000000000000
1.000000000000000
1.000000000000000
1.000000000000000
1.000000000000000
1.000000000000000
1.000000000000000
1.000000000000000
1.000000000000000
1.000000000000000
1.000000000000000
1.000000000000000
1.000000000000000
1.000000000000000
1.000000000000000
1.000000000000000
1.000000000000000
1.000000000000000
1.000000000000000
1.000000000000000
1.000000000000000
1.000000000000000
1.000000000000000
1.000000000000000
1.000000000000000
1.000000000000000
1.000000000000000
1.000000000000000
1.000000000000000
1.000000000000000
1.000000000000000
1.000000000000000
1.000000000000000
1.000000000000000
1.000000000000000
1.000000000000000
1.000000000000000
1.000000000000000
1.000000000000000
1.000000000000000
1.000000000000000
1.000000000000000
1.000000000000000
1.000000000000000
1.000000000000000
1.000000000000000
1.000000000000000
1.000000000000000
1.000000000000000
1.000000000000000

Area

643.513145435135000
644.899935776600000
662.188885762356000
462.743853558669000
815.466771600869000
733.2093302719295000
419.514042884336000
628.669978969497000
650.797266226261000
682.425181930826000
612.692440407816000
682.314938673424000
689.589063937310000
615.306672829785000
532.014804256952000
360.567836120491000
804.907457588240000
668.294633083976000
622.983534460676000
652.185758870247000
668.843413468392000
658.244436802298000
616.0483000982031000
649.848770290125000
654.152767557650000
651.712510537429000
610.500173828731000
650.548273923341000
737.818663669119000
613.285129683619000
615.765142927408000
724.941015015479000
684.938706561380000
621.688211593078000
614.221481457640000
649.682215627981000
531.392587931505000
562.102225590388000
5089.517829413520000
8655.581321341910000
7595.435043484900000
2006.755798432510000
3830.106062072320000
5096.110881734630000
778.712470374121000
4709.355797397780000
666.620850908495000
925.769988046027000
794.882214463184000
828.641689488140000
703.698841553181000
663.500007646103000
870.632981504945000
836.596038487507000
710.354403248020000
760.570317741483000
745.647281646495000
682.614128538407000
613.652651323471000

A-18



464.357723812119000
404.129113532707000
181.165680358655000
312.825917082747000
403.014020508679000
207.679168192020000
283.964365690099000
278.246967884241000
317.804111016355000
334.496669795037000
412.906952498062000
235.211599690966000
284.926085941263000
499.552428823401000
200.338498682132000
340.269805275392000
284.984586661101000
261.697138578944000
360.571739180711000
158.282330707586000
417.540185278652000
281.078702686517000
314.354647350607000
344.194955483119000
394.296286452101000
563.383138546435000
279.470047455176000
280.661912223626000
1129.867556443980000
335.199121827052000
672.683487962626000
315.750552363398000
361.836091572292000
417.592753379112000
242.747319372901000
268.570965868947000
364.756798167293000
518.567846284857000
284.271939880517000
83.406059321235200
247.260044351160000
499.708116583999000
439.095245916202000
399.345074812334000
7945.099396411770000
250.220307986884000
341.329972155180000
404.874814398329000
338.274382163220000
431.314400244791000
267.783829463588000
274.994686597614000
323.086172588918000
480.265871789824000
265.512690570404000
367.552231690982000
219.329843069670000
457.856410486343000
316.465655243828000
391.822225083983000
237.236141268474000
380.059562676561000
427.236672385471000
275.164447157574000

0.000000000000000
0.000000000000000
0.000000000000000
0.000000000000000
0.000000000000000
0.000000000000000
0.000000000000000
0.000000000000000
0.000000000000000
0.000000000000000
27.533148341038200
0.000000000000000
0.000000000000000
0.000000000000000
0.000000000000000
0.000000000000000
0.000000000000000
0.000000000000000
0.000000000000000
0.000000000000000
0.000000000000000
0.000000000000000
0.000000000000000
0.000000000000000
0.000000000000000
0.000000000000000
0.000000000000000
0.000000000000000
0.000000000000000
0.000000000000000
0.000000000000000
0.000000000000000
0.000000000000000
0.000000000000000
0.000000000000000
0.000000000000000
0.000000000000000
25.062910512376600
0.000000000000000
0.000000000000000
0.000000000000000
0.000000000000000
0.000000000000000
0.000000000000000
0.000000000000000
0.000000000000000
0.000000000000000
0.000000000000000
0.000000000000000
42.707964427831800
0.000000000000000
0.000000000000000
0.000000000000000
0.000000000000000
17.574023190262200
0.000000000000000
0.000000000000000
34.623249631105800
0.000000000000000
0.000000000000000
0.000000000000000
0.000000000000000
0.000000000000000
0.000000000000000

50.512883709166000
43.431490016224000
111.507341263971000
26.736488452827600
53.146685762208500
50.210128185072400
54.452754751984100
10.985802615494300
98.454120952675100
133.654371700254000
104.806508930968000
228.971845604585000
60.141044089500800
61.915343367051000
60.272471538854300
54.139984928463300
156.750546874709000
189.644756179021000
91.245256683114800
281.830733243980000
20.440289423820100
66.502408950228900
79.083495999194100
86.453991958083300
88.705373034585100
63.399767312012700
153.254840958374000
139.746056326800000
299.077292630033000
5.514332910315580
256.487587955771000
110.824556884490000
90.233888440875200
70.303931965744100
29.530644879069500
0.000000000000000
36.899710722340600
0.000000000000000
10.165420634967800
64.290292211935900
86.085797431774700
5.769676973006670
16.556050255856800
41.590943319048300
1329.418344352410000
45.568429691084200
114.557183266857000
117.904589999424000
40.009010570183700
0.901011907760166
36.106696575285400
61.410964494705400
16.524045560495600
25.116059649364700
69.299627528611200
74.321223319867700
0.000000000000000
88.812241892289800
8.725744331623460
115.518752127348000
0.000000000000000
145.885993629814000
75.288755926276000
6.766338864530510

50.963891599426400
323.483504477685000
1632.471076018700000
163.749739042738000
188.535615763224000
244.571914707933000
322.486314506378000
194.232592144436000
174.104530067046000
145.468624529359000
188.669770599245000
120.906539325960000
217.752056186123000
131.660097886621000
293.086137721772000
125.875464958677000
10.738811213638700
182.701034721206000
191.309088469725000
188.607029654975000
174.507845389266000
131.741542832204000
152.948740840307000
133.823575051783000
505.132837076781000
24.440024098940900
19.145512991247400
166.741431019679000
888.228949153495000
16.271802030439400
421.957642944436000
213.513542708945000
70.061841523953000
302.459937778361000
372.248679484784000
173.643468207689000
164.560079113812000
104.218433641393000
128.642048743358000
238.856920153461000
245.907911407205000
125.490474162895000
202.451701498249000
186.529079127853000
2346.620031974850000
106.296257774450000
169.224015218887000
126.551527081124000
134.264472408950000
55.412232327250100
7.023247712898410
48.045048692916600
52.128342624547100
23.405646985071100
14.041101002529000
151.254950247343000
90.754056352673000
33.901931930457800
124.049499312461000
142.859397223319000
238.956556033398000
442.607844954613000
118.516749759544000
341.023478772337000

0.000000000000000
73.166742516958300
6324.509200955850000
166.720459981941000
0.000000000000000
208.668973586349000
55.712818498311000
131.199298448977000
24.885002998148500
67.638852075027700
26.449876930899000
189.091678182934000
166.086661488546000
78.744077683386100
86.090679496542600
99.437105651944400
0.000000000000000
16.863323540407500
65.509415054543900
0.000000000000000
0.000000000000000
94.565162252157300
68.107174597713200
0.000000000000000
120.863329043049000
0.721476726167997
0.000000000000000
26.545451781330400
32.950719175975900
209.183054991315000
785.577638645861000
1.898299914008400
82.939532189666800
338.016984035043000
23.389715668743100
394.030172929793000
87.151884004354600
1.262160961054930
18.801530200958300
149.139050937646000
86.806935001883800
20.734776621742700
94.927353369179000
239.553030675298000
159.843408000128000
27.070354271931200
26.748021564667100
0.000000000000000
133.723810103947000
126.952577803407000
83.468597818677200
0.000000000000000
27.387920818501100
74.087874879667400
85.424246744418800
0.000000000000000
120.251386732504000
0.000000000000000
183.690411599743000
0.000000000000000
147.321832764812000
0.000000000000000
72.857181273154700
80.654759265203600

Palmdale Water District - 2019 Financial Planning, Revenue
Requirements, Cost of Service, and Rate Setting Analysis

0.000000000000000
0.000000000000000
5755.902758578310000
0.000000000000000
0.000000000000000
0.000000000000000
0.000000000000000
0.000000000000000
0.000000000000000
2.976109491301220
3.340086847929230
0.000000000000000
0.000000000000000
0.000000000000000
0.000000000000000
0.000000000000000
0.000000000000000
0.000000000000000
0.000000000000000
0.000000000000000
0.000000000000000
0.000000000000000
0.000000000000000
0.000000000000000
25.202443051577600
0.000000000000000
0.000000000000000
0.000000000000000
3601.621641079010000
7.051114213190420
200.040512614153000
0.000000000000000
0.000000000000000
1023.052735967580000
0.000000000000000
782.206183290344000
0.000000000000000
0.000000000000000
0.000000000000000
0.000000000000000
0.000000000000000
0.000000000000000
0.000000000000000
0.000000000000000
30.420648594618900
0.000000000000000
0.000000000000000
0.000000000000000
0.000000000000000
0.000000000000000
0.000000000000000
0.000000000000000
0.000000000000000
0.630152034213453
0.000000000000000
10.450014430429800
0.000000000000000
0.000000000000000
0.000000000000000
0.000000000000000
0.000000000000000
0.000000000000000
0.000000000000000
0.000000000000000

0.000000000000000
0.000000000000000
0.000000000000000
0.000000000000000
0.000000000000000
0.000000000000000
0.000000000000000
0.000000000000000
0.000000000000000
0.000000000000000
0.000000000000000
0.000000000000000
0.000000000000000
0.000000000000000
0.000000000000000
0.000000000000000
0.000000000000000
0.000000000000000
0.000000000000000
0.000000000000000
0.000000000000000
0.000000000000000
0.000000000000000
0.000000000000000
0.000000000000000
0.000000000000000
0.000000000000000
0.000000000000000
0.000000000000000
0.000000000000000
0.000000000000000
0.000000000000000
0.000000000000000
0.000000000000000
0.000000000000000
0.000000000000000
0.000000000000000
0.000000000000000
0.000000000000000
0.000000000000000
0.000000000000000
0.000000000000000
0.000000000000000
0.000000000000000
0.000000000000000
0.000000000000000
0.000000000000000
0.000000000000000
0.000000000000000
0.000000000000000
0.000000000000000
0.000000000000000
0.000000000000000
0.000000000000000
0.000000000000000
0.000000000000000
0.000000000000000
0.000000000000000
0.000000000000000
0.000000000000000
0.000000000000000
0.000000000000000
0.000000000000000
0.000000000000000

0.000000000000000
0.000000000000000
0.000000000000000
0.000000000000000
0.000000000000000
0.000000000000000
0.000000000000000
0.000000000000000
0.000000000000000
0.000000000000000
0.000000000000000
0.000000000000000
0.000000000000000
0.000000000000000
0.000000000000000
0.000000000000000
0.000000000000000
0.000000000000000
0.000000000000000
0.000000000000000
0.000000000000000
0.000000000000000
0.000000000000000
0.000000000000000
0.000000000000000
0.000000000000000
0.000000000000000
0.000000000000000
0.000000000000000
0.000000000000000
0.000000000000000
0.000000000000000
0.000000000000000
0.000000000000000
0.000000000000000
0.000000000000000
0.000000000000000
0.000000000000000
0.000000000000000
0.000000000000000
0.000000000000000
0.000000000000000
0.000000000000000
0.000000000000000
0.000000000000000
0.000000000000000
0.000000000000000
0.000000000000000
0.000000000000000
0.000000000000000
0.000000000000000
0.000000000000000
0.000000000000000
0.000000000000000
0.000000000000000
0.000000000000000
0.000000000000000
0.000000000000000
0.000000000000000
0.000000000000000
0.000000000000000
0.000000000000000
0.000000000000000
0.000000000000000

0.000000000000000
0.000000000000000
0.000000000000000
0.000000000000000
0.000000000000000
0.000000000000000
0.000000000000000
0.000000000000000
0.000000000000000
0.000000000000000
0.000000000000000
0.000000000000000
0.000000000000000
0.000000000000000
0.000000000000000
0.000000000000000
0.000000000000000
0.000000000000000
0.000000000000000
0.000000000000000
0.000000000000000
0.000000000000000
0.000000000000000
0.000000000000000
0.000000000000000
0.000000000000000
0.000000000000000
0.000000000000000
0.000000000000000
0.000000000000000
0.000000000000000
0.000000000000000
0.000000000000000
0.000000000000000
0.000000000000000
0.000000000000000
0.000000000000000
0.000000000000000
0.000000000000000
0.000000000000000
0.000000000000000
0.000000000000000
0.000000000000000
0.000000000000000
0.000000000000000
0.000000000000000
0.000000000000000
0.000000000000000
0.000000000000000
0.000000000000000
0.000000000000000
0.000000000000000
0.000000000000000
0.000000000000000
0.000000000000000
0.000000000000000
0.000000000000000
0.000000000000000
0.000000000000000
0.000000000000000
0.000000000000000
0.000000000000000
0.000000000000000
0.000000000000000

1.000000000000000
1.000000000000000
1.000000000000000
1.000000000000000
1.000000000000000
1.000000000000000
1.000000000000000
1.000000000000000
1.000000000000000
1.000000000000000
1.000000000000000
1.000000000000000
1.000000000000000
1.000000000000000
1.000000000000000
1.000000000000000
1.000000000000000
1.000000000000000
1.000000000000000
1.000000000000000
1.000000000000000
1.000000000000000
1.000000000000000
1.000000000000000
1.000000000000000
1.000000000000000
1.000000000000000
1.000000000000000
1.000000000000000
1.000000000000000
1.000000000000000
1.000000000000000
1.000000000000000
1.000000000000000
1.000000000000000
1.000000000000000
1.000000000000000
1.000000000000000
1.000000000000000
1.000000000000000
1.000000000000000
1.000000000000000
1.000000000000000
1.000000000000000
1.000000000000000
1.000000000000000
1.000000000000000
1.000000000000000
1.000000000000000
1.000000000000000
1.000000000000000
1.000000000000000
1.000000000000000
1.000000000000000
1.000000000000000
1.000000000000000
1.000000000000000
1.000000000000000
1.000000000000000
1.000000000000000
1.000000000000000
1.000000000000000
1.000000000000000
1.000000000000000

565.834499120712000
844.210850543575000
14005.556057175500000
670.032604560256000
644.696322034113000
711.130184671375000
716.616253446773000
614.664661093149000
615.247765034226000
684.234627590980000
763.706344148144000
774.181662804447000
728.905847705435000
771.871947760460000
639.787787439301000
619.722360814477000
452.473944749450000
650.906253019580000
708.635499388095000
628.720093606541000
612.488320091739000
573.887816721107000
614.494058787822000
564.472522492986000
1134.200268658090000
651.944406683556000
451.870401404798000
613.694851351436000
5951.746158482500000
573.219425972313000
2336.746870122840000
641.986951870843000
605.071353726787000
2151.426343125840000
667.916359405498000
1618.450790296770000
653.368472007801000
649.111351399682000
441.880939455842000
535.692322624279000
666.060688192024000
651.703044341644000
753.030351039487000
867.018127934534000
11811.401829333700000
429.155349724350000
651.859192205592000
649.330931478878000
646.271675246302000
657.288186711040000
394.382371570449000
384.450699785236000
419.126481592462000
603.505605338141000
451.851689036226000
603.578419688623000
430.335286154848000
615.193833940196000
632.931310487656000
650.200374434651000
623.514530066684000
968.553401260989000
693.899359344446000
703.609024059645000

A-19



Drought Surcharge Resolution

s .
_3/ 11 />02F
PALMDALE WATER DISTRICT
RESOLUTION NO. 09-04
RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS
OF PALMDALE WATER DISTRICT
DECLARING A WATER SHORTAGE EMERGENCY CONDITION
AND ADOPTING REGULATIONS AND RESTRICTIONS
ON THE DELIVERY AND CONSUMPTION
OF WATER FOR PUBLIC USE

WHEREAS, Paimdale Water District (“District”) is a water district empowered to provide
water service within District boundaries; and

WHEREAS, due to persistent inadequate rainfall, California is suffering from a chronic and
continuing water shortage which is predicted to severely impact the District’s service area; and

WHEREAS, precipitation remains substantially below normal locally, particularly in the
watersheds of the sources of water supply serving Southern California and many communities in the
state are suffering water shortages: and

WHEREAS, the District relies on rainfall and water supply from the State Water Project to
meet ils water needs: and

WHEREAS, State Water Project deliveries to the District have been reduced by eighty-five
percent (85%) in response to the continuing arid conditions and could be exacerbated further by legal
restrictions on the flow of State Water Project water through the Bay-Delta; and

WHEREAS, these arid conditions and reduced supplies from the State Water Project have
led to a greater reliance on groundwater to meet the needs of District customers with the
corresponding depletion of groundwater supplies in the District’s service area; and

WHEREAS, the District’s ability to rely upon and entitlement to utilize groundwater is
under attack in a basin adjudication action now pending in the court system; and

WHEREAS, with increasing water demand and limitations on water supplies, it is
anticipated that the District will not have enough water to meet customer demand for water for the
remainder of this vear: and

WHEREAS, the ordinary demands and requirernents of the District customers cannot be
satisfied without depleting the available water supply to such an extent that there would be
insutficient available water for human consumption, sanitation and fire protection; and '

WHEREAS, following due public notice, the conduct of a public hearing and the making of
findings as required by taw, the District has the power and authority to adopt mandatory water
conservation rmeasures within its boundaries: and

Palmdale Water District - 2019 Financial Planning, Revenue A-20

Requirements, Cost of Service, and Rate Setting Analysis



District, to conserve the water supply for the greatest public benefit with particular regard to
domestic use, sanitation, and fire protection.

Section 3: Authorization to Implement Restrictions on Water Consumption: The Board
of Directors of the District hereby authorizes the General Manager of the District to take specific
steps to meet water conservation goals and avoid an imminent danger that the District will be unable
to supply sufficient water for human consumption, sanitation, and fire protection, to implement the
regulations and restrictions on water consumption as hereinafter set forth,

Section 4: Conservation Goal and Authorized Actions. The initial conservation goal of
the District is a reduction in water use of ten percent (10%), which goal is subject to adjustment from
time to time based upon demands, supplies, and conservation, with an ultimate conservation goal of
a reduction in water use of 20% by 2020. The General Manager is authorized to implement Action
1, Paragraphs { through 9 of this resolution to meet said conservation goal.

Action 1. Mandatory Water Conservation Regulations. The General
Manager shall take all steps necessary to advise the District’s customers of the
following mandatory regulations and to enforce them in accordance the District’s
existing Waste of Water Policy:

L There shall be no hose washing of sidewalks, walkways, buildings.
walls, patios, driveways, parking areas or other paved surfaces, or
walls, except to eliminate conditions dangerous to public health or
safety or when required as surface preparation for the application of
architectural coating or painting.

i~

Washing of motor vehicles, trailers, boats and other types of
equipment shall be done only with a hand-held nozzle for quick
rinses, except that washing may be done with reclaimed wastewater
or by a commercial car wash using recycled water.

3. No water shall be used to clean, fill or maintain levels in decorative
fountains, ponds, lakes or other similar aesthetic structures unless
such water is patt of 2 closed recycling system.

4. No restaurant, hotel, cafe, cafeteria or other public place where food
is sold, served or offered or sale, shall serve drinking water to any
customer unless expressly requested and shall display anotice to that
effect.

5. All water users shall promptly repair all leaks from indoor and
outdoor plumbing fixtures.

6. No awn, landscape, or other turf area shall be watered more often
than three (3) days per week and no more often than every other day

3.

Palmdale Water District - 2019 Financial Planning, Revenue
Requirements, Cost of Service, and Rate Setting Analysis

A-21



s

nor during the hours between 10:00 a.m. and 8:00 p.m. Water days
will be set as follows: addresses ending in an even number starting on
Monday, and; addresses ending in an odd number starting on
Tuesday.

Exemptions:

1. No watering hour restrictions during the months of November,
December, January, February, and March. Watering can oceur
between the hours of 10:00 a.m. and 8:00 p.m.

2. The District will allow an exemption from the watering schedule
if an ET based controller is installed and operating. The ET
Controller Exemption Form must be completed and the
installation verified by a licensed landscape architect or PWD
staff.

No water users shall cause or allow the water to run off landscape
arcas into adjoining streets, sidewalks, or other paved arcas due to
incorrectly directed or maintained sprinklers or excessive watering. If
cited, random acts of vandalism will be considered in any appeal.

The owner and manager of every hotel, motel, inn, guest house, bed
and breakfast facility, and short-term commercial lodging shal! posta
notice of such shortage and any necessary compliance measures.

Commercial nurseries, golf courses, parks, school yards, and other
public open space, and landscaped areas shall be prohibited from
watering lawn, landscaping, and other turf areas more often than five
days per week and between the hours of 10:00 a.m. and 8:00 p.m.,
except that there shall be no restriction on watening utilizing
reclaimed water or where public use requires a modified and
approved watering schedute.

Exemptions:

I. No watering hour restrictions during the months of November,
December, January, February, and March. Watering can occur
between the hours of 10:00 a.m. and 8:00 p.m.

2. The District will allow an exemption from the watering schedule
if an ET based controller is instatlled and operating. The ET
Controller Exemption Form must be completed and the
installation verified by a licensed landscape architect or PWD
staff.

Palmdale Water District - 2019 Financial Planning, Revenue
Requirements, Cost of Service, and Rate Setting Analysis

A-22



3. Watering schedules must be adhered to at all times. The District
requires advance written notice of any maintenance activities
requiring water use between the hours of 10:00 am. and 8:00
p.m.

0.  The use of water from fire hydrants shall be limited to fire fighting
and related activities and other nses of water for municipal purposes
shall be limited to activities necessary to maintain the public health,
safety, and welfare. Ongoing water system improvement projects
qualifying with the exemption available under Action 2 are also
exempt under this section and may continue to use construction
meters in accordance with standard District policy.

Action 2: Moratorium on New Connections: Upon specific authorization
by the Board of Directors, the General Manager shall impose a moratorium on new
connections to the District’s water system. Such moratorium shall take effect
immediately pursuant to the authority authorized by this Resolution. Water system
improvement projects that include new connections, have begun construction, and
have not been activated at the time this resolution is effective can be exempted. The
exemption is based on certification of the installation, proper programming, and
proper operation of District-approved E/T irrigation system controller(s) for all
irdigation systems in the project. These include those irrigation systems with separate
water service connections and those connected to water service connections used for
both irrigation and domestic purposes.

Action 3: Mandatory Water Rationtng: Upon specific authorization by
the Board of Directors, the General Manager shall the General Manager shall
implement a phased water rationing to protect the water supply ofthe Districtandto  /
guarantee adequate supply for domestic use, sanitation, and fire protection, as

follows:
I Stage l: Water Rationing: A twenty percent (20%) reduction in
water deliveries to all District customers.
2 Stage 2: Water Rationing: A thirty percent (30%) reduction in
water deliveries to all District customers.
3, Stage 3: Water Rationing: A forty percent (40%) reduction in

water deliveries to all District customers.

~a) A Base water use shall be established for each residential, commercial
and industrial consumer of the Palmdale water District corresponding to the
amount of water delivered to that consumer during the last annual water year
ending on Deceniber 31, 2000.

Palmdale Water District - 2019 Financial Planning, Revenue A-23
Requirements, Cost of Service, and Rate Setting Analysis



b) Water consumption by a consumer which is in excess of the specified
conservation percentage of the base water use, as described in section 5 will
be charged at a rate of $3.00 per 100 cubic feet of water, or fraction thereof,
in addition to the current base water rate.

Section 5: Duration of Water Emergency: The regulations, restrictions, and actions set
forth herein shatt take full force and effect immediately upon authorization by the Board of Directors
and shall remain in full force and effect until the supply of water available for distribution within the
District service area has been replenished or augmented, as determined by the General Manager such
that a sufficient supply of water is available for human consumption, sanitation, and fire protection,
or until further action by the Board of Directors.

Section 6: Appeal: Decisions made by the District under the regulations set forth in this
Resolution may be appealed by consumers in accordance with the procedure set forth in the District
Rules and Regulations.

Section 7: Violation: A violation of the reguiations and restrictions set forth herein may
result in a fine and/or result in the discontinuance of service to consumers willfully violating the
conservation measures set forth herein or such other penalty or restriction as may be allowed by law.

Section 8: Severability: If any portion of this Resolution is found to be unconstitutional or
invalid, the District hereby declares that it would have enacted the remainder of this Resolution
regardless of the absence of any such valid part.

Section 9: [ffective Date: This Resolution shall take effect immediately.

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the Board of Directors finds that the provisions of this
Resolution are exempt from the provisions of the California Environental Quality Act as an action
to mitigate emergency conditions and as a rate sctting measure pursuant to Public Resources Code
§21080(b)(4) and (8); and

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that this resolution supersedes and replaces Resolution
No. 07-09 adopted by the District on November 14, 2007, which resolution is hereby rescinded and
of no further force or effect.

PASSED AND ADOPTED at a regular meeting of the Board of Directors of Palmdale
Water District held on March 11, 2009.

SR i A i{i:?(‘jauw(

Halmdale Water Disrict Palmdalk Water District

: S es %
v;;:' v e R L President el 7&\&,

Palmdale Water District - 2019 Financial Planning, Revenue A-24
Requirements, Cost of Service, and Rate Setting Analysis



a>ADN



PALMDALE WATER DISTRICT
RESOLUTION NO. 19-15

A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE
PALMDALE WATER DISTRICT ADOPTING A WATER RATE
ADJUSTMENT OF 8.1% FOR EACH CALENDAR YEAR 2020, 2021, 2022, 2023, AND
2024, AMENDING APPENDIX C TO THE RULES AND REGULATIONS OF THE
PALMDALE WATER DISTRICT, AND ESTABLISHING PRUDENT PARAMETERS
TO CONSIDER FUTURE WATER RATE ADJUSTMENT REDUCTIONS

WHEREAS, the Palmdale Water District (the "District”) is authorized to collect charges
and set rates for water service pursuant to the Irrigation District Law, codified at Division 11 of
the Water Code, specifically at Sections 22280 through 22284; and

WHEREAS, the Board of Directors of the Palmdale Water District has developed and
adopted several water supply and infrastructure plans outlining long range water supply projects
to meet the water supply needs of the community's growing population and the future growth of
Palmdale, and long range financial planning to finance these projects is required; and

WHEREAS, the Board of Directors of Palmdale Water District unanimously adopted an
updated Strategic Plan in 2018 with Initiative 4 — Financial Health and Stability that includes a
goal of sustainable and balanced water rate structure and adjustments; and

WHEREAS, District staff has, and will continue to, search for cost saving measures
including the active pursuit of grant funding; and

WHEREAS, the Board of Directors of the Palmdale Water District previously approved a
5-Year Water Rate Plan on September 17, 2014 authorizing annual water rate adjustments up to
5.5% through calendar year 2019; and

WHEREAS, the Board of Directors of the Palmdale Water District approved reduced
water rate adjustments in 2015 through 2019; and

WHEREAS, the Board of Directors of the Palmdale Water District now desires to meet
the Strategic goal of sustainable and balanced water rates by providing customers predictable and
stable water rate adjustments for each calendar year 2020, 2021, 2022, 2023, and 2024 to ensure
adequate funds to meet current and future water demands; to continue to maintain the Rate
Assistance Program, the Internship Program, and water use efficiency Rebate Programs; to
continue to provide high quality water through innovative treatment technologies; and to
construct long range water supply projects, including the Palmdale Regional Groundwater
Recharge and Recovery Project and the necessary removal of sediment from Littlerock Reservoir;
and

WHEREAS, the benefits of the Palmdale Regional Groundwater Recharge and Recovery
Project include meeting the water supply needs of the community's growing population and the
water supplies required for growth within the City of Palmdale; utilizing local recycled water;
diversifying the District's water supply portfolio; maximizing the State Water Project supply and
additional State Water Project supplies acquired through water transfer options; preparing to meet
water supply needs during a natural disaster; reducing the impact to the District and to its customers

01184.0001/607368.2 1



from groundwater adjudication and droughts; and being the most cost effective long-term water
supply strategy, which can potentially reduce future water rate adjustments; and

WHEREAS, the benefits of the Littlerock Reservoir Sediment Removal Project include
maximizing the water supply from Littlerock Reservoir; maintaining this critical and cost
effective water resource; diversifying the District's water supply portfolio; and preserving a
recreational opportunity for the residents of Palmdale and the Antelope Valley; and

WHEREAS, the Board of Directors desires to create clear parameters to monitor and
assess the District's financial position for District staff to evaluate and report on; and

WHEREAS, these parameters will be assessed and reported on annually, along with
proposed projects and expenditures, to the Board of Directors during annual budget discussions
for each calendar year 2020 through 2024; and

WHEREAS, if circumstances allow a water rate reduction in the future, said reduction
will be presented to the Board of Directors for consideration, provided that the adjusted revenues
will be sufficient to meet all District operations, expenses, projects, and current and future water
demands; and

WHEREAS, the adoption of this resolution is exempt from the requirements of the
California Environmental Quality Act ("CEQA™) pursuant to Public Resources Code Section
21080(b)(8) and Section 15273 of the State CEQA Guidelines codified at 14 CCR 815273
because the resolution pertains to the adoption of charges necessary to maintain services within
the District's existing service area.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED THAT, the Board of Directors does hereby:

1) Approve a water revenue adjustment of 8.1% for each calendar year 2020, 2021,
2022, 2023, and 2024, effective January 1, 2020.

2) Revise Appendix “C” of the Palmdale Water District’s Rules and Regulations,
attached as part of this Resolution, to reflect this adjustment.

3) Direct District staff to continue researching cost-saving measures, including
grants, to help reduce approved revenue increases in the 2019 Water Rate Plan.

4) Direct District staff to assess and report on the following parameters using actuals
through August 31% and projecting through December 31% of the year as part of the annual
budget process for the subject years. A “Yes” answer from the District staff analysis for any
four (4) parameters will allow for the consideration of a reduced water rate adjustment, provided
the reduced water rate adjustment continues to satisfy the same “Yes” parameters:

a. Do the District’s projected reserves at the end of each year in 2022-2024 meet or
exceed the target reserve level of $16.4M as stated in the 2019 Water Rate Plan for the
end of year 2024?

b. Are projects funded at a level that is equal to the year’s depreciation while maintaining
a minimum reserve level of $10.0M or the reserve levels for each year in 2022-2024
as presented in the 2019 Water Rate Plan?

01184.0001/607368.2 2



c. Has an annual Rate Stabilization Fund contribution been made that is equal to or
greater than one percent (1%) of the prior year’s total revenues?

d. Is the projected Debt Coverage Ratio for the subject year and each of the remaining
years adequate to meet current and proposed bond covenants?

e. Has the District’s bond rating been re-evaluated to and maintained at AA or higher by
either Standard & Poor’s or Fitch rating agencies, which are currently A- and A+,
respectively?

f. Has the District’s outstanding debt been reduced as follows (all three must be met):
1. 2017 Capital Lease - In Entirety ($447,384)
2. 2012 Private Placement - In Entirety ($5,492,735)
3. Series 2013A Revenue Bond Issue - $8.8M?

If any provision in this Resolution, or the application thereof to any person or
circumstances, is for any reason held invalid, the validity of the remainder of this Resolution, or
the application of such provisions to other persons or circumstances shall not be affected
thereby. The Board of Directors hereby declares that it would have passed this Resolution, and
each provision thereof, irrespective of the fact that one or more sections, subsections, sentences,
clauses or phrases or the application thereof to any person or circumstance be held invalid.

This Resolution shall become effective upon the date of adoption as set forth herein.

PASSED AND ADOPTED this th day of , 2019 by the
Board of Directors, the governing body of the Palmdale Water District.

PALMDALE WATER DISTRICT

VINCENT DINO, President
ATTEST:

DON WILSON, Secretary

APPROVED AS TO FORM:

By:

ERIC L. DUNN, General Counsel

01184.0001/607368.2 3



APPENDIX C

Meter Charges
Meter Size Current CY 2020 CY 2021 CY 2022 CY 2023 CY 2024
1" and Below $37.77 $38.22 $41.60 $45.52 $49.79 $54.43
1.5" $113.30 $92.99 $101.49 $111.51 $122.47 $134.37
2" $173.74 $140.84 $153.81 $169.16 $185.96 $204.21
3" $314.78 $252.48 $275.89 $303.69 $334.10 $367.16
4" $516.26 $412.05 $450.38 $495.96 $545.84 $600.07
6" $1,019.96 $810.62 $886.21 $976.21 | $1,074.72 | S$1,181.81
8" $1,624.40 | $1,289.09 | $1,409.41 | $1,552.74 | $1,709.62 | $1,880.17
10" $2,329.60 | $1,847.47 | $2,019.99 ] $2,225.56 | $2,450.56 | S$2,695.17
Commodity Rates
Current CY 2020 CY 2021 CY 2022 CY 2023 CY 2024
Tier 1 $0.88 $0.88 $0.93 $0.98 $1.03 $1.08
Tier 2 $1.01 $1.52 $1.63 S1.74 $1.86 $1.98
Tier 3 $2.86 $2.03 $2.15 $2.27 $2.40 $2.54
Tier 4 $4.31 $3.29 $3.51 $3.74 $3.98 $4.23
Tier 5 $5.57 $4.64 $5.01 $5.39 $5.79 $6.23
Tier 6 $7.16 n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a
Drought Surcharge Per CCF
Stage No. Current CY 2020 CY 2021 CY 2022 CY 2023 CY 2024
1 $0.53 $0.35 $S0.38 $0.40 $0.42 $0.45
2 $0.91 $0.54 $0.58 $0.61 $0.65 $0.69
3 $1.40 $0.79 $0.84 $0.89 $0.94 $1.00




AGENDA ITEM NO. 7.1

PALMDALE WATER DISTRICT

BOARD MEMORANDUM

DATE: October 22, 2019 October 28, 2019

TO: BOAR OF DIRECTORS Board Meeting

FROM: Peter Thompson I, Resource and Analytics Director

VIA: Dennis D. LaMoreaux, General Manager

RE: AGENDA ITEM NO. 7 - CONSIDERATION AND POSSIBLE ACTION ON

JOINT FUNDING AGREEMENT WITH THE USGS TO CONTINUE
MONITORING GROUNDWATER LEVELS AND WATER QUALITY DURING
THE PERIOD OF NOVEMBER 1, 2019 TO OCTOBER 31, 2020. ($4,224.75
THROUGH THE ANTELOPE VALLEY STATE WATER CONTRACTORS
ASSOCIATION - BUDGETED - BUDGET ITEM NO. 1-02-5070-007-
CONSULTANTS - RESOURCE AND ANALYTICS DIRECTOR THOMPSON 1)

Recommendation:

Staff recommends that the Board approve the attached Joint Funding Agreement with the USGS to
continue monitoring groundwater levels and water quality during the period of November 1, 2019 to
October 31, 2020 through the Antelope Valley State Water Contractors Association (AVSWCA).

Alternative Options:
The Board can choose to not participate in the Joint Funding Agreement.

Impact of Taking No Action:
The Palmdale Water District will not receive monitoring information on groundwater levels and
water quality.

Background:
At their October 10, 2019 meeting, the Commissioners of the AVSWCA unanimously approved

participation in this Joint Funding Agreement subject to approval by each of the member agency’s
Board of Directors.

The proposed program for the subject period and associated costs are as follows:

1. Ground Water-Level monitoring

Annual Water levels will be measured in March of 2020 in approximately 170 wells (see List A).
Semi-Annual Water levels will be measured in August 2020 in approximately 23 index wells that are
indicative of each of the ground-water subunits.

2. Ground Water-Quality monitoring

Three well groups are sampled on a three year rotational basis for complete chemical analysis (see
List C). Each group consists of at least seven wells. Seven wells will be selected and sampled in
2020. Other wells in excess of seven in each group (not specified) are considered alternates in the




BOARD OF DIRECTORS
PALMDALE WATER DISTRICT
VIA: Mr. Dennis D. LaMoreaux, General Manager -2- October 22, 2019

event that one of the selected seven wells cannot be sampled. Water quality samples will be
collected for complete chemical analysis from Group 1 for the 2020 agreement (see List B). The
remaining wells in Groups 2 and 3 will be sampled for specific conductance and temperature only
(see List B). It is suggested that the AVSWCA identify other alternate wells for this program that
would benefit the needs of their agency.

Data collected in Elements 1 and 2 above will be transmitted annually in electronic form and are also
available online at the USGS National Water Information System website.

FUNDING SUMMARY
AVSWCA  USGS Total

Element Funds Funds Funds
1. Ground Water-Level Monitoring $30,150 $15,150  $45,300
2. Ground Water-Quality Monitoring 35350 17,750 53,100
TOTAL $65,500 $32,900  $98,400

The total cost of the proposed program is $98,400. The AVSWCA is responsible for $65,500, and
subject to the availability of Federal matching funds, the USGS will provide $32,900.

The following is a breakdown of the costs/share agreed upon by the other participating local
entities/parties to fund the AVSWCA commitment:

AVSWCA: 50% = $32,750
AVIRWMG: 25% = $16,375
AV Watermaster: 25% = $16,375

The AVSWCA'’s share of the USGS groundwater monitoring program is estimated to be $32,750.
The AVSWCA'’s current policy for funding this program is to use State Water Project Table “A”
amounts to determine the split among the member agencies. Based on this policy, the $32,750
would be split among the member agencies as follows:

AVEK: $28,066.75 (85.7%)
PWD: $ 4,224.75 (12.9%)
LCID: $ 45850 (1.4%)

Strategic Plan Initiative/Mission Statement:
This item is under Strategic Initiative No.5 — Regional Leadership.
This item directly relates to the District’s Mission Statement.

Budget:
This item is budgeted under Budget Item No. 1-02-5070-007-Consultants.

Supporting Documents:
e October 1, 2019 letter from USGS and Joint Funding Agreement




—
R e

AR LR

California Water Science Center
6000 J Street, Placer Hall
California State University
Sacramento, California 95819-6129
Phone: (916) 278-3000 Fax: (916) 278-3070
http://water.wr.usgs.gov

October 1, 2019

Mr. Robert Parris, Chair and

Mr. Matthew Knudson, General Manager

Antelope Valley State Water Contractors Association
c/o Palmdale Water District

2029 East Avenue Q

Palmdale, California 93550

Dear Mr. Parris and Mr. Knudson:

This letter confirms discussions between our respective staffs, concerning the continuation of the
cooperative water resources program, between the Antelope Valley State Water Contractors
Association (AVSWCA) and the U.S. Geological Survey (USGS) during the period November 1,
2019 to October 31, 2020.

The proposed program for the subject period and associated costs are as follows:

1. Ground Water-Level monitoring

Annual Water levels will be measured in March of 2020 in approximately 170 wells (see List
A). Semi-Annual Water levels will be measured in August 2020 in approximately 23 index
wells that are indicative of each of the ground-water subunits.

2. Ground Water-Quality monitoring

Three well groups are sampled on a three year rotational basis for complete chemical analysis
(see List C). Each group consists of at least seven wells. Seven wells will be selected and
sampled in 2020. Other wells in excess of seven in each group (not specified) are considered
alternates in the event that one of the selected seven wells cannot be sampled. Water quality
samples will be collected for complete chemical analysis from Group 1 for the 2020
agreement (see List B). The remaining wells in Groups 2 and 3 will be sampled for specific
conductance and temperature only (see List B). It is suggested that the AVSWCA identify
other alternate wells for this program that would benefit the needs of their agency.

Data collected in Elements 1 and 2 above will be available online at the USGS National Water
Information System website as well as the USGS Antelope Valley State Water Contractors
Association website.

W

<84 Rf B4 B
<V ile8 )

United States Department of the Interior  0CT ¢

Pl e

T

rrrrr

U.S. GEOLOGICAL SURVEY T



Mr. Robert Parris, Chair and Mr. Matthew Knudson, General Manager — Antelope Valley State Water
Contractors Association

FUNDING SUMMARY .
AVSWCA  USGS Total
Element Funds Funds Funds
1. Ground Water-Level monitoring $30,150 $15,150 $45,300
2. Ground Water-Quality monitoring 35,350 17,750 53,100
TOTAL $65,500 $32,900 $98,400

Total cost of the proposed program is $98,400. AVSWCA is responsible for $65,500, and
subject to the availability of Federal matching funds, the USGS will provide $32,900.

Enclosed are two originals of Joint Funding Agreement (JFA) 20ZGJFA43000, signed by our
agency, for your approval. If you are in agreement with this proposed program, please return
one fully executed JFA to our office. Work performed with funds from this agreement will be
conducted on a fixed-price basis. Billing for this agreement will be rendered quarterly.

The USGS is required to have an agreement in place prior to any work being performed on a
project. We request that a fully executed JFA be returned prior to November 1, 2019. If it is not
received by November 1, we will be required to suspend operations until an agreement is
received.

If you have any questions concerning this program, please contact Jon Newby, Acting Redlands
Field Office Chief, at (909) 798-3272. If you have any administrative questions, please contact
David Penisten, in our Sacramento Office, at (916) 278-9200.

Sincerely,

Eric G. Reichard :
Director, USGS California Water Science Center

Enclosure

cc: Al Caldwell, USGS CAWSC
Scott Patterson, USGS CAWSC

ec: Robert Parris, rparris@avek.org

Matt Knudson, mknudson@avek.org




Mr. Robert Parris, Chair and Mr. Matthew Knudson, General Manager -- Antelope Valley State Water Contractors Association

List A
Antelope Valley State Water Contractors Association (AVSWCA)
Water-level monitoring wells - measured annually (March), semi-annual (August)

|Well Number Frequency Well Number Frequency Well Number Frequency Well Number Frequency Well Number Frequency
4N/ 8W-7C1 Annual TN/10W- 5N5 Annual 8N/10W-18P3 Annual 8N/15W-10P2 Annual IN/15W-26N1 Semi-Annual
4N/ 8W-7R1 Annual TN/10W-19Q1 Annual 8N/10W-22H4 Annual 8N/15W-19H1 Annual IN/15W-30Q1 Annual
4N/13W-12C3 Annual 7N/10W-22P1 Annual 8N/10W-22P3 Semi-Annual 8N/16W- 3F1 Annual IN/15W-34B2 Annual
4AN/13W-15A1 Annual TN/10W-29B1 Annual 8N/10W-23F3 Annual 8N/16W- 6M1 Annual IN/17W-36K 1 Annual
5N/ 9W-4Cl Annual TN/10W-29Q1 Annual SN/11W-14R1 Annual 8N/16W- 9G1 Annual 10N/ 9W-4D1 Semi-Annual
5N/ 9W- 5R2 Annual 7N/10W-33J1 Annual SN/11W-15Q1 Annual 8N/16W-13N1 Annual 10N/ 9W-24A2  |Annual
SN/9W-8J1 Annual IN/11W-1Q1 Annual 8N/11W-24R2 Annual SN/16W-16A1 Annual 10N/12W-20C6 |Annual
SN/10W-12M2  |Annual TN/11W- 3E3 Annual 8N/11W-34D2 Annual 8N/16W-17R2 Annual 11N/ 8W-29K1 |Annual
SN/10W-17R1 Annual IN/11W-12M1  |Annual 8N/12W-2Q1 Annual 8N/16W-18H2  |Annual 1IN/ 9W-13D1  |Annual
6N/ 8W-28A2 Annual TN/11W-14N1 Annual 8N/12W- 5D1 Annual 8N/16W-22Q4  |Annual 11N/ 9W-24A1 |Annual
6N/ 8W-34D1 Annual TN/11W-16H3 Annual 8N/12W-10J1 Semi-Annual 8N/17W-4D1 Annual 11N/ 9W-36R1  |Annual
6N/ 9W- 4H2 Annual TN/11W-27Q1 Annual 8N/12W-21R1 Annual 8N/18W-23F1 Annual 1IN/10W-19D1 |Annual
6N/9W-7J1 Semi-Annual TN/11W-28Q1 Annual 8N/12W-28D1 Semi-Annual IN/ 9W- 6E1 Semi-Annual 1IN/10W-27R1 |Annual
6N/ 9W-21R1 Annual IN/11W-29G1 Annual 8N/12W-30K 1 Annual 9N/ 9W-27H2 Semi-Annual 1IN/11W-7A1 |Annual
6N/ 9W-28F1 Annual IN/11W-31M1  [Annual 8N/12W-31Q2  |Annual IN/10W- 8P1 Annual 1IN/11W-9A1 |Annual
6N/ 9W-30F1 Annual TN/12W-19R1 Annual 8N/12W-34K 1 Annual IN/10W-24C1 Semi-Annual 1IN/13W-19C1 |Annual
6N/9W-33Gl Annual TN/12W-24A1 Semi-Annual 8N/13W- 5E1 Annual IN/10W-24C2 Annual 1IN/13W-29M1 |Annual
6N/ 9W-33P1 Semi-Annual TN/12W-26K3 Annual 8N/13W-7B1 Semi-Annual IN/10W-28F2 Annual 12N/12W-35R1 [Annual
6N/10W- 4F2 Annual TN/12W-27F5 Annual 8N/13W-9K1 Annual IN/11W-36L1 Annual 29S/39E-33K 1 Annual
6N/10W- 4M1 Annual TN/12W-27F6 Annual 8N/13W-14B2 Annual IN/12W-16E4 Annual 30S/37E-13Cl1 Annual
6N/10W- 5H1 Annual IN/12W-27F7 Annual 8N/13W-15M1  |Annual IN/12W-23N1 Annual 30S/37E-27H2  |Annual
6N/10W-20N1  [Annual TN/12W-27F8 Annual 8N/13W-18Q2  |Semi-Annual 9N/13W-14Q1  |Annual 30S/37E-36G1  |Annual
6N/10W-22D1 Annual TN/12W-27HS Annual 8N/13W-20B1 Semi-Annual IN/13W-2IN1 Annual 30S/37E-36N1 Annual
6N/10W-30A2  |Annual TN/12W-27H6 Annual 8N/13W-23E1 Annual 9N/13W-28R1 Annual 30S/38E-24F1 Annual

|6N/10W-35A1 Annual IN/12W-27H7 Annual 8N/13W-31Q1 Annual ON/13W-29M1  |Annual 30S/38E-30P1 Annual
6N/11W- 6F1 Annual TN/12W-27H8 Annual 8N/13W-35M1  [Annual IN/13W-30N1 Annual 30S/38E-31Cl1 Annual
6N/11W-31A1 Annual TN/12W-27]5 Semi-Annual 8N/14W- 1C1 Annual 9N/13W-32Cl1 Annual 31S/37E-33H1 Annual
6N/11W-36G1 Semi-Annual TN/13W-3D1 Annual 8N/14W-10L1 Annual 9IN/13W-32D1 Annual 31S/37E-35N1 Annual
6N/12W- 9H3 Annual TN/13W-9N2 Semi-Annual 8N/14W-17M1  |Semi-Annual IN/13W-34Q1 Semi-Annual 31S/38E-18P1 Annual
6N/12W-2011 Annual 7N/13W-13N1 Annual 8N/14W-18N1 Semi-Annual IN/14W- 1H1 Annual 31S/39E-24P1 Annual
6N/12W-29B1 Annual TN/13W-26]2 Semi-Annual 8N/14W-24C1 Annual IN/14W-19L1 Annual 32S/36E-35D1 Annual
TN/ 9W-17N2 Annual TN/13W-34B1 Semi-Annual 8N/15W-2A1 Annual IN/14W-20B1 Annual 32S/37E-11N1 Annual
IN/10W-2H2 Annual TN/14W-13A1 Semi-Annual 8N/15W- 7P1 Annual IN/14W-21G1 Annual 32S/37E-26N1 Annual
TN/10W- 5E3 Annual 8N/ 9W- 6D1 Annual 8N/15W-9D1 Annual IN/14W-22D1 Annual 32S/39E-33L1 Annual

Semi-Annual wells are measured in the Fall and Spring. 3




Mr. Robert Parris, Chair and Mr. Matthew Knudson, General Manager -- Antelope Valley State Water
Contractors Association

List B
Antelope Valley State Water Contractors Association (AVSWCA)
Water-quality monitoring wells
GROUP 1 GROUP 2 GROUP 3
5N/10W- 8H1 TN/14W-13A1 9N/13W-28R1
5N/11W- 1C1 8N/10W-22H4 9N/13W-30N1
6N/11W- 6F1 8N/10W-22P3 29S/39E-23J2

6N/11W-11D1
6N/11W-36G1

8N/12W-16M1
8N/16W-13N1

30S/37E-34H2
31S/37E-1R2

6N/12W- 9H3 ON/13W-25N1 32S/37E-16R1
7N/11W-3E3 9N/13W-35C1 32S8/37E-27G1
7N/11W-19E1
7N/13W-14E1

* Site has been discontinued. Placeholder until a replacement can be found.

4



Mr. Robert Parris, Chair and Mr. Matthew Knudson, General Manager — Antelope Valley State Water
Contractors Association

LIST C
Chemical Constituents
(mg/L or as indicated)
Boron, dissolved(ug/L) Dissolved solids at 180°C
(Labcode 27)
Calcium, dissolved Sodium adsorption ratio
Chloride, dissolved Percent sodium
Flouride, dissolved Total alkalinity (CaCOs)
Iron, dissolved (ug/L) Total Hardness (CaCOs)
Manganese, dissolved (pg/L) Noncarbonate hardness
Magnesium, dissolved Temperature °C
Ammonia, dissolved pH
Nitrogen (nitrate + nitrite), dissolved Carbonate (COs)
Nitrogen (nitrite), dissolved Bicarbonate (HCOs)
Orthophosphate (PO ), dissolved Specific conductance
(uS/em @25 °C)
Orthophosphorus (P), dissolved Arsenic (Labcode 3122)
Potassium, dissolved Chromium, dissolved
Silica, dissolved Dissolved Oxygen

Sodium, dissolved

Sulfate, dissolved

Note: Samples for Chromium-VI will be collected at all designated water-quality groundwater sites.
Analyses will be performed by a contract lab (TestAmerica), via a national contract between the contract

lab and the USGS National Water-Quality Lab (NWQL).

Schedules used: 101, 117
and Labcodes: 27 and 3122.



Form 9-1366 U.S. Department of the Interior Customer#: 6000001010
(May 2018) U.S. Geological Survey Agreement#: 202GJFA43000

Joint Funding Agreement Project #: ZG00GZV

Page 1 of 2 FOR TIN #: 95-4753654

Water Resource Investigations

Fixed Cost Agreement YES[X]NOJ[ ]

THIS AGREEMENT is entered into as of the 15t day of November, 2019, by the U.S. GEOLOGICAL SURVEY,
California Water Science Center, UNITED STATES DEPARTMENT OF THE INTERIOR, party of the first part, and
the ANTELOPE VALLEY STATE WATER CONTRACTORS ASSOCIATION, party of the second part.

1. The parties hereto agree that subject to the availability of appropriations and in accordance with their respective
authorities there shall be maintained in cooperation for cooperative water resources investigations in the Antelope
Valley State Water Contractors Association area as outlined in the USGS program letter dated October 1, 2019
(Scope of Work), herein called the program. The USGS legal authority is 43 USC 36C; 43 USC 50, and 43 USC 50b.

2. The following amounts shall be contributed to cover all of the cost of the necessary field and analytical work
directly related to this program. 2(b) include In-Kind-Services in the amount of $0.00.

(a) $32,900.00 by the party of the first part during the period
November 1, 2019 to October 31, 2020
(b) $65,500.00 by the party of the second part during the period

November 1, 2019 to October 31, 2020

(c) Contributions are provided by the party of the first part through other USGS regional or national
programs, in the amount of : $0.00

Description of the USGS regional/national program:
Not Applicable

(d) Additional or reduced amounts by each party during the above period or succeeding periods as may be
determined by mutual agreement and set forth in an exchange of letters between the parties.

(e) The performance period may be changed by mutual agreement and set forth in an exchange of letters
between the parties.

3. The costs of this program may be paid by either party in conformity with the laws and regulations respectively
governing each party.

4. The field and analytical work pertaining to this program shall be under the direction of or subject to periodic review
by an authorized representative of the party of the first part.

5. The areas to be included in the program shall be determined by mutual agreement between the parties hereto or
their authorized representatives. The methods employed in the field and office shall be those adopted by the party of
the first part to insure the required standards of accuracy subject to modification by mutual agreement.

6. During the course of this program, all field and analytical work of either party pertaining to this program shall be
open to the inspection of the other party, and if the work is not being carried on in a mutually satisfactory manner,
either party may terminate this agreement upon 60 days written notice to the other party.

7. The original records resulting from this program will be deposited in the office of origin of those records. Upon
request, copies of the original records will be provided to the office of the other party.

8. The maps, records, or reports resulting from this program shall be made available to the public as promptly as
possible. The maps, records, or reports normally will be published by the party of the first part. However, the party of
the second part reserves the right to publish the results of this program and, if already published by the party of the
first part shall, upon request; be furnished by the party of the first part; at cost, impressions suitable for purposes of
reproduction similar to that for which the original copy was prepared. The maps, records, or reports published by
either party shall contain a statement of the cooperative relations between the parties. The Parties acknowledge that
scientific information and data developed as a result of the Scope of Work (SOW) are subject to applicable USGS
review, approval, and release requirements, which are available on the USGS Fundamental Science Practices
website (https://www2.usgs.gov/fsp/).




Form 9-1366 U.S. Department of the Interior
(May 2018) U.S. Geological Survey

Joint Funding Agreement
Page 2 of 2 FOR

Customer#: 6000001010
Agreement#: 20ZGJFA43000
Project #: ZGO0OGZV

TIN #: 95-4753654

Water Resource Investigations

9. Billing for this agreement will be rendered quarterly. Invoices not paid within 60 days from the billing date will bear
Interest, Penalties, and Administrative cost at the annual rate pursuant the Debt Collection Act of 1982, (codified at

31 U.S.C § 3717) established by the U.S. Treasury.

USGS Technical Point of Contact

Name: Scott Patterson
Supervisory Hydrologic Technician
Address: 12110 Tech Center Drive
Poway, CA 92064
Telephone:  (858) 679-4015
Fax: (858) 679-4019
Email: rspatter@usgs.gov
USGS Billing Point of Contact
Name: David Penisten
Supervisory Budget Analyst
Address: 6000 J Street - Placer Hall
Sacramento, CA 95819
Telephone:  (916) 278-9200

Fax: (916) 278-3070
Email: dpenisten@usgs.gov

U.S. Geological Survey
United States
Department of Interior

Signature

By / /4 = /" ¢ TN Date: _10/01/2019_
Nam¢é: Eric G. Reichard

Title: Director, USGS California Water Science
Center

Customer Technical Point of Contact

Name: Matthew Knudson
c/o Palmdale Water District

Address: 2029 East Avenue Q
Palmdale, CA 93550

Telephone: (661) 947-4111

Fax:

Email: mknudson@palmdalewater.org
Customer Billing Point of Contact

Name:

Address:

Telephone:

Fax:

Email:

ANTELOPE VALLEY STATE WATER
CONTRACTORS ASSOCIATION

Signatures

By W){‘ )’C_— Date:_10-10-19

Name: Matthew R. Knudson

Title:  General Manager
By Date:
Name:

Title:

By Date:
Name:

Title:



AGENDA ITEM NO. 7.2

PALMDALE WATER DISTRICT
BOARD MEMORANDUM

DATE: October 22, 2019 October 28, 2019

TO: BOARD OF DIRECTORS Board Meeting

FROM: Mr. Dennis D. LaMoreaux, General Manager

RE: AGENDA ITEM NO. 7.2 — CONSIDERATION AND POSSIBLE ACTION ON

REVISIONS TO THE NAMES OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS STANDING
COMMITTEES. (DIRECTOR DIZMANG)

Recommendation:

Staff has no recommendation on this item.

Alternative Options:

The Board can choose to have the names of Board Standing Committees remain the same.

Impact of Taking No Action:

Board Standing Committee names would remain the same.

Background:

A Strategic Planning workshop was held with Dr. Mathis where the Board, among other items,
discussed Board Standing Committees, goals for these Committees, and new names for these
Committees. It has since been discussed to simplify the names of Board Standing Committees.

The current Board Standing Committees and Appointments dated May 28, 2019 is attached
along with proposed revisions to the names of the Committees based on the assignments of the
Committees.

Strateqgic Plan Initiative/Mission Statement:

This item is under Strategic Initiative No. 5 — Regional Leadership.
This item directly relates to the District’s Mission Statement.

Budget:
There is no impact to the Budget from this item.

Supporting Documents:

e PWD 2019 Standing Committees and Appointments as of May 28, 2019
e Proposed 2019 Standing Committees and Appointments




PWD 2019 STANDING COMMITTEES AND APPOINTMENTS - MAY 28, 2019

RESOURCE RELIABILITY AND OPERATIONAL EFFICIENCY:

Director Mac Laren, Chair Director Alvarado

ORGANIZATIONAL EXCELLENCE:

Director Dizmang, Chair Director Mac Laren

GOAL: To Ensure Reliable Water Sources, Facilities and
Equipment

Assignments:

1) Water System Master Plan and Asset Management

2) Recycled Water System

3) Water Supply Portfolio Diversification

4) Source Water Management

5) Water and Energy Conservation
Programs

6) Operation Resiliency and Safety

and Education

GOAL: To Promote Employee Retention and Excellence

Assignments:

1) Compensation and benefits
2) Succession Planning Program
3) Organizational structure

4) Personnel policies

5) Training

6) Internships and Mentoring

FINANCIAL HEALTH AND STABILITY:

Director Dizmang, Chair Director Wilson

GOAL: To Ensure and Maintain Financial Stability

Assignments:

1) Grant funding

2) Five-year Water Rate Plan
3) Payment options

4) Budget and audit

5) Investments and reserves
6) Developer fees

REGIONAL LEADERSHIP AND OUTREACH:

Director Wilson, Chair Director Alvarado

GOAL: To be an Industry Leader, Both Locally and
Regionally, and to Develop New and Innovative
Programs

Assignments:

1) Antelope Valley partnerships and associations

2) Emergency Response Plan

3) Legislation and lobbying efforts

4) Board policies

5) Outreach Plan and publications

6) State-of-the-art concepts to improve efficiencies and
operations

PALMDALE WATER DISTRICT DIRECTOR APPOINTMENTS

= Antelope Valley State Water Contractors Association
Director Dino  Director Mac Laren
Alternate: Director Wilson

= Palmdale Recycled Water Authority
Director Dino  Director Mac Laren
Alternate: Director Alvarado

= Plant 42 Environmental Restoration Advisory Board
Director Dizmang Director Wilson
Alternate: Director Dino

= Association of California Water Agencies & JPIA
Director Dino  Alternate: Director Wilson

BOARD LIAISONS:

The Board President shall act as and/or appoint Liaisons to
various functions and organizations to represent PWD.
=  AVEK Director Dino

=  Fin & Feather Club Director Alvarado

The Board President shall appoint
Ad Hoc Committees
from time to time and reconstitute such
committees as the need arises.




PWD 2019 STANDING COMMITTEES AND APPOINTMENTS — PROPOSED

RESOURCES AND FACILITIES:

Director Mac Laren, Chair Director Alvarado

PERSONNEL:

Director Dizmang, Chair Director Mac Laren

GOAL: To Ensure Reliable Water Sources, Facilities and
Equipment

Assignments:

1) Water System Master Plan and Asset Management

2) Recycled Water System

3) Water Supply Portfolio Diversification

4) Source Water Management

5) Water and Energy Conservation
Programs

6) Operation Resiliency and Safety

and Education

GOAL: To Promote Employee Retention and Excellence

Assignments:

1) Compensation and benefits
2) Succession Planning Program
3) Organizational structure

4) Personnel policies

5) Training

6) Internships and Mentoring

FINANCIAL STABILITY:

Director Dizmang, Chair Director Wilson

GOAL: To Ensure and Maintain Financial Stability

Assignments:

1) Grant funding

2) Five-year Water Rate Plan
3) Payment options

4) Budget and audit

5) Investments and reserves
6) Developer fees

Director Wilson, Chair Director Alvarado

GOAL: To be an Industry Leader, Both Locally and
Regionally, and to Develop New and Innovative
Programs

Assignments:

1) Antelope Valley partnerships and associations

2) Emergency Response Plan

3) Legislation and lobbying efforts

4) Board policies

5) Outreach Plan and publications

6) State-of-the-art concepts to improve efficiencies and
operations

PALMDALE WATER DISTRICT DIRECTOR APPOINTMENTS

= Antelope Valley State Water Contractors Association
Director Dino  Director Mac Laren
Alternate: Director Wilson

= Palmdale Recycled Water Authority
Director Dino  Director Mac Laren
Alternate: Director Alvarado

= Plant 42 Environmental Restoration Advisory Board
Director Dizmang Director Wilson
Alternate: Director Dino

= Association of California Water Agencies & JPIA
Director Dino  Alternate: Director Wilson

BOARD LIAISONS:

The Board President shall act as and/or appoint Liaisons to
various functions and organizations to represent PWD.
=  AVEK Director Dino

=  Fin & Feather Club Director Alvarado

The Board President shall appoint
Ad Hoc Committees
from time to time and reconstitute such
committees as the need arises.




AGENDA ITEM NO. 8.1

MINUTES OF MEETING OF THE FINANCIAL HEALTH AND STABILITY
COMMITTEE OF THE PALMDALE WATER DISTRICT, AUGUST 27, 2019:

A meeting of the Financial Health and Stability Committee of the Palmdale Water District was held
Tuesday, August 27, 2019, at 2029 East Avenue Q, Palmdale, California, in the Board Room of the
District office. Chair Dizmang called the meeting to order at 4:30 p.m.

1) Roll Call.

Attendance: Others Present:
Committee: Dennis LaMoreaux, General Manager
Gloria Dizmang, Chair Adam Ly, Assistant General Manager

Don Wilson, Committee Member Robert Alvarado, PWD Director
Mike Williams, Finance Manager
Judy Shay, Public Affairs Director
Dennis Hoffmeyer, Accounting Supervisor
Bob Egan, Financial Advisor
Claudia Bolanos, Management Analyst
Dawn Deans, Executive Assistant
0 members of the public

2) Adoption of Agenda.

It was moved by Committee Member Wilson, seconded by Chair Dizmang, and
unanimously carried by all members of the Committee present at the meeting to adopt the
agenda, as written.

3) Public Comments on Non-Agenda Items.
There were no public comments on non-agenda items.

4) Action Items:

4.1) Consideration and Possible Action on Approval of Minutes of Meeting
Held July 17, 2019.

It was moved by Committee Member Wilson, seconded by Chair Dizmang, and
unanimously carried by all members of the Committee present at the meeting to
approve the minutes of the Financial Health and Stability Committee meeting held July
17, 2019.



AUGUST 27,2019
FINANCIAL HEALTH AND STABILITY
COMMITTEE MEETING

4.2) Discussion and Overview of Cash Flow Statement and Current Cash
Balances as of July 2019. (Financial Advisor Egan)

Financial Advisor Egan provided an overview of the Investment Funds Report
through July 2019, including the decrease in cash due to transfers, assessments, and
interest income, and then reviewed the cash flow statement, including the projected
year-end balance, potential revenue sources, capital expenditures, the potential to delay
capital projects, and water sales followed by discussion of capital projects that could be
postponed until 2020.

4.3) Discussion and Overview of Financial Statements, Revenue, and
Expense and Departmental Budget Reports for July 2019. (Finance Manager
Williams)

Finance Manager Williams reviewed in detail the balance sheet, profit and loss
statement, year-to-year comparisons, month-to-month comparisons, consumption
comparisons, and revenue and expense analysis reports for the period ending July 2019
and stated that most departments are operating at or below the targeted expenditure
percentage of 58%, with the exception of Engineering, Operations, and Human
Resources and reviewed budget line items over-budget in these departments.

44) Discussion and Overview of Committed Contracts Issued. (Finance
Manager Williams)

Finance Manager Williams provided an overview of the Contractual
Commitments and Needs Report for new and replacement capital projects, consulting
and engineering support projects, new and replacement equipment, water quality fee
funded projects, committed and projected capital expenditures, and the summary of
Water Revenue Bond Series 2018A payouts through July, 2019.

4.5) Review of 2019 Budget to Determine Addition of Step and Merit
Changes for District Staff or to Allow Sell-Back of Sick and/or Vacation Leave.
(General Manager LaMoreaux)

Finance Manager Williams reviewed the costs for the option of limited vacation
and sick leave sell-back and the option of providing step and merit changes for District
staff beginning October 1 and then stated that staff’s preference is to approve the
addition of step and merit incentives for employees.

~2~



AUGUST 27, 2019
FINANCIAL HEALTH AND STABILITY
COMMITTEE MEETING

After a brief discussion of these options, it was moved by Committee Member
Wilson, seconded by Chair Dizmang, and unanimously carried by all members of the
Committee present at the meeting that the Committee concurs with staff’s
recommendation to approve the option of providing step, one step maximum, and merit
changes for District staff beginning October 1 and that the full Board consider this
recommendation at the next Regular Board Meeting with both options presented.

4.6) Review of Staff Financial Reports to be More Concise and Provide
Better Efficiency. (Financial Health and Stability Committee Goal)

After a detailed review of staff’s financial reports, staff was directed to revise the
balance sheet and profit and loss statements for presentation and discussion at the next
Committee meeting.

5) Information Items.

5.1) Status of Debt Service Coverage. (Financial Advisor Egan)

Financial Advisor Egan stated that the Debt Service Coverage for the period of
August 2018 through July 2019 is 1.33 and recommended this be monitored to
determine if funds can be transferred to the Rate Stabilization Fund.

5.2) Status of Proposition 218 Process. (Finance Manager Williams)

Finance Manager Williams stated that the Proposition 218 notices were mailed
today and then reviewed the meetings that were added to the 2019 Rate Study
Schedule.

Financial Advisor Egan then commended RDN on the preparation of the 2019
Water Rate Study and stated that he is pleased the Board of Directors voted for Option
No. 1 as this option will place the District in a very strong position over the next five
years.

5.3) Status of Grant Funding Options. (Committee Member Wilson)

The status of the District’s grant applications was discussed after which Assistant
General Manager Ly stated that District staff monitors and applies for all grants for



AUGUST 27,2019
FINANCIAL HEALTH AND STABILITY
COMMITTEE MEETING

which the District is qualified and that any grant applications are presented to the full
Board for consideration prior to submitting the application.

5.4) Other.

Finance Manager Williams stated that the District filed its Continuing Disclosure
with the state for the bond issue as required by the California Debt and Investment
Advisory Commission.

6) Board Members’ Requests for Future Agenda Items.

“Discussion of the detail included in staff’s financial reports” will remain on the
next agenda, and General Manager LaMoreaux recommended an item be placed on the
next agenda for “Discussion of prudent parameters to allow the option of water rate
adjustment reductions if the District’s financial health is achieved.”

7) Date of Next Committee ‘Mee&ing.

It was determined that the next Financial Health and Stability Committee meeting
will be held October 22, 2019 at 4:30 p.m.

8) Adjournment.

There being no further business to come before the Financial Health and Stability
Committee, the meeting was adjourned at 5:55 p.m.

\ //




MINUTES OF REGULAR MEETING OF THE COMMISSIONERS OF THE
ANTELOPE VALLEY STATE WATER CONTRACTORS ASSOCIATION,
SEPTEMBER 12, 2019.

A regular meeting of the Commissioners of the Antelope Valley State Water Contractors
Association was held Thursday, September 12, 2019, at the Palmdale Water District at 2029
East Avenue Q, Palmdale. Vice Chair Dino called the meeting to order at 6:00 p.m.

1) Pledge of Allegiance.

At the request of Vice Chair Dino, Commissioner Dyas led the pledge of
allegiance.

2) Roll Call.
Attendance: Others Present:
Vincent Dino, Vice Chair Matt Knudson, General Manager
Kathy Mac Laren, Secretary Peter Thompson II, Asst. General Manager
Leo Thibault, Treasurer Tom Barnes, Resources Manager
Barbara Hogan, Commissioner ~ James Chaisson, LCID General Manager
Keith Dyas, Commissioner Don Wilson, AVSWCA Alt. Cmsnr. (PWD)
Shelly Sorsabal, Alt. Cmsnr. Robert Alvarado, PWD Director
Dawn Deans, Executive Assistant
0 members of the public
EXCUSED ABSENCES —

Rob Parris - Chair
3) Adoption of Agenda.
It was moved by Commissioner Mac Laren, seconded by Commissioner Hogan,
and carried by all members of the Board of Commissioners present at the meeting on a
5-0-1 vote, with Alt. Commissioner Sorsabal abstaining, to adopt the agenda, as
written.

4) Public Comments for Non-Agenda Items.

There were no public comments.



ANTELOPE VALLEY STATE WATER CONTRACTORS ASSOCIATION
SEPTEMER 12, 2019
REGULAR MEETING

5) Consideration and Possible Action on Minutes of Regular Meeting Held July
11, 2019.

It was moved by Commissioner Dyas, seconded by Commissioner Mac Laren,
and unanimously carried by all members of the Board of Commissioners present at the
meeting to approve the minutes of the regular meeting held July 11, 2019, as written.

6) Payment of Bills.

It was moved by Commissioner Thibault, seconded by Commissioner Mac
Laren, and unanimously carried by all members of the Board of Commissioners present
at the meeting to approve payment of the bills to PWD in the amount of $1,388.88 for
staff services, to AVEK in the amount of $1,147.38 for staff services, and to U.S.G.S. in
the amount of $16,225.00 for the quarterly billing for cooperative water resources
investigations per the 2018/2019 Joint Funding Agreement for the period of May 1, 2019
through July 31, 2019.

7) Consideration and Possible Action on Replacement Water Agreement
Between the AVSWCA and the A.V. Watermaster for Delivery of Replacement Water
Within the Antelope Valley Adjudicated Groundwater Basin. (General Manager
Knudson)

General Manager Knudson and Assistant General Manager Thompson II
provided an overview of the Replacement Water Agreement, and after a brief
discussion of the rate schedule approved by the A.V. Watermaster, of the identified
producers inside the adjudicated boundary but outside service areas, and of the next
steps for this Agreement if approved, it was moved by Commissioner Mac Laren,
seconded by Commissioner Dyas, and unanimously carried by all members of the
Board of Commissioners present at the meeting to approve the Replacement Water
Agreement between the AVSWCA and the A.V. Watermaster for the delivery of
replacement water within the Antelope Valley adjudicated groundwater basin, as
amended, revising the recitals to include a reference to rates established by the A.V.
Watermaster.

8) Report of General Manager and Assistant General Manager.

a) Update on Big Rock Creek Joint Groundwater Recharge Project.

~92 ~



ANTELOPE VALLEY STATE WATER CONTRACTORS ASSOCIATION
SEPTEMER 12, 2019
REGULAR MEETING

Assistant General Manager Thompson II stated that the recharge flow began July
16 at 5 cfs; that this flow has been extended through the end of 2019; and that 166-acre
feet of water has been recharged as of one week ago.

b) Update on Antelope Valley Watermaster Meetings.

General Manager Knudson stated that the next Watermaster meeting is
scheduled for September 25, 2019 at 10:00 a.m. at AVEK’s office and that two storage
agreements will be considered, one with Rosamond Community Services District for
proposed upgrades to their wastewater treatment plant and recharge of that water and
one with Littlerock Creek Irrigation District.

c) Update on Antelope Valley and Fremont Basin IRWMP Stakeholder
meetings.

General Manager Knudson stated that the final grant applications through the
Antelope Valley IRWMP Stakeholders have been submitted and that AVEK has
submitted two projects for grant funding, one within the Fremont Basin and one within
the Antelope Valley Basin.

The target date for the flow of water through the Amargosa Creek Recharge
Project was then discussed.

9) Report of Controller.

a) Update on Revenue, Expenses and Change in Net Position.

General Manager Knudson provided a brief update on the Association’s
revenue, expenses, and change in net position for the month ending August 31, 2019
and stated that necessary funds have been collected and that a Joint Funding
Agreement to continue the groundwater level and quality monitoring program with the
USGS may be available for consideration at the next Association meeting.

10)  Reports of Commissioners.

There were no reports from Commissioners.



ANTELOPE VALLEY STATE WATER CONTRACTORS ASSOCIATION
SEPTEMER 12, 2019
REGULAR MEETING

11)  Report of Attorney.

No attorney was present at the meeting.
12) Commission Members’ Requests for Future Agenda Items.

It was determined that “Consideration and possible action on continuation of
2019/2020 Joint Funding Agreement with USGS for groundwater level and quality

monitoring” will be added to the next agenda, if available.

Commissioner Hogan recommended a tour of the Amargosa Creek Recharge
Project.

There were no further requests for future agenda items.

13)  Consideration and Possible Action on Scheduling the Next Association
Meeting October 10, 2019.

General Manager Knudson recommended that the next regular meeting of the
Association be held on October 10, 2019 at 6:00 p.m. at Palmdale Water District if the
USGS Joint Funding Agreement is received and that the meeting be postponed if the
Agreement is not received.

14)  Adjournment.
There being no further business to come before the Commissioners, the regular

meeting of the Commissioners of the Antelope Valley State Water Contractors
Association was adjourned at 6:21 p.m. 5 /)




AGENDA ITEM NO. 8.2.a

PALMDALE WATER DISTRICT

BOARD MEMORANDUM

DATE:
TO:
FROM:
RE:

October 23, 2019 October 28, 2019
BOARD OF DIRECTORS Board Meeting
Mr. Dennis D. LaMoreaux, General Manager

AGENDA ITEM NO. 8.2.a- OCTOBER 2019 GENERAL MANAGER REPORT

The following is the October 2019 report to the Board of activities through September 20109.
It is organized to follow the District’s six strategic initiatives and is intended to provide a general
update on the month’s activities. A summary of the initiatives is as follows:

O

a2

B

Water Resource Reliability

Complete the 2018 phase of the Upper Amargosa Creek Recharge Project

Ensure Palmdale Recycled Water Authority (PRWA) to be fully operational by year 2020

Adopt new state-of-the-art water treatment technologies

Implement the Antelope Valley Groundwater Adjudication agreement

Complete the grade-control structure for the Littlerock Reservoir Sediment Removal
Project

Continue the next phase towards the completion of Palmdale Regional Groundwater
Recharge and Recovery Project

Identify and pursue opportunities to increase the reliability of water supply

Organizational Excellence

Offer competitive compensation and benefits package to promote employee retention

Focus Succession Planning Program on ensuring an overlap of training for key positions

Continue providing transparency to our ratepayers

Promote and support leadership training and professional development programs to
enhance the District’s customers’ experience

Systems Efficiency

Implement 2016 Water System Master Plan

Develop a five-year Infrastructure Revitalization Plan to continue the reinvestment and
preventative maintenance for aging infrastructure

Explore energy independence

Continue being the industry’s leader on the use of Granular Activated Carbon (GAC)

Research and test new technologies to increase efficiencies

Improve safety and training for Directors, employees and customers

Develop a crisis communications plan




BOARD OF DIRECTORS
PALMDALE WATER DISTRICT October 23, 2019

Financial Health and Stability

Pursue additional grant funding for all District projects

Adopt a sustainable and balanced rate structure to meet short and long-term needs
Create a five-year financial plan in conjunction with the 2019 Water Rate Plan
Maintain adequate reserve levels, high-level bond rating, and financial stability

Regional Leadership

Enhance relationships with Antelope Valley partnerships, including local water agencies,
Antelope Valley State Water Contractors Association and the Palmdale Recycled
Water Authority

Expand school water education programs

Engage elected officials in water-related issues

Continue offering career opportunities through the Internship Program

Provide opportunities for local businesses to contract with the District

Customer Care, Advocacy and Outreach

Increase Customer Care accessibility through communication and feedback to enhance
customers’ experience

Evaluate, develop, and market additional payment options

Be point of communication for customers’ water-related public health concerns

Develop the District’s Public Outreach Plan

Increase public awareness of the District’s history and promote centennial anniversary

This report also includes charts that show the effects of the District’s efforts in several areas.
They are organized within each strategic initiative and include status of the State Water Resources
Control Board’s (SWRCB) long-term conservation orders, 20 x 2020 status, the District’s total per
capita water use trends, 2019 water production and customer use graph, mainline leaks, and the water
loss trends for both 12- and 24-month running averages.

b=

O Water Resource Reliability

This initiative includes conservation efforts, water supply projects, and water

planning. Recent highlights are as follows:

State Water Resources Control Board (SWRCB) Activities

The 20 x 2020 per capita reduction goals passed by the legislature in 2009 with new long-
term water budgeting requirements have now been replaced with new requirements and
water agency water budgets. These follow through on the “Making Water Conservation



BOARD OF DIRECTORS
PALMDALE WATER DISTRICT October 23, 2019

a California Way of Life” plan. The District expects to easily comply with the new
requirements as they are based on the same philosophy as the District water budget rate
structure.

The District’s compliance with the former 20 x 2020 law is evident from the chart
titled “PWD 12-Month Running Average Total Per Capita Water Use.”:

PWD 12-Month Running Average Total Per Capita Water Use

n/Day

Gallons/Persor
&

wn

09
10
Juk-10
11
Juk11
12
Julk12
1
1
Jul-14
Juk15
an-16
Juk16
Juk1?
an-18
Jul-18
an-19
Juk19

Juk-13

Juk

— Rt —2015 Goal 2020 Goal

The District’s customers have cut their water use by 48.5% from the baseline number
of 231 established in the 2015 Urban Water Management Plan and met the 2020 Goal in
early 2010. The current Total-GPCD is 119.

Water Supply Information

The AV Adjudication is now in its fourth year, and the reduction to the native safe yield
is in its second year. The District’s native groundwater right is 2,769.63 AF. Other
groundwater rights for 2018 were 1,452.27 AF of unused Federal Reserve Rights,
3,828.41 AF of Return Flow Rights, and 3,911.94 AF of Carryover Rights. These
groundwater rights total 11,962.55 AF. The District used approximately 6,073 AF. This
leaves a total carryover amount of 5904.19 AF for 2019. The District’s 2019
groundwater rights total 7,986.67 AF without the Carryover Rights. A more detailed
description of the District adjudicated groundwater production rights is provided below.

The 2019 water resources plan is finalized. The precipitation index for the area
contributing to the State Water Project (SWP) leveled off at 136% of average, a
significantly wet year. The 2019 SWP allocation is 75% and provides 23,475 AF. The
District will be using a higher amount of surface water than normal due to the SWP and




BOARD OF DIRECTORS
PALMDALE WATER DISTRICT October 23, 2019

Littlerock Reservoir supplies. SWP supplies beyond our customers’ needs will be banked
or exchanged to help provide water during dry years. The following graph shows actual
amounts through September 2019 and monthly projections for both production and
consumption, based on the prior five years of actual monthly information, for the entire
year. Water use is 9.3% less than anticipated so far this year due to the rainy winter and
is recovering. The 2018 chart is added in this report for comparison.

~
2019
PWD PRODUCTION & CUSTOMER WATER USE - Actual vs. Budgeted
2,500.0
s A
500.0
00
Jan Feb. March Apeil Mav June July Aug. Sept. Ot Now. D
Projected Water Use ol Actual Water Lise == s = Projected Production b Actual Production
A
-
2018
PWD PRODUCTION & CUSTOMER WATER USE - Actual vs. Budgeted
2,500.0
i
§
f
2
£
E
=
5000
’ l7‘Jar. Feb. March April May Jume July Aug Sept Oet Now D
Projected Water Use e Actual Water Use = o = Projected Production e A0l Production
»




BOARD OF DIRECTORS
PALMDALE WATER DISTRICT October 23, 2019

Groundwater Production Rights Summary

Director Wilson requested an overview of the District’s adjudicated groundwater
rights. A native safe yield of 82,300 acre-feet per year (AFY) was established by the
Court for the Antelope Valley Area of Adjudication, and the adjudication Parties were
divided into various classes to establish respective water rights among groundwater
producers.

e The Production Right is the portion of the Native Safe Yield assigned to each Party.
Production Rights for specific Parties are defined in the Judgment in Exhibit 3
(Non-Overlying Production Rights), Exhibit 4 (Overlying Production Rights), and
in Paragraphs 5.1.3, 5.1.4, and 5.1.5 for the Small Pumper Class, Federal Reserved
Water Rights, and State of California, respectively. The District’s Production
Right is 2,769.63 AFY.

o Unused Federal Reserved Water Rights are the portion of water rights, 7,600 AF/Y,
left unused by the Federal government. This amount has been approximately 6,000
AF/Y and is divided amongst the Non-Overlying Producers (Public Water
Suppliers). The District’s share of Unused Federal Reserve Water Right for
2019 is 1,418.99 AF.

o Imported Water Return Flows represent water brought into the basin from outside
of the watershed that provides a net increase in groundwater supply (i.e., does not
include consumed or evaporated imported water). Return flows for agriculture were
established in the Judgment at 34 percent of imported water use and at 39 percent
for municipal and industrial uses. Each year’s amount is determined based on an
average of the five (5) prior years of imported water. The District’s typical
Imported Water Return Flow Right is approximately 4,000 AFY, 3,798.05 for
20109.

e Carry Over Water is the right to an unused portion of an annual Production Right
or a right to Imported Water Return Flows in a year after the year in which the
right was originally available. The District is building Carry Over Rights for
years when surface water supplies are low. The District’s Carryover Right
going into 2019 is 5,904.19.

o Stored Water is water held in storage in the basin as a result of direct spreading or
other methods for subsequent withdrawal and use pursuant to an agreement with
the Watermaster. It does not include Imported Water Return Flows. The District
currently has approximately 1,500 AF stored in the Antelope Valley and is
participating in projects (Upper Amargosa, Big Rock Creek, and Palmdale
Regional Groundwater Recharge and Recovery Project) for more storage in
the future.



BOARD OF DIRECTORS
PALMDALE WATER DISTRICT October 23, 2019

Other Items

The Littlerock Reservoir Sediment Removal Project Environmental Impact
Report/Environmental Impact Statement (EIR/EIS) was fully approved in 2017. All
required permits are in place, and a construction contract for the Grade Control Structure
was awarded in July 2018 to ASI Construction, LLC (ASI) of Colorado Springs.

ASI installed dewatering wells around the construction area and began pumping out
water in early November. Dewatering, excavation, and constructing a water bypass
continued through December and early January. A series of storms during the week of
January 14" overwhelmed the partially completed water bypass and flooded the
construction site.

ASI returned to the site in mid-July and began working. The first activities were re-
establishing the dewatering network so excavation can be done, rebuilding the upstream
berm to protect the construction site, and reinstalling the bypass pipe to allow storm water
to go around the site. RCC placement began in late September and is expected to be
complete by November. The following pictures show early RCC activities.




BOARD OF DIRECTORS
PALMDALE WATER DISTRICT October 23, 2019

A citizen’s committee, Friends of Littlerock Dam (FOLD), was formed in the
Littlerock, Pearblossom, and Juniper Hills area to find a way to reopen the Littlerock
Reservoir Recreation area. They worked with the District and the USFS on this issue.
The USFS has issued an eviction notice to the former operator living at the Reservoir.
They also plan to issue a request for proposals for a recreational operator. This process is
expected to take over a year.

The fifth anniversary of establishing the San Gabriel Mountains National Monument
was held on October 10, 2019 at the Angeles National Forest headquarters in Arcadia.
The Monument includes Littlerock Dam and Reservoir. The completion of a plan for the
Monument was also celebrated. The District participated on the San Gabriel Community
Collaborative that developed the plan. Being within the Monument is potentially helpful
to the Littlerock Recreation area. It allows for designated private donations. These could
help refurbish the recreational facilities around Littlerock Reservoir.

= The public review of the Draft California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) EIR for the
Palmdale Regional Groundwater Recharge and Recovery Project is complete. The Final
EIR was certified by the Board on July 13, 2016, and the Notice of Determination was
filed on July 14, 2016. The comments from the SWRCB Recycled Water Division on the
Title 22 Engineering Report were addressed and returned for further review. Another set
of comments was received in 2018 and information is being collected to address them.

The soil column tests were completed and reported on late last year. The District
reviewed additional geotechnical work done to verify the proposed location is suitable.
The result is a recommendation to drill an additional well to better understand the aquifer
in the area.

= The Upper Amargosa Creek Recharge Project is now under construction. One contract is
for the California Aqueduct turnout and transmission water main. The other is for the
recharge basins. They are higher than original estimates and will result in a request from
the City of Palmdale to the District, LA County Waterworks, and AVEK for additional
funding. A successful groundbreaking was held on November 15, 2018. Construction is
expected to be completed late this year.

= California Water Fix: There have been recent regulatory approvals moving this project
forward. However, the current Governor has only stated support for one of the proposed
tunnels. The State Water Contractors and the Department of Water Resources are
continuing discussions about the Project’s financing and operations. These discussions
will result in a clearer picture of the effect on individual contractors. Staff is directly
involved in these discussions and will be able to update the Board in the future.



BOARD OF DIRECTORS
PALMDALE WATER DISTRICT October 23, 2019

%ﬁ Organizational Excellence

This initiative includes efforts to restructure staff duties and activities to more efficiently
provide service to our customers. Recent highlights are as follows:

Workshops were held to discuss the District’s direction and update the Strategic Plan for
2019. This process reset the District’s standing committees to align better with the
Strategic Plan and give them clear direction.

The District and other members of the Public Water Agencies Group (PWAG) have hired
and share the services of an Emergency Preparedness Coordinator. This has already
resulted in a successful training held at the District office. More activities, including drills
and a review of the Emergency Response Plan, are planned for 2019. This approach also
kept the District in a good position when responding to the July 4 and 5 earthquakes near
Ridgecrest.

é‘_‘ﬁ Systems Efficiency

4}

This initiative largely focuses on the state of the District’s infrastructure. Recent highlights

are as follows:

The effects of the District’s past efforts in replacing failing water mains and meters can
be seen in the reduced number of mainline leaks. This is illustrated in the chart titled
“Mainline Leak History.” The mainline leaks through September 2019 are 74, and there
were 68 service line leaks. The sharp increases in June and July were due to water main
replacement work near old mains. Mainline leaks only increased by one (1) in September.

s ~
PWD Mainline Leak History

1000
900
800
700
600

500

400
300
8
200 u
9 :

100 13 74

04 97 02
0

2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019

(Sept.)
v




BOARD OF DIRECTORS
PALMDALE WATER DISTRICT October 23, 2019

» The 2019 Budget includes replacing approximately 2,800 meters. Staff will complete this
replacement project in October and will then evaluate how best to do it in future years.

= Facilities staff is focusing on maintenance activities to incorporate pressure reducing
valves, air-vacuum release valves, and other facilities as their efforts can continue to be
more preventative due to a lower number of emergency repairs.

= The District’s replacement work for 2019 includes Avenue P-8 from 20" Street East to
25" Street East. Camares Drive south of Barrel Springs Road is now completed.

= The positive effect of both water main and water meter replacement programs is shown
on the chart titled “PWD Water Loss History.” The running average for water losses is
now under 10%.

PWD Water Loss History

1200 -

ol V\ '\‘11 ’m\v "' “);4“" ‘( N')\ ‘NN

4.00 +

——12-Month Average  =——24-Month Average

0.00 <
Jan-92 lan-94 lan-96 Jan-98 lan-00 lan-02 lan-04 lan-06 lan-08 Jan-10 lan-12 lan-14 lan-16 lan-18 lan-20

= Director Alvarado recently asked for a summary of the District’s water main ages. This
information has been included as additional information in annual budgets in the past in a
tabular form. Staff used the information to create the following graph. This shows that 2.6%,
10.33 miles, of the water distribution system is nearly seventy years old or is of unknown age.



BOARD OF DIRECTORS
PALMDALE WATER DISTRICT October 23, 2019

Active Water Main Ages

EUNKNOWN
m1950's
=1960's
=1970's
=1980's
=1990's
@2000's
@2010's
Summary of Data from Auxilary DB:
(MLpipeLab.mdb/MainLinePipe2019)
Decade Total Pipe Percent of
Installed Length Total Pipe
Unknown 15,104 0.7%
1950's 39,233 1.8%
1960's 120,177 5.6%
1970's 89,234 4.1%
1980's 884,224 41.0%
1990's 598,566 27.7%
2000's 316,952 14.7%
2010's 94,247 4.4%
TOTAL 2,157,737

Financial Health and Stability

Engineering staff has successfully applied for planning grant funding for the Palmdale
Regional Groundwater Recharge and Recovery Project and for the Phase Il pipeline for
the Palmdale Recycled Water Authority. Application packages for further funding have
been determined to be complete by the State. A comment letter was also submitted to
raise the priority of both projects in the State’s funding plan for 2017/2018.

The State is satisfied with resolutions from the City and the District related to the
PRWA Phase Il funding application for compliance with their repayment requirements.
An amendment to the JPA was also completed to tie these into PRWA. The outstanding
financing issue is the State’s approach to determining the District’s Debt Coverage Ratio.
They continue to include non-operating expenses into the calculation. Staff and our
financial advisor are still working on this issue. PRWA is also trying to obtain completed
booster station plans being held by Los Angeles County Waterworks District 40 to
complete the Phase Il design plans and financing.

10



BOARD OF DIRECTORS
PALMDALE WATER DISTRICT October 23, 2019

Staff also worked with the California Infrastructure Bank and Holman Capital and is
considering a public bond issue for this project. Early discussions show this as a strong
possibility to fund the work.

= A water rate study conducted in accordance with Proposition 218 is nearly complete for
2019. Three proposals were received in March and a recommendation made to the Board
to award a contract to RDN. The first staff meetings with RDN were held in April. Staff
is providing all the needed information to project revenue needs over the next five years.

The Board authorized obtaining better information for irrigated property that will help
make the District’s water rate structure more accurate. RDN has completed a financial
forecast for the next five years with assistance from staff. A presentation of RDN’s
recommendation was done at a special Board meeting on August 15". The Board
unanimously recommended a revenue plan option of 8.1% annual revenue increase for
each of the five years in the study period and changes to the water rate structure for public
review and comment. The changes include more accurate landscaping area, a reduced
indoor water allocation, and reducing the number of tiers. A program of public outreach
began with workshops at the District office and the Palmdale Learning Center. A public
hearing to consider approving the rate plan for the next five years is scheduled for October
28",

The resolution drafted for the Board to consider also includes criteria to evaluate the
District’s financial condition each year. It gives the Board the ability to reduce the water
rates in the 2019 Plan if the District’s financial position meets four (4) of the criteria.

= Former Engineering/Grant Manager Riley has worked with the Bureau of Reclamation
for the acceptance of a Feasibility Report for the Palmdale Regional Groundwater
Recharge and Recovery Project and having it eligible for funding. The 2017 competition
effort did not result in an award of funds from the Bureau. However, lessons from this
submittal were used in the current funding competition.

=  Water-Wise Landscape Conversion Program (Cash-for-Grass Program): The District
received a $75,000 Grant from the Bureau of Reclamation in 2017 to assist in funding the
Program. The District has fully used the grant funds. The Board approved an application
for additional funds in February. The District received a preliminary notice indicating a
favorable review of the application.

Regional Leadership

This initiative includes efforts to involve the community, be involved in regional
activities, and be a resource for other agencies in the area. Recent highlights are as follows:

11



BOARD OF DIRECTORS
PALMDALE WATER DISTRICT October 23, 2019

Activities of the Palmdale Recycled Water Authority (PRWA) and Antelope Valley State
Water Contractors Association have continued.

The District staff continues to share the administration of the Antelope Valley
Watermaster Board (AVWB) with AVEK and related meetings.

District staff is active in the local chambers, GAVEA, and area human resources and
public information groups.

The first “PWD Water Ambassador Academy” was conducted on September 19 and 26,
October 3 and a tour/graduation on October 6, 2018. The response from them was
overwhelmingly positive. The next Academy was successfully completed in March. A
high school version of the Academy was successfully held as a one-day event on May 16,
2019.

The District has joined with other water districts to express concerns with the proposed
Statewide water tax over the last two years. The State Senate also refused the water tax
approach. Instead, the State has created a $130M fund using Greenhouse Gas Funds.

The District also joined with other water agencies, and the State Water Contractors, to
oppose SB 1 due to its negative effects to operating the State Water Project. SB 1 was
passed by the State Legislature. However, Governor Newson vetoed it.

The District, AVEK, City of Palmdale, and the City of Lancaster are cohosting the Greater
Antelope Valley Water Emergency Coalition on October 30". Planning is progressing on
the event, and it will be held at the Hellenic Center.

Customer Care and Advocacy

This initiative includes efforts to better serve our customers. Recent highlights are as

follows:

The ability to make payments at 7-Eleven and Family Dollar Store is also continuing to
grow.

Customer Care office and field staff are crosstraining to better understand the other’s
interaction with customers and to improve communication.

Customers are continuing to take advantage of the District’s electronic payment options.
59% of all payments made by customers were done electronically in 2018.

12



	AgendaRegular10-28-19
	Item4.1-4.3
	2019 PWD Water Rate Study Fiinal.pdf
	TABLE OF CONTENTS
	LIST OF TABLES
	LIST OF FIGURES
	EXECUTIVE SUMMARY
	District Overview
	Key Assumptions
	Financial Plan
	Revenues
	Operating and Maintenance (O&M) Expense
	Capital Improvement Expense
	Debt Service
	Reserves
	Financial Outlook without Rate Adjustments
	Recommended Rate Adjustments
	Revenue Requirements

	Rate Design
	Recommended Rates


	1. INTRODUCTION
	Purpose of Study
	Legal Framework
	California Constitution‐Article XIII C (Proposition 26)
	California Constitution‐Article XIII D, Section 6 (Proposition 218)
	California Constitution‐Article X, Section 2
	Assembly Bill-AB 2882
	Assembly Bill-AB 1668 and Senate Bill-SB 606

	Methodology

	2. FINANCIAL PLAN
	Demand Projections
	Data
	Historical Meter Counts
	Historical Usage
	Forecasts

	Revenue Analysis (Under current rates)
	Reserves
	Operating and Maintenance (O&M) Expense
	Capital Improvement Expense
	Debt Service
	Revenue Requirements

	3. COST OF SERVICE ANALYSIS
	4. WATER SUPPLY
	5. RATE DESIGN
	Recommended Changes on the Current Rate Structure
	Water Budget Rate Structure
	Eagle Aerial
	Overview
	Accuracy
	RDN Spot Check
	Effect on Allocations

	Recommended Rates
	Fixed Charges for Study Period
	Volumetric Charges for Study Period
	Fire Protection Service/Construction Meters
	Financial Planning with Proposed Rate Adjustments


	6. BILL IMPACTS
	Bill Impact on a Hypothetical Customer with a Median Parcel Size Lot
	Bill Impacts on Actual Customers

	7. DROUGHT SURCHARGE
	8. BILL COMPARISON
	APPENDIX
	Detailed O&M Expense Projection
	Detailed CIP Expense Projection
	Reserve Policy
	Loan Documents
	Sample Eagle Aerial Data
	Drought Surcharge Resolution


	4.3-ResolutionNo.19-15Rates.pdf
	Item4.6
	ResolutionNo.19-15RateAdjustmentResolution.pdf
	ResolutionNo.19-15_2020_Appendix_C.pdf
	CY 2020





	Item6.1
	Item6.2
	Item6.3
	Item7.1
	Item7.2
	Item8.1
	Item8.2



